
As a matter of proper business decorum, the Board of Directors respectfully request that all cell 
phones be turned off or placed on vibrate. To prevent any potential distraction of the proceeding, 

we request that side conservations be taken outside of the meeting room. 

AGENDA 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

Wednesday, December 6, 2017 at 8:00 AM 

 
The mission of Three Valleys Municipal Water District is to supplement and enhance local water 
supplies to meet our region’s needs in a reliable and cost-effective manner. 

 
Item 1 – Call to Order Kuhn 

Item 2 – Pledge of Allegiance Kuhn 

Item 3 – Roll Call 

 Bob Kuhn, President, Division IV 

 David De Jesus, Vice President, Division II 

 Brian Bowcock, Secretary, Division III 

 Joe Ruzicka, Treasurer, Division V 

 Dan Horan, Director, Division VII 

 Carlos Goytia, Director, Division I 

 John Mendoza, Director, Division VI 

Executive 
Assistant 

Item 4 – Additions to Agenda (Government Code Section 54954.2(b)(2) 

Additions to the agenda may be considered when two-thirds of the Board members 
present determine a need for immediate action, and the need to act came to the 
attention of TVMWD after the agenda was posted; this exception requires a degree 
of urgency. If fewer than two-thirds of the Board members are present, all must affirm 
the action to add an item to the agenda. The Board shall call for public comment prior 
to voting to add any item to the agenda after posting. 

 

Kuhn 

Item 5 – Reorder Agenda Kuhn 

Item 6 – Public Comment (Government Code Section 54954.3) 

Opportunity for members of the public to directly address the Board on items of public 
interest that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of TVMWD. The public may also 
address the Board on items being considered on this agenda. TVMWD requests that 
all public speakers complete a speaker’s card and provide it to the Executive 
Assistant. 

We request that remarks be limited to five minutes or less. 

Kuhn 

  



Item 7 – Public Hearing – Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration for 
Grand Avenue Well, Project No. 58446 [enc] 

The Board will convene a public hearing to hear testimony and receive comments 
prior to considering action to adopt the Initial Study and Mitigated Negative 
Declaration for Grand Avenue Well, Project No. 58446. TVMWD has fully complied 
with the noticing requirements for this Public Hearing. 

In accordance with Government Code Section 6061, the Public Hearing was noticed 
in newspaper(s) of general circulation, San Gabriel Valley Tribune and Inland Valley 
Daily Bulletin on December 1, 2017. A copy of the notice is available upon request. 

• Staff report to the Board of Directors; 

• Open the public hearing; 

• Consider public comments and testimony; 

• Close the public hearing. 

Kuhn 

Item 8 – Adopt Resolution No. 17-12-813 to Approve Initial Study/Mitigated 
Negative Declaration and CEQA for TVMWD Grand Avenue Groundwater Well, 
Project No. 58446 

Upon conclusion of the public hearing held immediately preceding this action, the 
Board will consider approval of Resolution No. 17-12-813 to adopt CEQA Mitigated 
Negative Declaration for the Grand Avenue Well Project No. 58446. 

Garcia 

Item 8 – Board Action Required – Motion No. 17-12-5157 
Staff Recommendation: Approve as presented 

Item 9 – Consent Calendar Kuhn 

The Board is being asked to consider the consent calendar items 9.1 – 9.6 listed below. Consent 
calendar items are routine in nature and may be considered and approved by a single motion. Any 
member of the Board may request that a specific item be pulled from the consent calendar for 
further discussion. 

9.1 – Receive, Approve and File Minutes – November 2017 [enc] 

• November 1, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 

• November 15, 2017 – Regular Board Meeting 

9.2 – Miramar Site Tours [enc] 

The Board will be provided an update on tours taken at the Miramar Treatment Plant during 
CY 2017. 

9.3 – Resolution No. 17-12-814 Recognizing General Manager of Western Municipal 
Water District, John Rossi on His Retirement [enc] 

  



9.4 – Resolution No. 17-12-815 Tax Sharing Exchange with County Sanitation District, 
Annexation No. 21-757 [enc] 

Approval of this resolution operates to accept the action for the tax sharing exchange by the 
County Sanitation District. 

9.5 – Resolution No. 17-12-816 Tax Sharing Exchange with County Sanitation District, 
Annexation No. 22-428 [enc] 

Approval of this resolution operates to accept the action for the tax sharing exchange by the 
County Sanitation District. 

9.6 – Resolution No. 17-12-817 Tax Sharing Exchange with County Sanitation District, 
Annexation No. 22-420 [enc] 

Approval of this resolution operates to accept the action for the tax sharing exchange by the 
County Sanitation District. 

Items 9.1 – 9.6: Board Action Required – Motion No. 17-12-5158 
Staff Recommendation: Approve as presented 

Item 10 – General Manager’s Report Hansen 

10.1 – CY 2018 Board Reorganization [enc] 

The Board will consider its CY 2018 annual reorganization and elect the Board President and 
Officers to include, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. 

Item 10.1: Board Action Required – Motion No. 17-12-5159 
Staff Recommendation: None 

10.2 – CY 2018 Appointment of Board Representatives/Alternates [enc] 

The Board will consider its annual appointment of CY 2018 representatives / alternates to 
attend various member agency and other industry related meetings on behalf of Three Valleys 
MWD. 

Item 10.2: Board Action Required – Motion No. 17-12-5160 
Staff Recommendation: None 

Item 11 – Directors’ / General Manager Oral Reports 

All Directors and the General Manager will be provided an opportunity to share on various 
meetings they attended on behalf of Three Valleys MWD. 

Item 12 – Future Agenda Items 

Item 13 – Adjournment 

The Board Meeting for December 20, 2017 has been cancelled. The Board will adjourn to 
Wednesday, January 3, 2018 at 8:00 a.m. 

 



American Disabilities Act Compliance Statement 
Government Code Section 54954.2(a) 

 

Any request for disability-related modifications or 
accommodations (including auxiliary aids or services) sought to 
participate in the above-referenced public meeting should be 
directed to the TVMWD’s Executive Assistant at (909) 621-5568 
at least 24 hours prior to meeting. 

Agenda items received after posting 
Government Code Section 54957.5 

Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted after 
distribution of the agenda packet are available for public review 
at the TVMWD office located at, 1021 East Miramar Avenue, 
Claremont, CA, 91711. The materials will also be posted on the 
TVMWD website at www.threevalleys.com. 

Three Valleys MWD Board Meeting packets and agendas are 
available for review on its website at www.threevalleys.com.  The 
website is updated on Sunday preceding any regularly scheduled 
board meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

http://www.threevalleys.com/
http://www.threevalleys.com/


 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact   Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only  Cost Estimate: $       

Discussion: 

The Board will convene a public hearing on the above-referenced matter relating to the 

Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration for TVMWD’s Grand Avenue Well, 

Project No. 58446. 

The Board will receive a staff report and be available to hear any testimony in this matter.  

After testimony is provided, the Board may elect to continue the public hearing to a later 

date or close the public hearing to enter a decision. 

All materials related to this item have been assembled as part of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) adoption for the above-referenced project.  Agenda 

Item 8 provides for that adoption after the close of the public hearing. 

 

Strategic Plan Objective(s): 

 3.3 – Be accountable and transparent with major decisions 

 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Richard W. Hansen, General Manager 

Date: December 6, 2017 

Subject: 
Public Hearing – Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration for Grand 
Avenue Well, Project No. 58446 

 

Staff Report/Memorandum 
 

Item 7



Item 7



Signature

Legal No.  

San Gabriel Valley Tribune
Affiliated with SGV Newspaper Group

605 E. Huntington Dr., Suite 100

Monrovia, CA  91016

626-962-8811 ext. 40891

I am a citizen of the United States, and a resident of the 

county aforesaid; I am over the age of eighteen years, and 

not a party to or interested in the above-entitled matter.  I 

am the principal clerk of the printer of SAN GABRIEL 

VALLEY TRIBUNE, a newspaper of general circulation 

which has been adjudicated as a newspaper of general 

circulation by the Superior Court of the County of Los 

Angeles, State of California, on the date of September 10, 

1957, Case Number 684891.  The notice, of which the 

annexed is a true printed copy, has been published in 

each regular and entire issue of said newspaper and not in 

any supplement thereof on the following dates, to wit:

10/23/2017

I declare under the penalty of perjury that the foregoing is 

true and correct.

Executed at West Covina, LA Co. California

On this 23th day of October, 2017.

(Space below for use of County Clerk Only)

PROOF OF PUBLICATION

(2015.5 C.C.P.)

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

County of Los Angeles

00110278685038502

THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER

1021 E. MIRIMAR AVE.

CLAREMONT, CA  91711-1300

r.LP15-05/17/17 1

Item 7



AdTaxi  |  Inland Empire Newspaper Group

The Sun � Daily Bulletin � Daily Facts
Advertising Order Confirmation

 2:41:21PM11/28/17

Page 3
Item 7



Advertising Order Confirmation
 1:24:02PM11/28/17

Page 2

Ad Number Production NotesProduction MethodAd AttributesProduction ColorColorAd Size

AdBooker0011046887-01 4 X 90 Li

External Ad Number Ad TypePick Up Released for Publication

Legal Liner

Product Run Dates # InsertsRequested Placement Requested Position

Item 7



INITIAL STUDY/ 
MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 

 Three Valleys Municipal Water District 
Proposed Groundwater Production Well No. 4 & Pipeline 

Grand Avenue, Claremont, California 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Prepared for: 
 

Three Valleys Municipal Water District 
1021 E. Miramar Avenue 

Claremont, CA 91711 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
290 Conejo Ridge Avenue 
Thousand Oaks, CA 91361 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 28, 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Item 7



 

 
 
 
 
 

[This page left intentionally blank] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Item 7



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ABBREVIATIONS ............................................................................................................................. III 

1.0 INTRODUCTION ...........................................................................................................1.1 
1.1 OVERVIEW ....................................................................................................................... 1.1 
1.2 PROJECT TITLE ................................................................................................................. 1.2 
1.3 LEAD AGENCY ................................................................................................................ 1.2 
1.4 INTENDED USES OF THE INITIAL STUDY .......................................................................... 1.2 
1.5 PROJECT DESCRIPTION SUMMARY............................................................................... 1.3 

2.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ...............................................................................................2.1 
2.1 LOCATION ....................................................................................................................... 2.1 
2.2 ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING ............................................................................................. 2.1 
2.3 GENERAL PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATION ................................................................... 2.1 
2.4 ZONING ........................................................................................................................... 2.1 
2.5 SURROUNDING LAND USES ........................................................................................... 2.1 
2.6 ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED ................................................ 2.2 

3.0 EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS ............................................................3.0 
3.1 AESTHETICS ...................................................................................................................... 3.0 
3.2 AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES ................................................................. 3.2 
3.3 AIR QUALITY .................................................................................................................... 3.4 
3.4 BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES ............................................................................................. 3.9 
3.5 CULTURAL RESOURCES ................................................................................................ 3.12 
3.6 GEOLOGY AND SOILS ................................................................................................. 3.16 
3.7 GREENHOUSE GAS ....................................................................................................... 3.19 
3.8 HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ................................................................... 3.21 
3.9 HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY ........................................................................... 3.24 
3.10 LAND USE AND PLANNING.......................................................................................... 3.29 
3.11 MINERAL RESOURCES .................................................................................................. 3.31 
3.12 NOISE ............................................................................................................................. 3.32 
3.13 POPULATION AND HOUSING ...................................................................................... 3.37 
3.14 PUBLIC SERVICES .......................................................................................................... 3.39 
3.15 RECREATION ................................................................................................................. 3.41 
3.16 TRANSPORTATION AND TRAFFIC ................................................................................ 3.42 
3.17 TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES .................................................................................... 3.45 
3.18 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS .................................................................................. 3.47 

4.0 MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PLAN ...................................................4.1 

5.0 MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE ..............................................................5.1 

6.0 PROPOSED FINDING ....................................................................................................6.1 

Item 7



LIST OF TABLES 
Table 1 SCAQMD Air Quality Impact Significance Thresholds ............................................ 3.6 
 
Table 2 Estimated Construction Air Quality Impact Significance Thresholds .................... 3.7 

LIST OF FIGURES 
Figure 1 Vicinity Map ................................................................................................................. 1.3 
 
Figure 2 Proposed Project Location ........................................................................................ 1.4 
 
Figure 3 Proposed Project Conceptual Construction Layout ............................................. 1.5 
 
Figure 4 Well No. 4 Conceptual Rendering ........................................................................... 1.6 

LIST OF APPENDICES 
 AIR QUALITY .................................................................................................. 6.A 

 SIX BASINS WATERMASTER BOARD MEMO ................................................ 6.B 

 HYDROLOGY ANALYSIS .............................................................................. 6.C 

 RESPONSE TO COMMENTS .......................................................................... 6.D 

Item 7



ABBREVIATIONS 

AFY = Acre-Feet Per Year  
 
AQMP = Air Quality Management Plan  
 
BGS = Below Ground Surface  
 
BMP = Best Management Practices  
 
CAAQS = California Ambient Air Quality  
Standards 
 
CalEEMod = California Emissions Estimator  
Model  
 
CARB = California Air Resources Board 
 
Church = Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-
day Saints  
 
CML&C = Cement Mortar Lined and 
Coated 
 
CNEL = Community Noise Exposure Level  
 
CO = Carbon Monoxide  
 
EIR = Environmental Impact Report  
 
Farmland = Farmland of Statewide 
Importance  
 
FTA = United States Department of 
Transportation Federal Transit Administration  
 
GHG = Greenhouse Gas  
 
H2S = Hydrogen Sulfide  
 
LF = Linear Feet  
 

LSTs = Localized Significance Thresholds  
 
MRZ-2 = Mineral Resource Zone 2  
 
MWD = Metropolitan Water District of 
Southern California  
 
NAAQS = National Ambient Air Quality 
Standards  
 
NO2 = Nitrogen Dioxide  
 
O3 = Ozone  
 
Pb = Lead 
 
PM2 5 = Particulate Matter  
 
Proposed Project = Proposed Grand Avenue 
Well  

 
SCAB = South Coast Air Basin  
 
SCAG = Southern California Association of 
Governments 
 
SCAQMD = South Coast Air Quality 
Management District  
 
State Route 210 = Foothill Freeway 
 
SWPPP = Stormwater Pollution Prevention 
Plan  
 
TVMWD = Three Valleys Municipal Water 
District  
 
USEPA = U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency  

Item 7



1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1.1 OVERVIEW 

Three Valleys Municipal Water District (TVMWD) is a wholesale water purveyor that provides water 
to the cities of Claremont, Pomona, Walnut, and to the east San Gabriel Valleys. TVMWD operates 
the Miramar Water Treatment Plant located in the City of Claremont, which has a capacity of 
approximately 25 million gallons of water per day (mgd). Two groundwater production wells are 
located at the Miramar Treatment Plant. TVMWD proposes to construct a new production well 
and associated pipeline within the City of Claremont in order to increase TVMWD’s capability to 
extract groundwater within the six basins of the San Gabriel Valley. The six basins include: Ganesha 
Basin, Pomona Basin, Live Oak Basin, Lower Claremont Basin, Upper Claremont Heights Basin, and 
Canyon Basin, which are all naturally separated by geologic fault lines (Figure 1).   

The Proposed Grand Avenue Well & Pipeline (Proposed Project) would enhance TVMWD’s 
groundwater production capability and supplement Miramar Treatment Plant’s high-quality 
treated drinking water supply for its member agencies. In addition, the new well would strengthen 
local supply reliability and add consistency to TVMWD’s existing groundwater production system. 
The Proposed Project consists of construction of a new groundwater production well in a vacant 
former Caltrans property located on Grand Avenue, and the construction of a new pipeline that 
would connect the well to the Miramar Treatment Plant (Figure 2). The Proposed Project would 
pump groundwater from the Upper Claremont Heights Basin and would discharge it into an 8-inch 
diameter untreated water main that would be routed along Grand Avenue and Baseline Road 
to its intersection with Padua Avenue. A 12-inch diameter pipe would be proposed from this 
intersection to the Miramar Treatment Plant. The 8-inch pipeline section would be approximately 
1,800 linear feet (LF) and the 12-inch pipeline would be approximately 4,300 LF, for a total of 6,100 
LF. The 8-inch pipeline within the well site would be constructed out of cement mortar lined and 
coated (CML&C) steel pipe. The 8-inch and 12-inch pipelines in Grand Avenue, Baseline Road, 
and Padua Avenue would be ductile iron pipe (DIP).  

A number of alternative pipeline routes were analyzed and the preferred alignment route of the 
new water transmission main line is north along Grand Avenue from the Proposed Project site to 
East Baseline Road (Figure 2). From the intersection of Grand Avenue and East Baseline Road, the 
new pipeline would be routed approximately 1,300 LF to the east to Padua Avenue. The pipeline 
would then travel north along Padua Avenue approximately 3,200 LF to the west entrance of the 
Miramar Treatment Plant, and then approximately 1,050 LF to the east to the tie-in point (Figure 2). 
This route is preferred because it is the shortest route from the proposed well to the Miramar 
Treatment Plant and because construction along this route will not interfere with the existing utilities 
and residential water services and sewer laterals on Grand Avenue (between Baseline Road and 
Miramar Ave) as well as the large high pressure 10-foot diameter Metropolitan Water District 
(MWD) water transmission pipeline then runs east and west along Miramar Avenue. 

Item 7



1.2 PROJECT TITLE 

Proposed Grand Avenue Well & Pipeline (Proposed Project)  

1.3 LEAD AGENCY 

Three Valleys Municipal Water District 
1021 E. Miramar Avenue 
Claremont, California 91711 
 

1.4 INTENDED USES OF THE INITIAL STUDY 

This Initial Study is an informational document intended to inform the lead agency, other 
responsible or interested agencies, and the public of potential environmental effects of the 
Proposed Project. The environmental review process has been established to enable public 
agencies to evaluate potential environmental consequences and to examine and implement 
methods of eliminating or reducing any potential significant adverse impacts. 

Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



 Figure 3 Proposed Project Conceptual Construction Layout 

  

Source: Thomas Harder Company 

 

Item 7



Figure 4 Well No. 4 Conceptual Rendering 

Existing 

 

Perspective of Existing Vacant Lot from South End of Grand Avenue Looking East. 

 

Proposed  

Perspective of Proposed Project from South End of Grand Avenue Looking East. (Conceptual Rendering) 

Item 7



2.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

2.1 LOCATION 

The Proposed Project is located on property owned by TVMWD. The parcel was a former Caltrans 
property at the southeast end of the Grand Avenue cul-de-sac in the City of Claremont. The 
property is bounded by Grand Avenue to the west, the Foothill Freeway (SR 210) to the south and 
east, and the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints (Church) to the north (Figure 2). The well 
site property is roughly triangular in shape and is bounded by a Caltrans sound wall to separate it 
from the Foothill Freeway (Figure 3). The lot size has an area of approximately 3,400 square feet.  

2.2 ENVIRONMENTAL SETTING 

The City of Claremont is within the eastern portion of Los Angeles County. The cities of Montclair 
and Upland are located to the east, City of Pomona to the south, City of La Verne to the west, 
and unincorporated areas of Los Angeles County to the north. The City of Claremont is situated 
on an alluvial fan stemming from the San Gabriel Mountains to the north. San Antonio Wash is 
located along the eastern side of Claremont. Unincorporated areas of Los Angeles County to the 
north of Claremont include parks, wilderness areas, Angeles, and San Bernardino National Forests. 
Similar to the majority of southern California, Claremont is located within a seismically active area. 

2.3 GENERAL PLAN LAND USE DESIGNATION 

The Proposed Project is in the jurisdiction City of Claremont. The proposed well is located on a 
former Caltrans parcel and is designated as a County of Los Angeles property on the City of 
Claremont Zoning Map.  

2.4 ZONING 

The current County of Los Angeles Zoning for the parcel is Public Facilities. The proposed well is 
located on a former Caltrans parcel, which is designated as County of Los Angeles property. The 
associated pipeline is located within the jurisdiction of City of Claremont and will be installed within 
Grand Avenue, East Baseline Road, and Padua Avenue.  

2.5 SURROUNDING LAND USES  

North: E Baseline Road, existing parking lot and Church.  

East: SR 210 Foothill Freeway, existing sound wall and Caltrans vacant property.  

South: SR 210 Foothill Freeway.  

West: Grand Avenue, existing residential (town homes).   

Item 7



2.6 ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED 

The environmental factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project: 

 Aesthetics 

 Biological Resources 

 Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

 Land Use/Planning 

 Population/Housing 

 Transportation/Traffic 

 Tribal Cultural Resources 

 

 Agriculture and Forestry 
Resources 

 Cultural Resources 

 Hazards & Hazardous 
Materials 

 Mineral Resources 

 Public Services 

 Utilities/Service Systems 

 Air Quality  

 Geology/Soils 

 Hydrology & Water Quality 

 Noise 

 Recreation 

 Mandatory Findings of 
Significance  

  

Item 7



3.0 EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 

3.1 AESTHETICS 

 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista? 

No Impact. According to the Claremont General Plan, there are no scenic vistas within the City of 
Claremont. Therefore, the Proposed Project would not have substantial adverse effect on a scenic 
vista. The Proposed Project is located in the eastern region of the City of Claremont and is 
surrounded by urban residential land uses. Therefore, no impact would occur to scenic vistas.  

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock 
outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project would not damage scenic resources, including, but not limited 
to trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway. According to the 
Claremont General Plan, there are no state-designated scenic highways in the City of Claremont. 
The nearest designated state scenic highway to the Proposed Project site is Angeles Crest 
Highway, which is approximately 20 miles west of the site. Therefore, no damage to scenic 
resources would result from the Proposed Project. 

 

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

AESTHETICS:  Would the project: 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic 
vista? 

    

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, 
including, but not limited to, trees, rock 
outcroppings, and historic buildings within a 
state scenic highway? 

    

c) Substantially degrade the existing visual 
character or quality of the site and its 
surroundings? 

    

d) Create a new source of substantial light or 
glare which would adversely affect day or 
nighttime views in the area? 

    

Item 7



c)   Substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of the site and its surroundings? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The proposed well is located on a former Caltrans property at the 
southeast end of the Grand Avenue cul-de-sac in the City of Claremont. The property is bounded 
by Grand Avenue to the west, the Foothill Freeway (SR 210), which is divided by an approximately 
12-foot-tall Caltrans sound wall to the south and east, and the Church to the north. During 
construction, the portion of the lot frontage along Grand Avenue would be secured with a 
temporary chain link fence and sliding gate, which is typical of well construction projects. In 
addition, a temporary sound wall will be installed during construction to mitigate potential noise 
impacts to surrounding residents. Long term, aesthetics of the vacant lot would be improved with 
the construction of a well enclosure/building engineered to mitigate noise. Please refer to Figure 
4 for a conceptual rendering of the proposed well enclosure/building. The associated pipeline 
would be installed underground within Grand Avenue, East Baseline Road, and Padua Avenue 
and would not degrade the existing visual character of the streets. Overall, the Proposed Project 
would be designed to be aesthetically pleasing to its surrounding uses. Therefore, the Proposed 
Project would have a less than significant impact on the existing visual character of the 
surrounding area.  

d)   Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day or 
nighttime views in the area? 

Less Than Significant Impact.  The Proposed Project is in an area developed with various urban 
uses, including residential, commercial, and public facilities uses. External illumination already 
exists near the project area with moderate levels of ambient nighttime lighting including 
residential, street, and adjoining freeway lighting. Neighborhoods in the view shed of the Proposed 
Project may be exposed to a less than significant increase in outdoor night lighting. All lighting 
during construction and operations will be primarily focused toward the work area and shielded 
away from sensitive receptors. The Proposed Project would involve the construction of a well and 
pipeline, most of which would occur during the daylight hours except for critical periods of well 
drilling construction that would require continuous (24/7) construction activities. During operations, 
the approximate 400 square foot building that would house the proposed well and associated 
structures would have minimal outdoor security lighting so as not to create impacts to motorists 
on adjacent roadways or adjacent residential uses near the project site. All exterior lighting (both 
during construction and operation) would be designed, arranged, installed, directed, shielded, 
and maintained in such a manner as to minimize direct illumination. Onsite-lighting would be 
installed to accommodate safety and security while minimizing impacts on surrounding residents.  
Therefore, the Proposed Project would have a less than significant impact on new sources of 
substantial light or glare, which would adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area.     

Item 7



3.2 AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES 

 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance 
(Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and 
Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project includes the construction of a well on a former Caltrans property 
at the southeast end of the Grand Avenue cul-de-sac and associated pipeline in the City of 
Claremont. The Proposed Project would not convert any Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or 
Farmland of Statewide Importance to a non-agricultural use. The Proposed Project does not 
contain Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland). 
Consequently, the Project would not convert Farmland to a non-agricultural use. No impact would 
occur. 

 

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

AGRICULTURE AND FORESTRY RESOURCES:  Would the project: 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or 
Farmland of Statewide Importance 
(Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared 
pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and 
Monitoring Program of the California 
Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?  

    

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural 
use, or a Williamson Act contract?      

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause 
rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public 
Resources Code section 12220(g)), 
timberland (as defined by Public Resources 
Code section 4526, or timberland zoned 
Timberland Protection (as defined by 
Government Code section 51104(g))? 

    

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion 
of forest land to non-forest use?     

e) Involve other changes in the existing 
environment which, due to their location or 
nature, could result in conversion of farmland 
to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest 
land to non-forest use? 

    

Item 7



b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract? 

No Impact. Williamson Act contracts restrict land development of contract lands. The contracts 
typically limit land use in contract lands to agriculture, recreation, and open space, unless 
otherwise stated in the contract. The Proposed Project is not in the Williamson Act Conservation 
Contract database and would not conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use.   

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public 
Resources Code section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code section 
4526, or timberland zoned Timberland Protection (as defined by Government Code section 
51104(g))? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project is not zoned as forest land or timberland and does not include 
any timberland resources. The Project would have no impact on forest or timberland.  

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use? 

No Impact. There is no forest land or any land that is designated to the conservation of forest land 
within the Proposed Project. Therefore, the Proposed Project would have no impact on forest land.   

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, 
could result in conversion of farmland to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to 
non-forest use? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project is not located within proximity to any land zoned or utilized for 
farmland or forest land. The Proposed Project is within an urbanized area of the City of Claremont 
and would not result in the conversion of farmland to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest 
land to non-forest uses. No impact would occur.   

Item 7



3.3  AIR QUALITY 

 

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan? 

Less Than Significant Impact. Within the Proposed Project area, the South Coast Air Quality 
Management District (SCAQMD) and the Southern California Association of Governments (SCAG) 
have the responsibility for preparing an Air Quality Management Plan (AQMP), which addresses 
federal and state Clean Air Act requirements.  The AQMP details goals, policies, and programs for 
improving air quality and establishes thresholds for daily operational emissions.  Environmental 
review of individual projects within the region must demonstrate that daily construction and 
operational emissions thresholds as established by the SCAQMD would not be exceeded nor 
would the number or severity of existing air quality violations be increased.  Construction and 
operation of the Proposed Project would not exceed any SCAQMD construction or operational 
emissions thresholds.   

Actions in the General Plan undertaken to ensure the protection of good air quality include 
encouraging the use of green building technologies and cleaner fuels. Projects that are consistent 

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

AIR QUALITY:  Would the project: 

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of 
the applicable air quality plan?      

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute 
substantially to an existing or projected air 
quality violation?  

    

c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net 
increase of any criteria pollutant for which the 
project region is non-attainment under an 
applicable federal or state ambient air 
quality standard (including releasing 
emissions which exceed quantitative 
thresholds for ozone precursors)?  

    

d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial 
pollutant concentrations?      

e)  Create objectionable odors affecting a 
substantial number of people?      

f)  Diminish an existing air quality rule or future 
compliance requirement resulting in a 
significant increase in air pollutant(s)?  

    

Item 7



with the local General Plan are consistent with the AQMP assumptions.  Further, the Proposed 
Project would not have an impact on the type, size, or location of transportation infrastructure in 
the long-term and would thus be consistent with SCAG’s Regional Mobility Plan.  The construction 
and operation of the Proposed Project is not anticipated to exceed the AQMP’s daily emissions 
thresholds (as discussed in items b) and c) below) and would therefore not conflict with or obstruct 
the implementation of the AQMP.  As such, the impacts to the local or regional air quality or 
congestion management plans would be less than significant. 

b) Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality 
violation? 

Less Than Significant Impact. Emissions below the SCAQMD mass emissions thresholds of 
significance presented in Table 1 below would not be expected to violate any air quality standard 
or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality violation. As shown in Table 2 
below, estimated Proposed Project emissions are lower than the applicable SCAQMD regional 
and localized mass emissions thresholds of significant. The localized thresholds are based on a 
conservative approach in assuming a one-acre project site and an 80-foot distance to the nearest 
sensitive receptor. The Proposed Project site is approximately 0.078 acres for the installation of the 
new well and approximately 6,100 LF for the installation of the new pipeline. The nearest sensitive 
receptor is approximately 80 feet west to the Proposed Project and would not be impacted during 
operation, and emissions during construction based on these assumptions are below the 
applicable LSTs, and would have less than significant impact to any air quality standards or project 
air quality violations.  

c) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the 
project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality 
standard (including releasing emissions which exceed quantitative thresholds for ozone 
precursors)? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The Proposed Project would be located in the Pomona/Walnut 
Valley of the South Coast Air Basin (SCAB or Basin), directly adjacent to the Northwest San 
Bernardino Valley. Los Angeles County, as part of the SCAB, is designated as a “non-attainment” 
area for ozone (O3), respirable particulate matter (PM10), and fine particulate matter (PM2.5).  
The SCAB is a maintenance area for carbon monoxide (CO) and oxides of nitrogen (NOx), which 
denotes that it had once been a non-attainment area for the pollutant. SCAQMD maintains an 
extensive air quality-monitoring network to measure criteria pollutant concentrations throughout 
the Basin. The closest air monitoring station to the project is the Pomona site. SCAQMD has 
prepared the CEQA Air Quality Handbook to provide guidance to those who analyze the air 
quality impacts of proposed projects.  Based on Section 182(e) of the Federal Clean Air Act, 
SCAQMD has set significance thresholds for five criteria pollutants.  The SCAQMD significance 
threshold criteria are shown in the table below. 

Item 7



Table 1 SCAQMD Air Quality Impact Significance Thresholds 

Pollutant (Air Pollutant) Construction (lbs/day) Operational (lbs/day) 

Nitrogen Oxide (NOx) 100 55 

Volatile Organic Compounds (VOC)  75 55 

Particulate Matter (PM10) 150 150 

Particulate Matter (PM2.5) 55 55 

Sulfur Oxide (SOx)  150 150 

Carbon Monoxide (CO) 550 550 

Lead (Pb) 3 3 

Source: SCAQMD, CEQA Air Quality Handbook, 1993.  

 

The construction air quality analysis was conducted for the Proposed Project to determine 
construction-related emissions using the CalEEMod (Appendix A). Air contaminant emissions 
would result from the use of construction equipment and construction worker vehicles. Diesel 
emissions would result from truck trips associated with supply delivery, transport of excavated soil 
from pipeline trenching and well drilling, transport of backfill and paving materials, and 
construction of a small well head and well enclosure building. Fugitive emissions would result from 
soil hauling dust, paved road dust, and road re-paving. The analysis assumes that well installation 
and pipeline construction do not occur simultaneously, but potentially roadway re-paving and 
pipeline construction could overlap. The 6,100 LF of pipeline, well drilling, well head, and well 
enclosure building would take approximately 230 days to complete. The duration of well drilling 
construction activities is estimated to be three to four months. While phase two consists of well 
equipping construction, which would approximately take 12 to 14 months to complete. The well 
equipping construction consists of the pipeline, well enclosure/building, pump, motor, and 
electrical work. See table below for estimated daily construction emission totals.  

Construction activities are not anticipated to generate significant amounts of PM10. The emissions 
estimates in the table below for PM10 include dust from site preparation activities and from on-site 
construction equipment. As indicated in the table below, the daily emissions of this pollutant would 
be well below SCAQMD significance thresholds. 

 

Item 7



Item 7



d) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The Proposed Project is bordered by sensitive receptors with single-
family residential to the west and a church to the north. The pipeline portion is bordered by 
sensitive receptors along most of its 6100 LF length, including a school. However, daily construction 
emissions would be below significance thresholds and well drilling related construction activities 
would occur for no more than four months. Due to the presence of a school, construction activities 
for the pipeline may be scheduled during the summer break, when school activities would be low, 
or may be scheduled during non-peak rush hour times.  

Health impacts from pollutant exposure are modeled over the long term of several decades, and 
thus there is no known accepted methodology for determining health impacts from short-term 
construction exposure. However, because the Proposed Project would not result in the significant 
emissions of any pollutant of concern, it can be inferred that there would be no significant impact 
to sensitive receptors as a result of short-term exposure. Therefore, impacts from Proposed Project 
construction and operation would be less than significant. 

e) Create objectionable odors affecting a substantial number of people? 

Less Than Significant Impact. Odors (e.g., odors from construction vehicle emissions) would be 
controlled in accordance with SCAQMD Rule 402 (Nuisance Emissions).  Other than construction 
vehicle operation, no activities are anticipated to occur and no materials or chemicals would be 
stored on-site that would have the potential to cause odor impacts during the construction of the 
Proposed Project. No odors would be anticipated from the construction of the underground 
pipeline nor during operation of the water well. Therefore, construction and operation of the 
Proposed Project is anticipated to have less than significant odor impacts.  

Item 7



3.4 BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 

 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any 
species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of 
Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project is within an urbanized area in the City of Claremont. Proposed 
construction would occur below ground within an existing Caltrans paved vacant lot and within 

Issues 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact with 
Mitigation 

Incorporation 

Less than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES: Would the Project: 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either 
directly or through habitat modifications, on 
any species in local or regional plans, 
policies, or regulations, or by the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish 
and Wildlife Service? 

    

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any 
riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 
community identified in local or regional 
plans, policies, and regulations or by the 
California Department of Fish or U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife Service? 

    

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on 
federally protected wetlands as defined by 
Section 404 of the Clean Water Act 
(including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal 
pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, 
filling, hydrological interruption, or other 
means? 

    

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of 
any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife 
species or with established native resident or 
migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use 
of native wildlife nursery sites? 

    

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances 
protecting biological resources, such as a 
tree preservation policy or ordinance? 

    

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted 
habitat conservation plan, natural 
community conservation plan, or other 
approved local, regional, or state habitat 
conservation plan? 

    

Item 7



public right-of-way streets. The Proposed Project construction staging areas would be located in 
previously developed or highly disturbed areas along the public right-of-way with no likelihood of 
special-status plant and wildlife species in the area. Database searches determined that the 
Proposed Project area does not provide suitable habitat for any special-status wildlife, plant, or 
vegetation communities. The Proposed Project would not modify any natural habitats and no 
habitat impacts would be associated with construction and operation of the Proposed Project. 

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 
community identified in local or regional plans, policies, and regulations or by the California 
Department of Fish or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service? 

No Impact. Based on biological literature review, the Proposed Project would not fall within any 
riparian or sensitive natural community. Therefore, no impacts are associated with construction 
and operation of the Proposed Project. 

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on federally protected wetlands as defined by Section 404 
of the Clean Water Act (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) 
through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means? 

No Impact. Based on biological literature review, the Proposed Project would not contain any 
water features that would qualify as a jurisdictional wetland as defined by Section 404 of the Clean 
Water Act. In addition, the Proposed Project would not directly remove, fill, or hydrologically 
interrupt federally protected wetlands. Therefore, no impacts are associated with construction 
and operation of the Proposed Project. 

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife 
species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of 
native wildlife nursery sites? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project is not identified as part of a linkage system used by wildlife as 
movement corridors. The Proposed Project is located in an urbanized and heavily disturbed area 
and would not impact or interfere with established resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or 
impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites. Therefore, no impacts would occur.  

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree 
preservation policy or ordinance? 

No Impact. The project site is an existing paved parcel and public-right-of way in a developed 
area that includes residential uses and no sensitive habitat. Vegetation in the area consists of non-
native and ornamental species and thus construction and operation would not impact sensitive 
biological resources. The City of Claremont’s Municipal Code does not contain ordinances 
protecting trees or other biological resources on private property. Although the City does protect 
trees located on City property or within the City's public right-of-way under Chapter 12.26 (City 
Trees) of the City of Claremont’s Municipal Code. None of the trees are to be removed within the 

Item 7



City’s property or public right-of-way and tree removal is not anticipated within the vacant paved 
lot as a result of the Proposed Project since there are no trees on the lot. Consequently, the 
Proposed Project would not conflict with local policies or ordinances protecting biological 
resources or trees and no impact would occur.  

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted habitat conservation plan, natural community 
conservation plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan? 

No Impact. The project site is not within the boundaries of a Habitat Conservation Plan, nor are 
there any adopted habitat conservation plans located within the City of Claremont. The 
proposed Project would not cause a conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat 
Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or 
state habitat conservation plan.  Therefore, no impact would occur in this regard.  

Item 7



3.5 CULTURAL RESOURCES 

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as defined in 
§15064.5? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The City of Claremont General Plan identifies numerous nationally 
registered and significant historic buildings within the community. Buildings listed on the National 
Register of Historic Places include; the Pitzer House, the Claremont Depot, Padua Hills Theatre, 
Russian Village, and the original site of Scripps College. Other significant buildings include City Hall, 
the Post Office, Citrus Packing House, the Old-School House, Claremont Club House, and old stone 
buildings scattered throughout northern Claremont. These highly recognizable buildings are 
important cultural resources to the community (City of Claremont, 2006). Additionally, numerous 
neighborhoods and areas of the City are designated as having cultural significance. The Historic 
Claremont Zoning District was established in 1970, and the Arbol Verde Zoning District was created 
in 1991. In 1979, Russian Village was listed in the National Register as a historic neighborhood.  

The proposed well site at the southeast end of the Grand Avenue cul-de-sac is located along the 
southern boundary of the North Claremont neighborhood. The proposed pipeline alignment is 
within the neighborhoods of North Claremont, Northeast Claremont, and along the boundary of 
Northeast Claremont and the Pomona Valley Protective Association (PVPA) Spreading Grounds 
along Padua Road north of Baseline Road, as shown on the Neighborhoods Map within the City 
of Claremont General Plan. The Proposed Project site nor the pipeline alignment are within the 
vicinity of any of the historic neighborhoods, nationally registered buildings, or significant historic 
buildings mentioned within the City of Claremont General Plan. Therefore, the Proposed Project 
would have a less than significant impact on the significance of a historical resource.  

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource 
pursuant to §15064.5? 

Issues 
Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

CULTURAL RESOURCES:  Would the project: 

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource as 
defined in §15064.5?  

    

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of an archaeological resource 
pursuant to §15064.5? 

    

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique 
paleontological resource or site or unique 
geologic feature?  

    

d) Disturb any human remains, including those 
interred outside of formal cemeteries?      

Item 7



Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. The Proposed Project site is located 
within a previously disturbed urban area near the 210 freeway, which was extended 14 miles and 
constructed from 1999 to 2002. Due to the location of the site and proposed pipeline alignments 
in previously disturbed areas, it is unlikely that any archaeological resources would be 
encountered. In addition. the City of Claremont General Plan does not identify any specific 
archaeological features or resources within the City, though it does state the need for their 
preservation and protection within the goals and policies of the Land Use, Community Character, 
and Heritage Preservation Element. If any archaeological resources are encountered during 
construction or excavation activities, all work shall be halted near the archaeological discovery 
until a qualified archaeologist can assess the significance of the archaeological resource.  

On October 24, 2017, TVMWD notified California Native American tribes who had formally 
requested notification on CEQA projects under Assembly Bill 52.  The following tribes were notified: 
San Gabriel Band of Mission Indians, Torres Martinez Desert Cahuilla Indians, Suboba Band of 
Luiseno Indians, and Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians Kizh Nation. This notification afforded 
California Native American tribes the opportunity for consultation pursuant to Public Resources 
Code § 21080.3.1. TVMWD only received comments from the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians 
Kizh Nation and scheduled an in-person meeting to review the Proposed Project site. A cultural 
records search determined that no sensitive cultural resources were discovered within the 
Proposed Project site. Furthermore, no Native American cultural resources were discovered or 
encountered during the construction of the 210 Foothill Freeway extension in the early 2000’s, 
which runs east and west immediately south of the proposed well site. The freeway extension 
involved excavating a swath of land approximately 200 feet wide by over 10 miles long. Therefore, 
the possibility that Native American cultural resources may be encountered during construction 
(ground disturbing) activities of the Proposed Project is very low. The Kizh Nation recommended 
that mitigation measures be implemented to reduce or avoid potential impacts to tribal cultural 
resources. 

CUL-1: The Proposed Project Applicant shall be required to obtain the services of a licensed 
archeologist monitor during construction-related ground disturbance activities. Ground 
disturbance is defined as activities that include, but are not limited to, pavement removal, pot-
holing or auguring, grubbing, boring, grading, excavation, drilling, and trenching, within the 
Proposed Project area. The monitor would be present on-site during the construction phases that 
involve any ground disturbing activities. The monitor would complete monitoring logs daily. The 
logs would provide descriptions of the daily activities, including construction activities, locations, 
soil, and any cultural materials identified. The monitor would be required to provide insurance 
certificates, including liability insurance, for any archaeological resource(s) encountered during 
grading and excavation activities pertinent to the provisions outlined in the California 
Environmental Quality Act, California Public Resources Code Division 13, Section 21083.2 (a) 
through (k). The on-site monitoring shall end when the Proposed Project site grading and 
excavation activities are completed. 

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic 
feature? 

Item 7



Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. Significant vertebrate fossils are not 
typically found in the uppermost layers of coarser grained alluvial deposits or previously disturbed 
and backfilled areas typical of the site. Therefore, construction and excavation activities are 
unlikely to encounter significant paleontological resources. Well drilling and development would 
occur in sedimentary deposits that may contain paleontological resources. However, the 
possibility of identification of paleontological resources is not feasible due to the nature of well 
drilling. If any paleontological resources are encountered during construction or excavation 
activities, a qualified paleontologist shall be contacted to assess the significance of the 
paleontological resource. In addition, mitigation measures CUL-1 and CUL-2 shall be implemented 
in order to reduce or avoid potential impact to paleontological resources or unique geologic 
features. Therefore, impacts would be less than significant with mitigation incorporated to this 
criterion.  

d) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries? 

Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. The Proposed Project would be 
constructed within an area of prior disturbance. There are no known human remains or known 
cemeteries within the vicinity of the project site, and no conditions exist that suggest human 
remains are likely to be found on the project site. It is not anticipated that implementation of the 
Proposed Project would disturb human remains, including those interred outside of formal 
cemeteries. However, ground-disturbing activities, such as grading or excavation, have the 
potential to disturb human remains. If human remains are found, those remains would require 
proper treatment, in accordance with applicable laws. As a result, mitigation measure CUL-2 shall 
be implemented in order to avoid or lessen potential impacts to human remains from the 
construction of the Proposed Project. 

CUL-2: If human remains are encountered during ground disturbing activities, the applicant shall 
arrange a designated site location within the footprint of the Proposed Project area for the 
respectful reburial of the human remains and/or ceremonial objects. Any discoveries of human 
skeletal material shall be immediately reported to the County Coroner. The monitor shall 
immediately divert work at minimum of 50 feet and place an exclusion zone around the burial. 
The monitor shall then notify the applicant’s qualified archaeologist and the construction 
manager who shall call the coroner. Work shall continue to be diverted while the coroner 
determines whether the remains are Native American. The discovery is to be kept confidential 
and secure to prevent any further disturbance. If Native American, the coroner shall notify the 
NAHC as mandated by state law. In the case where discovered human remains cannot be fully 
documented and recovered on the same day, the remains shall be covered with muslin cloth 
and a steel plate that can be moved by heavy equipment placed over the excavation opening 
to protect the remains. If this type of steel plate is not available, a 24-hour guard should be posted 
outside of working hours. The Tribe shall make every effort to recommend diverting the project 
and keeping the remains in situ and protected. If the project cannot be diverted, it shall be 
determined that burials will be removed. The Tribe shall work closely with the applicant’s qualified 
archaeologist to ensure that the excavation is treated carefully, ethically, and respectfully. If data 
recovery is approved by the Tribe, documentation shall be taken which includes at a minimum 

Item 7



detailed descriptive notes and sketches. Cremations shall be removed in bulk to ensure complete 
recovery of all material. If the discovery of human remains includes 4 or more burials, the location 
is considered a cemetery and a separate treatment plan shall be created. The project applicant 
shall consult with the Tribe regarding avoidance of all cemetery sites. Once complete, a final 
report of all activities are to be submitted to the NAHC. The Tribe shall not authorize any scientific 
study or the utilization of any invasive diagnostics on human remains. If the coroner determines 
the remains represent a historic non-Native American burial, the burial shall be treated in the same 
manner of respect with agreement of the coroner. If the coroner determines the remains to be 
modern, the coroner shall take custody of the remains.  

Each occurrence of human remains and associated funerary objects shall be stored using 
opaque cloth bags. All human remains, funerary objects, sacred objects, and objects of cultural 
patrimony shall be removed to a secure container on site if possible. These items shall be retained 
and reburied within six months of recovery. There shall be no publicity regarding any cultural 
materials recovered.

Item 7



3.6 GEOLOGY AND SOILS 

a) Expose people or structures to potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, 
injury, or death involving? 

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

GEOLOGY AND SOILS:  Would the project: 

a) Expose people or structures to potential 
substantial adverse effects, including the risk 
of loss, injury, or death involving? 

    

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, 
as delineated on the most recent 
Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning 
Map issued by the State Geologist for 
the area or based on other substantial 
evidence of a known fault?  Refer to 
Division of Mines and Geology Special 
Publication 42? 

    

 ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?     

iii) Seismic-related ground failure, 
including liquefaction?     

 iv) Landslides?     

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of 
topsoil?       

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is 
unstable, or that would become unstable as 
a result of the project, and potentially result in 
on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction of collapse? 

    

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in 
Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building code 
(1997), creating substantial risks to life or 
property?   

    

e) Have soils incapable of adequately 
supporting the use of septic tanks or 
alternative wastewater disposal systems 
where sewers are not available for the 
disposal of wastewater? 

    

Item 7



i. Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo 
Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on 
other substantial evidence of a known fault? 

No Impact. The Project site is not located in an Alquist-Priolo Special Studies Zone, and no known 
active faults are mapped as crossing or projecting toward the project site area. Due to the 
absence of active faults near the Proposed Project, the risk of damage due to fault rupture during 
an earthquake is limited. In addition, no faults within or near the City have been placed within 
State of California established Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zones, which are subject to special 
land use controls and building standards. Therefore, no impact would occur. 

ii. Strong seismic ground shaking? 

Less Than Significant Impact. Claremont is in a seismically active region and residents could 
potentially be exposed to dangers caused by earthquakes and ground shaking. Construction of 
the well, pipeline, and building enclosure would comply with all relevant local and state seismic 
safety standards, including the California Building Code. Therefore, impacts associated with 
ground shaking would be less than significant.  

iii. Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction? 

Less Than Significant Impact. Liquefaction occurs when ground water is forced out of the pores of 
soil as it subsides. This excess water momentarily liquefies the soil, causing an almost complete loss 
of strength. If this layer is at the surface, its effect is much like that of quicksand for any structure 
located on it. If the liquefied layer is in the subsurface, the material above it may slide laterally 
depending on the confinement of the unstable mass. The risk of liquefaction at the Project site is 
low due to the depth to groundwater being greater than 100 feet below ground surface (bgs). 
The Proposed Project area is generally flat with a zero to five percent slope. On the other side of 
the Caltrans sound wall, there is artificial slope that is relatively steep. Areas subject to slope 
instability contain slopes of 30 percent or greater. The Project site is also shown to be outside of 
any area likely to be effected by landslides or liquefaction in the Earthquake Induced Landslides 
and Liquefaction Map, within the City of Claremont General Plan (City of Claremont, 2006). 
Therefore, effects related to slope instability, liquefaction, or landslides at the Project site would be 
less than significant. 

iv. Landslides? 

Less Than Significant Impact. Landslides often occur during or after strong earthquakes. According 
to the City of Claremont General Plan Safety Element, the Project site is identified as susceptible 
to landslides. However, the Project does not involve construction of habitable structures. 
Therefore, Project impacts related to exposing people or structures to potential substantial 
adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving landslides would be less than 
significant.  

Item 7



b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil? 

Less Than Significant Impact. There would be no loss of topsoil or erosion involved with subsurface 
trenching for the conveyance piping and underground utilities. Short-term erosion impacts due to 
general construction activities are anticipated. Exposed soils from excavation activities are 
susceptible to erosion by vehicle traffic, wind, and rain. Heavy rains may cause run off into public 
rights-of-way and/or storm drainage systems. The contractor would develop and implement an 
erosion control plan to mitigate the loss of soil from the Proposed Project site. The erosion control 
plan would implement Best Management Practices (BMPs) including, but not limited to, the 
placement of sandbags and straw waddles around the well drilling site and any soil stockpiles. 
The development and implementation of an erosion control plan would keep impacts resulting 
from construction to less than significant levels. The Proposed Project site would be paved or 
covered with gravel and no areas of exposed soil would be exposed to the erosional effects of 
wind or water. As such, a less than significant impact on soil erosion or loss of topsoil is expected 
as a result of construction and operation of the Proposed Project. 

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a 
result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, 
subsidence, liquefaction or collapse? 

Less Than Significant Impact. A Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) is not required and 
would not be prepared since the project size area is less than one acre. In addition, the Proposed 
Project would comply with NPDES permits and a settling system would be installed for water control 
of approximately 800 gallons per minute. The release of water would be gradual and would not 
be released all at once nor during a rainstorm event. Construction of the well and pipeline would 
not occur during the rainy season and therefore impacts would be less than significant.  

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building code (1997), 
creating substantial risks to life or property? 

No lmpact. Expansive soils generally have a significant amount of clay particles which can give 
up water (shrink) or take on water (swell). The change in volume exerts stress on buildings and 
other loads placed on these soils. The extent of shrink/swell is influenced by the amount and kind 
of clay in the soil. The occurrence of these soils is often associated with geologic units having 
marginal stability. The distribution of expansive soils can be widely dispersed and they can occur 
in hillside areas as well as low-lying alluvial basins. No expansive soil conditions are identified on 
the Project site. Consequently, there would be no impact related to expansive soils. 

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative 
wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of wastewater? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project does not include the construction of new septic tanks or 
alternative wastewater disposal systems. Therefore, no impact would occur.

Item 7



3.7 GREENHOUSE GAS 

 

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant 
impact on the environment? 

Less Than Significant Impact.  On-site grading and construction activities would generate carbon 
dioxide, which is a primary component of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. To assess the potential 
short-term air quality impacts of the Proposed Project, this analysis relies on the City of Claremont 
General Plan Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR). The Final EIR relies on compliance with AB 
32 (California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006) implementation guidance as a benchmark 
for evaluating the significance of greenhouse gas emissions associated with the General Plan. 
Implementation of the GHG reduction strategies and measures in the City of Claremont General 
Plan to achieve its GHG reduction target of 15 percent below 2009 levels by 2020. This is within the 
threshold set by AB 32. Consequently, the Final EIR finds that greenhouse gas emissions associated 
with the General Plan would be less than significant. Similarly, because the Proposed Project is 
consistent with the City of Claremont General Plan, it would result in less than significant 
greenhouse gas emissions.  

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing 
the emissions of greenhouse gases? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The Legislature enacted AB 32 the California Global Warming 
Solutions Act of 2006, which was signed on September 27, 2006, to further the goals of Executive 
Order S-3-05. (Health and Safety Code, S38500 et seq.) AB 32 requires the California Air Resources 
Board (CARB) to adopt statewide greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions limits to achieve statewide 
GHG emissions levels realized in 1990 by 2020. A longer-range goal requires an eighty percent 
(80%) reduction in GHG emissions from 1990 levels by 2050. CARB adopted the 2020 statewide 
target and mandatory reporting requirements in December 2007 and a statewide scoping plan 
in December 2008 (the AB 32 Scoping Plan). 

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

GREENHOUSE GASES:  Would the project: 

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either 
directly or indirectly, that may have a 
significant impact on the environment?   

    

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of 
reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases?  

    

Item 7



The Proposed Project would not conflict with any applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted 
for the purpose of reducing GHG emissions.  Implementation of the GHG reduction strategies and 
measures in the City of Claremont General Plan to achieve its GHG reduction target consistent 
with AB 32. Consequently, the Final EIR finds that the General Plan would result in less than 
significant impacts relative to conflicts with applicable GHG policies. Similarly, because the 
Proposed Project is consistent with the City of Claremont General Plan, it also would result in less 
than significant impacts relative to conflicts with applicable GHG policies.  

Item 7



3.8 HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS 

 

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS:  Would the project: 

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or 
the environment through the routine 
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous 
materials?   

    

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or 
the environment through reasonably 
foreseeable upset and accident conditions 
involving the release of hazardous materials 
into the environment?  

    

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle 
hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, 
substances, or waste within one-quarter mile 
of an existing or proposed school? 

    

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list 
of hazardous materials sites compiled 
pursuant to Government Code Section 
65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a 
significant hazard to the public or the 
environment?  

    

e) For a project located within an airport land 
use plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a public airport 
or public use airport, would the project result 
in a safety hazard for people residing or 
working in the project area?   

    

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private 
airstrip, would the project result in a safety 
hazard for people residing or working in the 
project area? 

    

g) Impair implementation of or physically 
interfere with an adopted emergency 
response plan or emergency evacuation 
plan? 

    

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk 
of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires, 
including where wildlands are adjacent to 
urbanized areas or where residences are 
intermixed with wildlands? 

    

Item 7



a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, 
use, or disposal of hazardous materials? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The Proposed Project would not utilize acutely hazardous materials 
(as defined in Title 22 Cal. Code Regs. § 66260.10). Hazardous materials that may be utilized 
include diesel fuel, gasoline, oils, and solvents typically associated with standard construction 
vehicles and equipment. All materials would be routinely transported, used, and disposed of in 
accordance with any applicable laws, regulations, and protocols that protect the environment, 
the public, and workers.  TVMWD currently has a Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasures 
Plan (SPCC), which helps to minimize occurrences and effects of hazardous or toxic spills and leaks 
during water treatment activities. No water treatment activities would occur at the well site as 
water will be pumped to the Miramar Treatment Plant. Once the Proposed Project is constructed, 
TVMWD would update SPCC to include a site-specific plan for Well No. 4. Compliance with all 
applicable laws and regulations would reduce the potential impact associated with the routine 
transport, use, storage, or disposal of hazardous materials to a less than significant level. 

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable 
upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the 
environment? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The Proposed Project would utilize limited amounts of hazardous 
materials such as gas, diesel fuel, oils, and solvents associated with standard construction vehicles 
and equipment. Reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions could include small spills 
or leaks. However, impacts are considered less than significant due to the limited amounts of 
hazardous materials that would be used.  

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or 
waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or proposed school? 

Less Than Significant Impact. No existing or proposed schools have been identified within 0.25 mile 
of the Proposed Project site. However, one school, Western Christian School, is located on Padua 
Avenue directly adjacent to the west of the proposed pipeline route to the Miramar Treatment 
Plant.  The Proposed Project would utilize limited amounts of hazardous materials such as gas, 
diesel fuel, oils, and solvents associated with standard construction vehicles and equipment, within 
the public right-of-way. All materials would be routinely transported, used, and disposed of in 
accordance with any applicable laws, regulations, and protocols that protect the environment, 
the public, and workers. Therefore, the Proposed Project would have less than significant impacts 
on existing or proposed schools.  

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled 
pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant 
hazard to the public or the environment? 

Item 7



No Impact. The Proposed Project is not located within any sites that are included on a list of 
hazardous materials sites pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5. Therefore, the Proposed 
Project would not create a significant hazard to the public or environment.  

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project result in 
a safety hazard for people residing or working in the project area? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project is not located within an airport land use plan or within two miles 
of a public airport. Therefore, the Proposed Project would not result in a safety hazard for people 
working or residing in the Project area.  

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project result in a safety hazard 
for people residing or working in the project area? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project is not located within the vicinity of a private airstrip.  Therefore, 
there would be no impacts to people residing or working in the Project area.  

g) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan 
or emergency evacuation plan? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The Proposed Project would not impair or physically interfere with an 
adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan. The Proposed Project would 
construct a new water well on a vacant paved former Caltrans parcel (that is owned by TVMWD) 
and install a new pipeline connecting the well to the Miramar Treatment Plant within public right-
of-way. Grand Avenue is a public street that is located along the western property line of the 
vacant lot. This portion of the street provides emergency access to the Stone Creek Townhomes 
located to the west of Grand Avenue. Construction activities would not interfere with the 
emergency vehicles ability to access the Stone Creek townhomes. The turning radius of fire trucks 
to access the Stone Creek townhomes during an emergency response would be coordinated 
and discussed with the Fire Department prior to construction to ensure emergency vehicle access 
is maintained during construction. In addition, coordination of temporary lane closures would 
occur with the City of Claremont Community Development Department, to ensure that all 
roadways along the installation of the new water pipeline alignment would remain accessible to 
emergency vehicles. Any traffic detours would take into account emergency response and 
evacuation procedures. After construction, fire access would be available to the well building. 
Therefore, construction activities and well operations would create a less than significant impact.  
 
h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires, 

including where wildlands are adjacent to urbanized areas or where residences are 
intermixed with wildlands? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project is not located within wildlands. Construction activities related to 
installation of the water pipeline would be restricted to within the street. Appropriate fire safety 
and control measures shall be implemented throughout the duration of construction. Therefore, 
no impacts associated with construction are expected.

Item 7



3.9 HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY  

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY:  Would the project: 

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste 
discharge requirements?      

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or 
interfere substantially with groundwater 
recharge such that there would be a net 
deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the 
local groundwater table level (e.g., the 
production rate of pre-existing nearby wells 
would drop to a level which would not 
support existing land uses or planned uses for 
which permits have been granted)?   

    

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage 
pattern of the site or area, including through 
the alteration of the course of a stream or 
river, in a manner which would result in 
substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site? 

    

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage 
pattern of the site or area, including through 
the alteration of the course of a stream or 
river, or substantially increase the rate or 
amount of surface runoff in a manner which 
would result in flooding on- or off-site? 

    

e) Create or contribute runoff water which 
would exceed the capacity of existing or 
planned stormwater drainage systems or 
provide substantial additional sources of 
polluted runoff? 

    

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water 
quality?     

g) Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard 
area as mapped on a federal flood Hazard 
Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or 
other flood hazard delineation map? 

    
 
 

h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area 
structures which would impede or redirect 
flood flows? 

    

i) Expose people or structures to a significant risk 
of loss, injury or death involving flooding, 
including flooding as a result of the failure of 
a levee or dam? 

    

Item 7



 

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements? 

Less Than Significant Impact. During drilling and testing of the well, the water generated during 
pumping would be discharged to the local storm drain. The TVMWD would comply with its NPDES 
discharge permit to avoid water quality impacts to waters downstream. The total volume of water 
anticipated to be generated as a result of the well development and testing is approximately 
4,500,000 gallons. In addition, soil bins and temporary holding tanks for drilling fluids would also be 
staged at the well location.  Soil exposure during excavation, grading, and other construction 
activities may allow for possible erosion and runoff into storm drains.  Proposed Project grading is 
anticipated to be less than 0.08 acre; therefore, a formal stormwater pollution prevention plan is 
not required.  However, because of the proximity to residences adjacent to the Project site and 
the pipeline alignment, the contractor, as part of the standard contract, would utilize best 
management practices (BMPs) to minimize soil and debris from being tracked or otherwise 
distributed to the adjacent residences.  Thus, although construction of the Proposed Project has 
the potential to violate water quality standards during construction, the soil exposure would be 
temporary, localized, and undertaken with BMPs to control runoff and erosion, thereby resulting in 
less than significant impact due to erosion or runoff.  

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater 
recharge such that there would be a net deficit in aquifer volume or a lowering of the local 
groundwater table level (e.g., the production rate of pre-existing nearby wells would drop to 
a level which would not support existing land uses or planned uses for which permits have 
been granted)? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The Three Valleys Municipal Water District Six Basins Strategic Plan 
identifies that the overall San Gabriel Valley Groundwater basin is designated as a “high priority” 
basin. It is not, however, considered a “critically over drafted” basin.  The 1998 adjudication of the 
Six Basins and the Stipulated Judgement is in force and charges the Water master with operating 
the basin to maintain a “safe yield.” The Six Basins are not subject to compliance with the 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act of 2014 (SGMA), but they are under the jurisdiction 
of the Six Basins Water master and subject to the Six Basins Judgment, which serves as the 
groundwater management plan for the basins. The Strategic Plan provides management 
strategies beyond the Stipulated Judgment. Wildermuth Environmental is the Water master for the 
basin and is responsible for ensuring that the basin is managed to meet sustainable safe yield 
goals. The Proposed Project would pump groundwater from the Upper Claremont Heights Basin 
and would discharge it into an 8-inch diameter untreated water main. The Upper Claremont 
Heights Basin is adjudicated and subject to a physical solution that stipulates it be operated within 
a sustainable yield. TVMWD has a storage account within the basin. Groundwater pumped from 
the well would be in accordance with the storage agreement in accordance with the 

j) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow?     

Item 7



Judgement. The groundwater quality in the vicinity of the Grand Avenue Well site is generally 
expected to be very good. That area includes geology and land use that promote natural and 
artificial replenishment through surface spreading. The more southerly and westerly portions of the 
Six Basins generally see higher levels of nitrate and volatile organic compounds (VOCs) due to 
past agricultural land use and industrial contamination, respectively. Many producers with wells in 
this area employ wellhead treatment facilities that allow delivery of the groundwater for potable 
use.  

Pumping from the Grand Avenue Well would create a localized cone of depression that would 
extend out in accordance with the hydrogeologic properties of the aquifer.  As there are existing 
wells located in the vicinity of the proposed Grand Avenue Well, there is the potential for pumping 
interference.  Analysis of potential lowered groundwater levels as a result of Grand Avenue Well 
pumping was conducted by Wildermuth Environmental for the Six Basins Water master (Appendix 
B).  The analysis predicted a maximum of approximately 20 feet. of groundwater level lowering at 
the well over the 54-year hydrologic simulation period analyzed by Wilder-muth Environmental.  
Groundwater levels at the nearest existing wells, which are approximately 1,300 ft. away, are 
predicted to be as much as approximately 13 feet lower over the 54-year model simulation period 
as a result of Grand Avenue Well Pumping interference. In addition to the Grand Avenue Well, 
TVMWD may construct and pump an additional new well (Well 3), which is approximately 1.3 miles 
west of the Grand Avenue Well.  The cumulative groundwater level lowering at the existing wells 
closest to the Grand Avenue Well is predicted to be on the order of 21 feet, if Well 3 is constructed 
and both the Grand Avenue Well and Well 3 are pumping. As documented in Wildermuth 
Environmental (Appendix B), maximum groundwater pumping from the Grand Avenue Well and 
Well 3 are unlikely to cause groundwater levels to decline below sustainability thresholds for other 
wells in the basin.  It is possible that the resulting lower groundwater level would cause increased 
pumping lift for other wells, particularly during periods of below normal precipitation when 
groundwater levels are already low.   During wet periods when groundwater levels are high, 
pumping of the Grand Avenue Well would be beneficial to mitigate high groundwater levels in 
areas of liquefaction potential. Therefore, the Proposed Project would have less than significant 
impacts to the potential depletion of groundwater supplies or interference with groundwater 
recharge.   

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a manner which would result in substantial 
erosion or siltation on- or off-site? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The Proposed Project would be constructed on a vacant asphalt 
paved lot located at the end of the cul-de-sac of Grand Avenue. The pipeline would be buried 
beneath currently paved streets. The current draining pattern of the Proposed Project site allows 
water runoff to flow to an existing storm drain at the end of the cul-de-sac near the Project site. In 
order to construct (drill) the proposed well, it would be necessary to extend a portion of the existing 
curb and gutter located in the southwest edge of the church parking lot. This would allow the 
rainfall runoff to be directed towards the west into Grand Avenue and then flow south for a short 
distance towards the existing catch basin which has sufficient capacity to accommodate the 

Item 7



anticipated runoff. The existing curb and gutter currently directs (allows) rain fall run off from a 
portion of the church property through the Proposed Project site and would not interfere with 
construction and operation of the well. The engineering hydrology (run off) calculations indicate 
the resulting potential impacts would be less than significant (please see Appendix C). Therefore, 
there would be less than significant impact to this criterion. 

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river, or substantially increase the rate or amount of 
surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The Proposed Project would be constructed on a vacant asphalt 
paved lot abutting the 210 freeway. The pipeline would be constructed along paved roads within 
the public-right-of-way. The existing grades of the Proposed Project would be analyzed and an 
analysis of the capacity of the existing catch basin would be performed in order to ensure the 
rate or amount of surface run off would not result in flooding on-or off-site. Construction of the 
Proposed Project would not alter the course of a stream or river nor would it change the rate or 
amount of surface runoff that would result in erosion or flooding to the nearby Stone Creek town 
homes or on Grand Avenue. Operation of the Proposed Project would occur at grade or below 
ground and would not alter the existing grade, drainage pattern of the area, or substantially 
increase the rate or amount of surface runoff.  Therefore, less than significant impact is anticipated 
as a result of construction and operation of the Proposed Project.   

e) Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned 
stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff? 

Less Than Significant Impact.  The Proposed Project facilities would be constructed within existing 
disturbed areas.  No flooding would occur on or off-site as a result of the proposed drainage 
modifications. Any new impervious surface areas would be minimal and be conveyed using 
standard drainage BMP. Thus, there would be less than significant impacts to this criterion.   

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The Proposed Project would deliver groundwater to the Miramar 
Treatment Plant for treatment and disinfection prior to delivery to potable use customers. The well 
would be drilled utilizing standard well drilling procedures and sanitary seals.  Therefore, the impact 
to water quality would be less than significant.   

g) Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard area as mapped on a federal flood Hazard 
Boundary or Flood Insurance Rate Map or other flood hazard delineation map? 

No Impact. No residential housing would be constructed as part of the Proposed Project. As a 
result, construction and operation of the Proposed Project would not place housing within a 100-
year flood hazard area as mapped on a Federal Flood Hazard Map or Federal Flood Insurance 
Map. Therefore, no impacts would occur under this criterion as a result of the Proposed Project. 

Item 7



h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area structures which would impede or redirect flood 
flows? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project site is not located within a 100-year flood hazard area and no 
habitable structures would be constructed as part of the Proposed Project that would be placed 
within a 100-year flood hazard area. The Proposed project site is located in an area designated 
as "Zone X- Area of Minimal Flood Hazard" on the effective Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 
published by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). As a result, no impacts would 
occur.  

i) Expose people or structures to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving flooding, 
including flooding as a result of the failure of a levee or dam? 

No Impact. The components of the Proposed Project are not located near a dam or levee, 
therefore, there would be no risk of injury or flooding as a result of a levee or dam failure. No 
impacts would occur.  

j) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow? 

No Impact. A tsunami is a series of waves generated in a body of water by pulsating or abrupt 
disturbance that vertically displaces water. Inundation of the Proposed Project’s site by a tsunami 
is highly unlikely as the Proposed Project site is approximately 50 miles northeast from the Pacific 
Ocean at an elevation of approximately 1,487 feet above sea level. In addition, there are no 
enclosed bodies of water within the vicinity of the Proposed Project. Because the Proposed Project 
is not located adjacent to any enclosed bodies of water, no seiche, mudflow or tsunami related 
flooding is anticipated to occur on site. No impacts would occur. 

Item 7



3.10 LAND USE AND PLANNING  

 

a) Physically divide an established community? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project would not physically divide an established community. The 
Proposed Project consists of a groundwater well and associated underground piping. The 
Proposed Project would not construct any residential homes on the project site. The Proposed 
Project would include a small building to house the well head and electrical facilities only. There 
are no existing structures on the Proposed Project site. Therefore, the Proposed Project would not 
impact established communities. 

b) Conflict with any applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with jurisdiction 
over the project (including, but not limited to the general plan, specific plan, local coastal 
program, or zoning ordinance) adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an 
environmental effect? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The Proposed Project would not conflict with any applicable land 
use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency. The Proposed Project operations would occur mostly 
underground and would not impose impacts on surrounding or off-site land uses.  The Proposed 
Project is located on a former Caltrans lot that is owned by TVMWD and is designated as a County  
of Los Angeles land use, but in the jurisdiction of the City of Claremont. Therefore, less than 
significant impacts are anticipated to result from the Proposed Project.  

c) Conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural community conservation 
plan? 

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

LAND USE AND PLANNING:  Would the project: 

a) Physically divide an established community?      

b) Conflict with any applicable land use plan, 
policy, or regulation of an agency with 
jurisdiction over the project (including, but 
not limited to the general plan, specific plan, 
local coastal program, or zoning ordinance) 
adopted for the purpose of avoiding or 
mitigating an environmental effect? 

    

c) Conflict with any applicable habitat 
conservation plan or natural community 
conservation plan?  

    

Item 7



No Impact. According to the Open Space Element of the City of Claremont General Plan, the 
Proposed Project would not conflict with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural 
community conservation plan. No off-site impacts are anticipated from the Project. No impacts 
are anticipated to occur from conflicts with any applicable habitat conservation plan or natural 
community conservation plan.  

Item 7



3.11 MINERAL RESOURCES 

 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the 
region and the residents of the state? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The Proposed Project would not result in the loss of availability of a 
known mineral resource that would be of value because the Proposed Project and construction 
activities would not result in a significant removal of soil. The soil that would be displaced by the 
Proposed Project would be moved off-site and reused in order to preserve potentially significant 
minerals. The Proposed Project would not result in the loss or availability of mineral resources that 
would be of value to the region. Therefore, the Proposed Project would have a less than significant 
impact to mineral resources.  

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site 
delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The City of Claremont General Plan states that the area outlined for 
the Proposed Project is classified as a Mineral Resource Zone 2 (MRZ-2). A MRZ-2 region is not 
known to have significant mineral resources. Therefore, the construction and operation of the 
Proposed Project would not result in significant loss of availability of locally important mineral 
resources as designated by the City of Claremont. The Proposed Project would not result in a 
significant removal amount of excess soil. Therefore, the Proposed Project would have a less than 
significant impact on the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource. 

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

MINERAL RESOURCES:  Would the project: 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known 
mineral resource that would be of value to 
the region and the residents of the state? 

    

b)  Result in the loss of availability of a locally 
important mineral resource recovery site 
delineated on a local general plan, specific 
plan or other land use plan? 

    

Item 7



3.12 NOISE 

 

a) Exposure of persons to or generation of noise levels in excess of standards established in the 
local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies? 

Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. The Noise Element regulates noise in the 
City of Claremont General Plan. The Noise Element references the community noise exposure level 
(CNEL) standard for single-family in the City of Claremont as 60 CNEL as “normally acceptable.” 
City of Claremont General Plan shows that existing residential noise levels surrounding the 
Proposed Project site are also no more than 65 CNEL. The Proposed Project abuts the 210 Freeway, 
which is a major source of noise with typical CNEL levels exceeding 70 decibels. The General Plan 
sets both day and night maximum allowable noise levels for residential land uses by designating 
“noise zones.” The Proposed Project site is adjacent to residential uses to the west and the 210 
freeway to the south and east. The pipeline’s length would be bordered by residential uses 
throughout most of its length, as well as sensitive receptors such as a church and a school. 

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

NOISE:  Would the project: 

a) Exposure of persons to or generation of noise 
levels in excess of standards established in the 
local general plan or noise ordinance, or 
applicable standards of other agencies?  

    

b) Exposure of persons to or generation of 
excessive ground borne vibration or ground 
borne noise levels?  

    

c) A substantial permanent increase in ambient 
noise levels in the project vicinity above levels 
existing without the project?   

    

d) A substantial temporary or periodic increase 
in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity 
above levels existing without the project?  

    

e) For a project located within an airport land 
use plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a public airport 
or public use airport, would the project 
expose people residing or working in the 
project area to excessive noise levels?  

    

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private 
airstrip, would the project expose people 
residing or working in the project area to 
excessive noise levels? 

    

Item 7



Construction of the Proposed Project would include the operation of conventional construction 
equipment that could exceed noise level standards adopted by the City. The potential noise 
impact on the surrounding residences and church during well construction activities and 
operation of the well are potential noise concerns for the Proposed Project. Due to the distance 
between the Proposed Project well enclosure and the Stone Creek town homes, it is anticipated 
that the Project would not cause a permanent increase in noise in the Project vicinity or 
neighborhood. Temporary Project noise impacts to the residences that are immediately adjacent 
to the Project well site during well drilling and construction would be mitigated with the installation 
of temporary sound walls to be placed between the well site and residences in order to comply 
with the Claremont noise standards. Additionally, construction of the pipeline may occur during 
the summer months, when school is out of session to avoid potential noise impacts to the school. 
Proposed Project operation would be supported by an electric pump, which produces limited 
noise. The well pump and motor would be housed in an enclosure that would also reduce noise 
levels associated with operation. The well enclosure would have engineered sound panels to 
reduce noise levels during well pump operation. Operation and construction of the Proposed 
Project is not expected to substantially increase ambient noise levels or exceed an established 
threshold. However, mitigation is identified below to reduce this potential impact to a less than 
significant level. 

Mitigation Measures  

NOS-1: For all construction related activities, noise attenuation techniques shall be employed as 
needed to ensure that noise remains as low as possible during construction. The following potential 
noise attenuation techniques shall be incorporated into contract specifications to reduce the 
impact of construction noise:   

• Construction equipment shall be equipped with properly operating and maintained 
mufflers consistent with manufacturer’s standards. 

• Noise-generating construction equipment and construction staging areas shall be located 
away from sensitive receptors, where feasible. 

• During well drilling and construction, a 24-ft high noise attenuation panels shall be placed 
between the well site and nearby residences. 

• High noise-producing activities shall be scheduled between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m. to minimize disruption to sensitive receptors. 

• Construction of the new pipeline in the vicinity of the school (Western Christian) may occur 
during the summer months to limit noise exposure to the adjacent school. Normal 
construction for the pipeline shall take place Monday through Saturday to limit noise 
exposure to the adjacent church and residential housing.  

Item 7



• All stationary construction equipment (e.g. air compressor, generators, impact wrenches, 
etc.) shall be operated as far away from residential uses as possible and shall be shielded 
with temporary sound barriers, sound aprons or sound curtains. 

• Construction-related equipment, including heavy-duty equipment, motor vehicles, and 
portable equipment, shall be turned off when not in use for more than 30 minutes. 

• During normal construction activities, the job superintendent shall limit construction-related 
activities to between the hours 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Monday through Saturday. There 
would be critical periods during well drilling construction that would require continuous 
(24/7) construction activities. The estimated total duration of the various critical 24/7 
construction periods is about 20 to 30 days.  

• Clearly post construction hours, allowable workdays, and the phone number of the job 
superintendent at all construction entrances to allow the surrounding property 
owners/occupants to contact the job superintendent. If the City or the job superintendent 
receives a complaint, the superintendent shall investigate, take appropriate corrective 
actions, and report the actions to the complainant.  

• Engineered sound panels shall be installed inside of well enclosure/building in order to 
reduce potential operation noise levels. 

b) Exposure of persons to or generation of excessive ground borne vibration or ground borne 
noise levels? 

Less Than Significant lmpact. Vibration refers to ground borne noise and perceptible motion. 
Typical sources of ground borne vibration are construction activities (e.g., blasting, pile driving, 
and operating heavy-duty earthmoving equipment), steel-wheeled trains, and occasional traffic 
on rough roads. The United States Department of Transportation Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA) provides guidelines for maximum-acceptable vibration criteria for different types of land 
uses. These guidelines allow 80 VdB for residential uses and buildings where people normally sleep. 
Well construction activity can result in varying degrees of groundbome vibration, depending on 
the equipment and methods used, distance to the affected structures and soil type. Construction 
equipment such as air compressors, light trucks, hydraulic loaders, etc., generates little or no 
ground vibration. Occasionally large loaded trucks can cause perceptible vibration levels at close 
proximity. The FTA guidelines of 80 V dB for sensitive land uses provide the basis for determining the 
relative significance of potential Proposed Project related vibration impacts.  The well drilling rig is 
the largest piece of equipment. The Proposed Project anticipates that groundbome vibration 
activities would cause only intermittent, localized intrusion with no vibration exceeding the 80 VdB 
at the nearest offsite residences during construction. On the other hand, operation of the 
Proposed Project would not substantially increase ambient noise levels nor expose persons to 
excessive ground borne vibration since the new pipeline would be placed underground and the 
water well would be located in an enclosed building/structure. Therefore, Proposed Project 
impacts would be less than significant.  

Item 7



c) A substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity above levels 
existing without the project? 

Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. Noise from the Proposed Project would 
typically be generated during drilling construction of the ground water well and pipeline 
construction in the public right-of-way. Project-related noise may derive mainly from the well 
motor which would be located inside of the well enclosure. Typically, a well pump motor housing 
is designated to limit near field noise levels ranging from 75 to 80 dB(A) at 50 feet. The property 
boundary of the closest existing residences is located approximately 50 feet from the proposed 
well. Without the benefit of any enclosures for attenuation, the sound level would exceed City of 
Claremont noise standards. An enclosed block building could provide 30-35 dB of noise 
attenuation for a resultant noise level of 40-45 dB, such that the noise standard of 55-60 dB would 
be met at the nearest sensitive use. Maximum estimated levels would occur on the side of the 
building where the vent is located. Therefore, the building’s vent should be located on the east of 
the site so that any noise is directed away from the closest residences west of the Project site. In 
addition, mitigation measure NOS-1 shall be implemented to reduce the potential construction 
noise impacts to less than significant. Therefore, the Proposed Project would have less than 
significant impact with mitigation incorporated to ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the Project 
site.  

d) A substantial temporary or periodic increase in ambient noise levels in the project vicinity 
above levels existing without the project? 

Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. Operations of the Proposed Project 
could potentially contribute to ambient noise levels. However, construction of the new pipeline 
would be placed underground and construction of the water well would be located in an 
enclosed structure that would be fitted with engineered sound panels to reduce long-term 
potential operational noise. In addition, temporary or periodic increases in ambient noise levels 
would occur during the construction of the Proposed Project. However, City noise standards limit 
construction hours for activities that may exceed an applicable noise standard. Therefore, 
construction activities occurring during these times must adhere to the City’s noise level standards. 
Noise generated during the construction phase would be temporary and would cease once 
construction has been completed. Because construction activities may generate noise in excess 
of City noise standards, Mitigation Measure NOS-1 has been identified. In addition, noise levels 
would be monitored periodically by TVMWD around the project location to ensure the Proposed 
Project complies with City of Claremont noise standards. Adherence to this measure in addition 
to compliance with City noise regulations would reduce impacts associated with this issue to a 
less than significant level with mitigation incorporated.  

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project expose 
people residing or working in the Project Area to excessive noise levels? 

Item 7



Less Than Significant lmpact. The Proposed Project is located approximately 2 miles east of the 
Cable Airport in Upland. The Cable Airport is a non-towered public use airport. There would be 
less than significant impact from the Proposed Project.  

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private airstrip, would the project expose people residing 
or working in the Project Area to excessive noise levels? 

No lmpact. The Proposed Project is not within the vicinity of a private airstrip. No impact would 
occur.  

 

Item 7



3.13 POPULATION AND HOUSING 

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

POPULATION AND HOUSING:  Would the project: 

a) Induce substantial population growth in an 
area, either directly (for example, by 
proposing new homes and businesses) or 
indirectly (for example, through extension of 
roads or other infrastructure)? 

    

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing 
housing, necessitating the construction of 
replacement housing elsewhere?  

    

c) Displace substantial numbers of people, 
necessitating the construction of 
replacement housing elsewhere? 

    

a)  

a) Induce substantial population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing 
new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or 
other infrastructure)? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project would not induce substantial population growth in the area, 
directly or indirectly. Construction personnel is anticipated to come from local areas, with no 
impacts occurring on population growth. Construction and operation of the Proposed Project 
would increase TVMWD’s capability to extract groundwater within the Six Basins and would only 
benefit the existing regional TVMWD member agencies. No growth-inducing impacts are 
anticipated to occur from construction or operations of the Proposed Project as it would only 
benefit existing regional customers. Therefore, substantial population growth would not result from 
the Proposed Project.    

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing housing, necessitating the construction of 
replacement housing elsewhere? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project would not displace substantial numbers of existing housing, 
necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere. The Proposed Project includes 
the construction of a new ground water well on a vacant lot and associated pipelines that are 
subterranean along the public right-of-way. No existing residential homes would be displaced. 
Therefore, the construction of replacement housing due to the displacement of existing housing 
would not result from the Proposed Project. 

Item 7



c) Displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating the construction of replacement 
housing elsewhere? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project would not displace substantial numbers of people, necessitating 
the construction of replacement housing elsewhere. The Proposed Project includes the 
construction of a new ground water well on a vacant lot and associated pipelines that are 
subterranean along the public right-of-way. No existing residential homes would be displaced.  
Therefore, no impacts would occur.  

Item 7



3.14 PUBLIC SERVICES 

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

PUBLIC SERVICES:  Would the project: 

a) Result in substantial adverse physical impacts 
associated with the provision of new or 
physically altered governmental facilities, 
need for new or physically altered 
governmental facilities, the construction of 
which could cause significant environmental 
impact, in order to maintain acceptable 
service ratios for any of the public services: 

    

 Fire protection?     

 Police protection?     

 Schools?     

 Parks?     

 Other public facilities?     

 

a) Result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or 
physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmental 
facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impact, in order to 
maintain acceptable service ratios for any of the public services: 

i. Fire protection? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project would not result in the need for new or physically altered 
governmental facilities for fire protection causing adverse physical impacts. There would be no 
additional residential developments built because of the Proposed Project that would cause 
response times for fire protection and emergencies to increase. Therefore, no impacts would 
occur. 

i. Police protection? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project would not result in substantial adverse physical impacts 
associated with the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, such as police 
protection, or have the need for new or physically altered governmental facilities. Local 
population numbers would not increase due to the Proposed Project. Therefore, the police 

Item 7



protection ratios would remain the same and there would be no additional need for police 
protection. Therefore, no impacts would occur.  

ii. Schools? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The Proposed Project would not result in substantial adverse physical 
impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, such as 
schools, or have the need for new or physically altered governmental facilities. The local 
population numbers would not increase due to the Proposed Project. There would be no need for 
construction of new school facilities. Potential impacts could occur to the Western Christion School 
during construction of the pipeline within the public-right-of-way. However, construction may 
occur during the summer and outside the school session or during non-rush hour commuting hours. 
Therefore, potential impacts would be less than significant.  

iii. Parks? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The Proposed Project would not result in substantial adverse physical 
impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, such as 
parks, or have the need for new or physically altered governmental facilities. There would not be 
an increase in local population numbers due to the Proposed Project that would increase the 
demand for public services such as parks. The nearest park, June Vail Park, is one mile north of the 
pipeline’s route on Padua Avenue, but its main point of entry is oriented away from the pipeline, 
shielding it from the majority of potential temporary construction impact. Therefore, potential 
impacts would be less than significant.  

iv. Other public facilities? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project would not require the need for new or physically altered 
governmental public facilities. No other public facilities are located adjacent to the Proposed 
Project site. Therefore, no impacts would occur.  

 

Item 7



3.15 RECREATION 

 

a) Increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities 
such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project would not increase the use of existing neighborhood and 
regional parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the 
facility would occur or be accelerated. The nearest park, June Vail Park, is located one mile north 
of the pipeline’s route on Padua Avenue, but its main point of entry is oriented away from the 
pipeline, shielding it from the majority of potential temporary construction impact. Construction of 
the Proposed Project would occur on a vacant lot with no direct or indirect relation to recreational 
use. The construction and operation of the Proposed Project would provide a benefit to existing 
regional TVMWD member agencies and would not generate an increase of local population. No 
population growth would be generated that would increase the use and deterioration of existing 
recreational facilities. Therefore, no impacts to existing neighborhood and regional parks or other 
recreational facilities are anticipated to result from the Project. 

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of 
recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project would not require the construction or expansion of recreational 
facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment. The Proposed Project 
is comprised of a subterranean well and associated pipeline that would be implemented on a 
vacant lot and public right-of-way. The Proposed Project would not include recreational facility 
components. Therefore, no impacts to recreational facilities that would create an adverse 
physical effect on the environment would result from the Project.  

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

RECREATION:  Would the project: 

a) Increase the use of existing neighborhood 
and regional parks or other recreational 
facilities such that substantial physical 
deterioration of the facility would occur or be 
accelerated?  

    

b)  Does the project include recreational 
facilities or require the construction or 
expansion of recreational facilities which 
might have an adverse physical effect on the 
environment? 

    

Item 7



3.16 TRANSPORTATION AND TRAFFIC 

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

TRANSPORTATION AND TRAFFIC:  Would the project: 

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance 
or policy establishing measures of 
effectiveness for the performance of the 
circulation system, taking into account all 
modes of transportation including mass transit 
and non-motorized travel and relevant 
components of the circulation system, 
including but not limited to intersections, 
streets, highways and freeways, pedestrian 
and bicycle paths, and mass transit?   

    

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion 
management program, including but not 
limited to level of service standards and travel 
demand measures, or other standards 
established by the county congestion 
management agency for designated roads 
or highways? 

    

c) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, 
including either an increase in traffic levels or 
a change in location that results in substantial 
safety risks? 

    

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a 
design feature (e.g., sharp curves or 
dangerous intersections) or incompatible 
uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 

    

e) Result in inadequate emergency access?     

f) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or 
programs regarding public transit, bicycle, or 
pedestrian facilities, or otherwise decrease 
the performance or safety of such facilities? 

    

 

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, ordinance or policy establishing measures of effectiveness 
for the performance of the circulation system, taking into account all modes of 
transportation including mass transit and non-motorized travel and relevant components of 

Item 7



the circulation system, including but not limited to intersections, streets, highways and 
freeways, pedestrian and bicycle paths, and mass transit? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The drill rig and equipment to construct the well is considered a 
negligible increase for a temporary duration. Well operations would require occasional deliveries 
and manpower. Therefore, the Proposed Project construction and operations would not conflict 
with any applicable plan that measures the effectiveness of the circulation system in the City. In 
addition, construction of the proposed pipeline would have minimal traffic control impacts to the 
local circulation system. Construction related vehicles would only temporarily effect the 
performance of the local circulation system during the construction phase. In addition, the 
Proposed Project site is located at the end of a cul-de-sac and operational impacts would be less 
than significant and would not conflict with applicable plans, ordinance or policies.  

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion management program, including but not limited to 
level of service standards and travel demand measures, or other standards established by 
the county congestion management agency for designated roads or highways? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The Proposed Project would not conflict with an applicable 
congestion management program. The proposed pipeline would produce minimal traffic control 
impacts to the local circulation system. In addition, construction related vehicles would 
temporarily effect local circulation traffic during the construction phase of the Proposed Project. 
Therefore, the Proposed Project would result in less than significant impacts from conflict with an 
applicable congestion management program. 

c) Result in a change in air traffic patterns, including either an increase in traffic levels or a 
change in location that results in substantial safety risks? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project would not result in a change in air traffic patterns. The nearest 
airport is the Cable Airport, which is located greater than 2 miles east of the Proposed Project. Air 
traffic levels would not increase as a result of the Proposed Project. Therefore, the Proposed Project 
would not impact air traffic patterns. 

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous 
intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The Proposed Project would not substantially increase hazards due 
to a design feature or incompatible uses. The Proposed Project is comprised of a groundwater 
well and associated underground piping. Roads which undergo pipeline installation would be 
repaved following construction activities. Therefore, the Proposed Project would result in less than 
significant impacts for substantial increase in hazards due to a design feature or incompatible 
uses. 

 

Item 7



e) Result in inadequate emergency access? 

Less Than Significant Impacts. The Proposed Project is located on a vacant lot that abuts the 210 
freeway and church parking lot. Emergency fire vehicle access to the Stone Creek town homes 
would be maintained during construction of the water well. The turning radius of the fire truck 
would be discussed and coordinated with the local Fire Department. In addition, associated 
pipelines would be constructed within the public right-of-way and would not interfere with 
emergency access. Roads may be temporarily limited to one lane during construction but, 
appropriate traffic control measures and devices will be used that comply with the Work Area 
Traffic Control Handbook (WATCH). However, there would be no changes to the street system 
during operations. Therefore, the Proposed Project would not result in inadequate emergency 
access and less than significant impacts are anticipated.  

f) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs regarding public transit, bicycle, or 
pedestrian facilities, or otherwise decrease the performance or safety of such facilities? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project would not conflict with adopted policies, plans, or programs 
regarding public transit, bicycle, or pedestrian facilities, or otherwise decrease the performance 
of safety of such facilities. The Proposed Project would comply with emergency access 
requirements, ADA regulations, and Caltrans personnel/staff access to the existing sliding door in 
the Caltrans sound wall bordering the parcel.  A site plan illustrating compliance to these 
regulations would be shared with the City Community Development Department prior to permits 
being pulled in order to provide courtesy notification to city staff. Therefore, no impacts would 
occur.  

Item 7



3.17 TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES 

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES: Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a 
tribal cultural resource, defined in Public Resources Code section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, 
cultural landscape that is geographically defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred 
place, or object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is: 

a) Listed or eligible for listing in the California 
Register of Historical Resources, or in a local 
register of historical resources as defined in 
Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k), or 

    

b) A resource determined by the lead agency, 
in its discretion and supported by substantial 
evidence, to be significant pursuant to 
criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public 
Resources Code Section 5024.1. In applying 
the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public 
Resource Code Section 5024.1, the lead 
agency shall consider the significance of the 
resource to a California Native American 
tribe. 

    

 
a) Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local 

register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code section 5020.1(k), or, 

Less than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. As stated in Section 3.5, the Proposed 
Project site is located within a previously disturbed urban area and near the 210 freeway, which 
was extended 14 miles and constructed between 1999 to 2002. Within the Project area, there are 
no resources listed within the California Register of Historical Resources or any local registers. Due 
to the location of the site and proposed pipeline alignments in previously disturbed areas, it is 
unlikely that any archaeological resources or tribal cultural resources would be encountered. In 
addition, the City of Claremont General Plan does not identify any specific archaeological 
features or resources within the City, though it does state the need for their preservation and 
protection within the goals and policies of the Land Use, Community Character, and Heritage 
Preservation Element. If any tribal cultural resources are encountered during construction or 
excavation activities, all work shall be halted near the discovery. In applying the criteria set forth 
in subdivision (c) of Public Resource Code Section 5024.1, the resources of significance would be 
considered and assessed by California Native American tribes. The Gabrieleno Band of Mission 
Indians has reviewed the Initial Study and has met with TVMWD to discuss the Project site and its 
proximity to potential tribal cultural features (trade routes and village sites) that may result in a 
higher probability to encounter tribal resources within the soil layers of the Project area. Therefore, 
mitigation measure CUL-1 and CUL-2 shall be implemented in order to ensure tribal cultural 
resources are preserved.  

Item 7



Additionally, there are no known human remains or known cemeteries within the vicinity of the 
Project site, and no conditions exist that suggest human remains are likely to be found near the 
Project site. It is not anticipated that implementation of the Proposed Project would disturb human 
remains, including those interred outside of formal cemeteries. However, ground-disturbing 
activities, such as grading or excavation, have the potential to disturb human remains. If human 
remains are found, those remains would require proper treatment, in accordance with applicable 
laws. Therefore, mitigation measure CUL-2 shall be implemented in order to reduce or avoid 
potential impacts to tribal cultural resources from construction of the Proposed Project. 

b) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial 
evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources 
Code Section 5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resource 
Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a 
California Native American tribe. 

Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. On October 24, 2017, TVMWD notified 
California Native American tribes who had formally requested notification on CEQA projects 
under Assembly Bill 52.  The following tribes were notified: San Gabriel Band of Mission Indians, 
Torres Martinez Desert Cahuilla Indians, Suboba Band of Luiseno Indians, and Gabrieleno Band of 
Mission Indians - Kizh Nation. This notification afforded California Native American tribes the 
opportunity for consultation pursuant to Public Resources Code § 21080.3.1. TVMWD only received 
comments from the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians Kizh Nation and scheduled an in-person 
meeting to review the Proposed Project site. The Kizh Nation determined that the Proposed Project 
site may potentially be near tribal cultural features (the Proposed Project is approximately one-
mile north of Route 66 and Old Stage Coach Road and the nearest village sites are estimated to 
be approximately 7 to 11 miles away from the Proposed Project site, based on the 1937 Historical 
Map provided by Mr. Salas, Chairman of the Kizh Nation) that may result in a probability to 
encounter tribal cultural resources within the soil layers of the Proposed Project area. Therefore, 
mitigation measure, CUL-1 and CUL-2, shall be implemented to potentially reduce or avoid 
impacts to tribal cultural resources. As a result, the Proposed Project would have less than 
significant impact with mitigation incorporated to the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public 
Resources Code Section 5024.1. 

Item 7



3.18 UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 

Issues 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact With 
Mitigation 

Incorporated 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 
No 

Impact 

UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS:  Would the project: 

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements 
of the applicable Regional Water Quality 
Control Board? 

    

b) Require or result in the construction of new 
water or wastewater treatment facilities or 
expansion of existing facilities, the 
construction of which could cause significant 
environmental effects? 

    

c) Require or result in the construction of new 
storm water drainage facilities or expansion 
of existing facilities, the construction of which 
could cause significant environmental 
effects? 

    

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to 
serve the project from existing entitlements 
and resources, or are new or expanded 
entitlements needed? 

    

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater 
treatment provider which serves or may serve 
the project that it has adequate capacity to 
serve the project’s projected demand in 
addition to the provider’s existing 
commitments? 

    

f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient 
permitted capacity to accommodate the 
project’s solid waste disposal needs? 

    

g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes 
and regulations related to solid waste?     

 

a) Exceed wastewater treatment requirements of the applicable Regional Water Quality 
Control Board? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project would not exceed wastewater treatment requirement of the 
applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board. The Proposed Project would not produce an 
increase of wastewater or changes to any existing wastewater treatment facilities. Therefore, no 
impacts to wastewater treatment requirements would occur.  

Item 7



b) Require or result in the construction of new water or wastewater treatment facilities or 
expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant 
environmental effects? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project would not require the construction of new water or wastewater 
treatment facilities or the expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which could cause 
significant environmental effects. The Proposed Project consists of a groundwater well and 
associated piping in the public right-of-way. Wastewater would not be generated as a result of 
the Proposed Project. The nature of the Proposed Project is to develop additional water supplies 
and construct new facilities, which would provide a beneficial source of ground water the Six 
Basins. Therefore, the Proposed Project would not result in or require the construction of new water 
or wastewater and no environmental effects are anticipated. 

c) Require or result in the construction of new storm water drainage facilities or expansion of 
existing facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental effects? 

Less Than Significant Impact. The Proposed Project would not require or result in the construction 
of new storm water drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities, the construction of which 
could result in significant environmental effects. The Proposed Project consists of a groundwater 
well and underground piping within the public right-of-way as well as minor modifications 
(extension) to an existing curb and gutter on private property. An engineering hydrology analysis 
has been performed (please refer to Appendix C), which indicates that the existing catch basin 
and street (south end of cul-de-sac) on Grand Avenue has adequate capacity for the 
anticipated rainfall runoff. Therefore, the Proposed Project would not result in or require the 
construction of new storm water drainage facilities and no environmental effects are anticipated. 

d) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project from existing entitlements and 
resources, or are new or expanded entitlements needed? 

Less Than Significant Impact.  Groundwater accounts for about 7% of the District’s water supply 
from the Miramar Plant and imported water the remaining 93%. The District has an annual 
pumping right of 3,500 AF from the Six Basins, based on the terms of the Judgment.  Groundwater 
management is dictated by the terms of the Judgment and groundwater production in the basin 
is under the control of the Six Basin Water master and the new Strategic Plan. Production is 
managed to meet a level of sustainable safe yield. Therefore, the Proposed Project would have 
less than significant impacts to water supplies available from existing entitlements and resources.  

e) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve 
the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project’s projected demand in 
addition to the provider’s existing commitments? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project would not result in a determination from the wastewater 
treatment provider. The Proposed Project would not generate wastewater that would require 
treatment. Therefore, no impacts would occur.  

Item 7



f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient permitted capacity to accommodate the project’s solid 
waste disposal needs? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project would result in minimal construction of waste products. 
Therefore, the Proposed Project would not face conflicts regarding solid waste disposal needs, nor 
would it impose conflicts on existing landfills.  

g) Comply with federal, state, and local statutes and regulations related to solid waste? 

No Impact. The Proposed Project would comply with federal, state, and local statues and 
regulations related to solid waste. Solid waste generated by construction activities would be 
disposed of following all applicable federal, state, and local statues. Therefore, no impacts from 
operations of the Proposed Project would occur. 

Item 7



Item 7



during the summer months to limit 
noise exposure to the adjacent 
school. Normal construction for 
the pipeline shall take place 
Monday through Saturday to limit 
noise exposure to the adjacent 
church and residential housing.  

• All stationary construction 
equipment (e.g. air compressor, 
generators, impact wrenches, 
etc.) shall be operated as far 
away from residential uses as 
possible and shall be shielded 
with temporary sound barriers, 
sound aprons or sound curtains. 

• Construction-related equipment, 
including heavy-duty 
equipment, motor vehicles, and 
portable equipment, shall be 
turned off when not in use for 
more than 30 minutes. 

• During normal construction 
activities, the job superintendent 
shall limit construction-related 
activities to between the hours 
7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Monday 
through Saturday. There would 
be critical periods during well 
drilling construction that would 
require continuous (24/7) 
construction activities. The 
estimated total duration of the 
various critical 24/7 construction 
periods is about 20 to 30 days.  

• Clearly post construction hours, 
allowable workdays, and the 
phone number of the job 
superintendent at all 
construction entrances to allow 
the surrounding property 

Item 7



Item 7



the human remains and/or ceremonial 
objects. Any discoveries of human 
skeletal material shall be immediately 
reported to the County Coroner. The 
monitor shall immediately divert work at 
minimum of 50 feet and place an 
exclusion zone around the burial. The 
monitor shall then notify the applicant’s 
qualified archaeologist and the 
construction manager who shall call the 
coroner. Work shall continue to be 
diverted while the coroner determines 
whether the remains are Native 
American. The discovery is to be kept 
confidential and secure to prevent any 
further disturbance. If Native American, 
the coroner shall notify the NAHC as 
mandated by state law. In the case 
where discovered human remains 
cannot be fully documented and 
recovered on the same day, the remains 
shall be covered with muslin cloth and a 
steel plate that can be moved by heavy 
equipment placed over the excavation 
opening to protect the remains. If this 
type of steel plate is not available, a 24-
hour guard should be posted outside of 
working hours. The Tribe shall make every 
effort to recommend diverting the 
project and keeping the remains in situ 
and protected. If the project cannot be 
diverted, it shall be determined that 
burials will be removed. The Tribe shall 
work closely with the applicant’s qualified 
archaeologist to ensure that the 
excavation is treated carefully, ethically, 
and respectfully. If data recovery is 
approved by the Tribe, documentation 
shall be taken which includes at a 
minimum detailed descriptive notes and 
sketches. Cremations shall be removed in 
bulk to ensure complete recovery of all 
material. If the discovery of human 

Item 7



remains includes 4 or more burials, the 
location is considered a cemetery and a 
separate treatment plan shall be 
created. The project applicant shall 
consult with the Tribe regarding 
avoidance of all cemetery sites. Once 
complete, a final report of all activities 
are to be submitted to the NAHC. The 
Tribe shall not authorize any scientific 
study or the utilization of any invasive 
diagnostics on human remains. If the 
coroner determines the remains 
represent a historic non-Native American 
burial, the burial shall be treated in the 
same manner of respect with agreement 
of the coroner. If the coroner determines 
the remains to be modern, the coroner 
shall take custody of the remains.  

Each occurrence of human remains and 
associated funerary objects shall be 
stored using opaque cloth bags. All 
human remains, funerary objects, sacred 
objects, and objects of cultural patrimony 
shall be removed to a secure container 
on site if possible. These items shall be 
retained and reburied within six months of 
recovery. There shall be no publicity 
regarding any cultural materials 
recovered. 

 

 

Item 7



5.0 MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE 

a. Does the project have the potential to degrade the quality of the environment, substantially 
reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below 
self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, substantially reduce 
the number, or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal, or eliminate 
important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory? 

Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. The Proposed Project has a less than 
significant impact to potentially degrade the quality of the environment or reduce the habitat 
of a fish or wildlife species. In addition, the Proposed Project may potentially have impacts to 
archeological resources due to the potential of encountering tribal cultural resources within 
the soil layers of the Proposed Project area. Therefore, mitigation measure CUL-1 and CUL-2 
have been implemented to potentially avoid or reduce the possible impacts to tribal cultural 
resources. Overall, the Proposed Project’s Mandatory Finding of Significance relative to 
degrading the quality of the environment would be less than significant with mitigation 
incorporated.   

b. Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable?  
(“Cumulatively considerable” means that the incremental effects of a project are 
considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other 
current projects, and the effects of probable future projects.) 

Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. Subject to Mitigation Measure NOS-
1, the Proposed Project would have less than significant impacts relative to cumulative 
incremental effects that are potentially considerable. The Proposed Project contribution to 
cumulative air quality would be less than significant. In addition, hydrology, public services, 
utilities, and traffic project level impacts would be less than significant. Therefore, the Proposed 
Project’s contribution to cumulative impacts would not be considerable. Consequently, the 
Proposed Project’s Mandatory Finding of Significance relative to incremental effects of a 
project would be less than significant with mitigation incorporated. 

c. Does the project have environmental effects, which will cause substantial adverse effects on 
human beings, either directly or indirectly? 

Less Than Significant Impact with Mitigation Incorporated. Subject to Mitigation Measure NOS-
1, the Proposed Project would have less than significant impacts relative to adverse effects on 
humans either directly or indirectly with mitigation incorporated.  

 

Item 7



6.0 PROPOSED FINDING 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION 

On the basis of this initial evaluation: 
I find that the proposed Grand Avenue Well Project COULD NOT have a significant effect on 
the environment, and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

 

I find that although the proposed Grand Avenue Well Project could have a significant effect 
on the environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because the mitigation 
measures described on an attached sheet have been added to the project.  A MITIGATED 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.  Attached Mitigation Measures and Monitoring 
Program. 

 

I find that the proposed Grand Avenue Well Project MAY have a significant effect on the 
environment, and an ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 

 

I find that the proposed Grand Avenue Well Project MAY have a significant effect on the 
environment, but at least one effect 1) has been adequately analyzed in an earlier document 
pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed by mitigation measures 
based on the earlier analysis as described on attached sheets, if the effect is a “potentially 
significant impact” or “potentially significant unless mitigated.”  An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be addressed. 

 

I find that although the proposed Grand Avenue Well Project could have a significant effect 
on the environment, because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed 
adequately in an earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable standards, and 
(b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or NEGATIVE DECLARATION, 
nothing further is required. 

 

 

             
Signature:        Date: 

 

Item 7



 AIR QUALITY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 7



Project Characteristics - 

Land Use - Lot size is 3,400 SF; Trench dimensions disturbed: 32,000 SF

Construction Phase - Estimated time for construction

Off-road Equipment - Anticipated Building Construction Equipment

Off-road Equipment - Anticipated Well Construction Equipment

Off-road Equipment - Anticipated Pipeline Equipment

Construction Off-road Equipment Mitigation - 

1.1 Land Usage

Land Uses Size Metric Lot Acreage Floor Surface Area Population

User Defined Industrial 1.00 User Defined Unit 0.03 3,400.00 0

User Defined Industrial 1.00 User Defined Unit 0.73 32,000.00 0

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization

Climate Zone

Urban

9

Wind Speed (m/s) Precipitation Freq (Days)2.2 31

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data

1.0 Project Characteristics

Utility Company Southern California Edison

2019Operational Year

CO2 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

702.44 0.029CH4 Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

0.006N2O Intensity 
(lb/MWhr)

Well 4
South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 1 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



Table Name Column Name Default Value New Value

tblConstDustMitigation WaterUnpavedRoadVehicleSpeed 40 0

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 100.00 5.00

tblConstructionPhase NumDays 2.00 45.00

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 7/10/2017 9/15/2017

tblConstructionPhase PhaseEndDate 7/10/2017 9/11/2017

tblConstructionPhase PhaseStartDate 7/11/2017 9/11/2017

tblLandUse BuildingSpaceSquareFeet 0.00 3,400.00

tblLandUse BuildingSpaceSquareFeet 0.00 32,000.00

tblLandUse LandUseSquareFeet 0.00 3,400.00

tblLandUse LandUseSquareFeet 0.00 32,000.00

tblLandUse LotAcreage 0.00 0.03

tblLandUse LotAcreage 0.00 0.73

tblOffRoadEquipment LoadFactor 0.50 0.50

tblOffRoadEquipment LoadFactor 0.50 0.50

tblOffRoadEquipment LoadFactor 0.29 0.29

tblOffRoadEquipment LoadFactor 0.20 0.20

tblOffRoadEquipment LoadFactor 0.20 0.20

tblOffRoadEquipment LoadFactor 0.37 0.37

tblOffRoadEquipment LoadFactor 0.38 0.38

tblOffRoadEquipment LoadFactor 0.36 0.36

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentType Trenchers

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentType Bore/Drill Rigs

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentType Cranes

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentType Concrete/Industrial Saws

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentType Cement and Mortar Mixers

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentType Forklifts

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 2 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



2.0 Emissions Summary

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentType Forklifts

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentType Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentType Plate Compactors

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentType Rollers

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentType Paving Equipment

tblOffRoadEquipment OffRoadEquipmentUnitAmount 2.00 1.00

tblProjectCharacteristics OperationalYear 2018 2019

tblTripsAndVMT WorkerTripNumber 15.00 10.00

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 3 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



2.1 Overall Construction (Maximum Daily Emission)

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Year lb/day lb/day

2017 4.7076 44.1226 29.9882 0 0541 1.2718 2.6873 3.9591 0.5523 2.5104 3.0627 0 0000 5,437.955
7

5,437.955
7

1.2791 0.0000 5,469.933
0

Maximum 4.7076 44.1226 29.9882 0.0541 1.2718 2.6873 3.9591 0.5523 2.5104 3.0627 0.0000 5,437.955
7

5,437.955
7

1.2791 0.0000 5,469.933
0

Unmitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Year lb/day lb/day

2017 4.7076 44.1226 29.9882 0 0541 1.2718 2.6873 3.9591 0.5523 2.5104 3.0627 0 0000 5,437.955
7

5,437.955
7

1.2791 0.0000 5,469.933
0

Maximum 4.7076 44.1226 29.9882 0.0541 1.2718 2.6873 3.9591 0.5523 2.5104 3.0627 0.0000 5,437.955
7

5,437.955
7

1.2791 0.0000 5,469.933
0

Mitigated Construction

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 4 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



2.2 Overall Operational

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Area 0.7909 0 0000 2.1000e-
004

0 0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 4.4000e-
004

4.4000e-
004

0.0000 4.7000e-
004

Energy 0.0000 0 0000 0.0000 0 0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Mobile 0.0000 0 0000 0.0000 0 0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.7909 0.0000 2.1000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 4.4000e-
004

4.4000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 4.7000e-
004

Unmitigated Operational

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Area 0.7909 0 0000 2.1000e-
004

0 0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 4.4000e-
004

4.4000e-
004

0.0000 4.7000e-
004

Energy 0.0000 0 0000 0.0000 0 0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Mobile 0.0000 0 0000 0.0000 0 0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.7909 0.0000 2.1000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 4.4000e-
004

4.4000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 4.7000e-
004

Mitigated Operational

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 5 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



3.0 Construction Detail

Construction Phase

Phase 
Number

Phase Name Phase Type Start Date End Date Num Days 
Week

Num Days Phase Description

1 Building Construction Building Construction 9/11/2017 9/15/2017 5 5

2 Well Construction Grading 7/11/2017 9/11/2017 5 45

3 Pipeline Construction Trenching 9/11/2017 9/18/2017 5 6

OffRoad Equipment

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio-CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N20 CO2e

Percent 
Reduction

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Residential Indoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential Indoor: 0; Non-Residential Outdoor: 0; Striped Parking Area: 0 (Architectural 
Coating – sqft)

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 0

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 0

Acres of Paving: 0

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 6 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Phase Name Offroad Equipment Type Amount Usage Hours Horse Power Load Factor

Building Construction Cement and Mortar Mixers 1 4.00 9 0.56

Well Construction Bore/Drill Rigs 1 8.00 221 0.50

Well Construction Cranes 1 4.00 231 0.29

Pipeline Construction Trenchers 1 8.00 78 0.50

Well Construction Forklifts 1 2.00 89 0.20

Pipeline Construction Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 4.00 81 0.73

Pipeline Construction Forklifts 1 2.00 89 0.20

Pipeline Construction Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 4.00 97 0.37

Pipeline Construction Plate Compactors 1 4.00 8 0.43

Pipeline Construction Rollers 1 4.00 80 0.38

Pipeline Construction Paving Equipment 1 6.00 132 0.36

Building Construction Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 2 8.00 97 0.37

Well Construction Concrete/Industrial Saws 1 8.00 81 0.73

Well Construction Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 1 6.00 97 0.37

Building Construction Cranes 1 4.00 231 0.29

Building Construction Forklifts 2 6.00 89 0.20

Well Construction Rubber Tired Dozers 1 1.00 247 0.40

Trips and VMT

Phase Name Offroad Equipment 
Count

Worker Trip 
Number

Vendor Trip 
Number

Hauling Trip 
Number

Worker Trip 
Length

Vendor Trip 
Length

Hauling Trip 
Length

Worker Vehicle 
Class

Vendor 
Vehicle Class

Hauling 
Vehicle Class

Pipeline Construction 7 18.00 0.00 0.00 14.70 6.90 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Building Construction 6 15.00 6.00 0.00 14.70 6.90 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

Well Construction 6 10.00 0.00 0.00 14.70 6.90 20.00 LD_Mix HDT_Mix HHDT

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 7 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



3.2 Building Construction - 2017

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2 5

PM2 5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Off-Road 1.3105 12 9432 8.2242 0.0118 0.8665 0.8665 0.7977 0.7977 1,191.174
6

1,191.174
6

0.3599 1,200.171
0

Total 1.3105 12.9432 8.2242 0.0118 0.8665 0.8665 0.7977 0.7977 1,191.174
6

1,191.174
6

0.3599 1,200.171
0

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2 5

PM2 5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0290 0.7745 0.2013 1 5800e-
003

0.0384 6.7000e-
003

0.0451 0.0111 6.4100e-
003

0.0175 167.6675 167.6675 0.0120 167.9678

Worker 0.0908 0.0665 0.8549 1 8900e-
003

0.1677 1.3800e-
003

0.1691 0.0445 1.2800e-
003

0.0457 188.1527 188.1527 7.0900e-
003

188.3299

Total 0.1199 0.8410 1.0562 3.4700e-
003

0.2061 8.0800e-
003

0.2142 0.0555 7.6900e-
003

0.0632 355.8202 355.8202 0.0191 356.2977

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

Clean Paved Roads

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 8 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



3.2 Building Construction - 2017

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2 5

PM2 5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Off-Road 1.3105 12 9432 8.2242 0.0118 0.8665 0.8665 0.7977 0.7977 0.0000 1,191.174
6

1,191.174
6

0.3599 1,200.171
0

Total 1.3105 12.9432 8.2242 0.0118 0.8665 0.8665 0.7977 0.7977 0.0000 1,191.174
6

1,191.174
6

0.3599 1,200.171
0

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2 5

PM2 5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0290 0.7745 0.2013 1 5800e-
003

0.0384 6.7000e-
003

0.0451 0.0111 6.4100e-
003

0.0175 167.6675 167.6675 0.0120 167.9678

Worker 0.0908 0.0665 0.8549 1 8900e-
003

0.1677 1.3800e-
003

0.1691 0.0445 1.2800e-
003

0.0457 188.1527 188.1527 7.0900e-
003

188.3299

Total 0.1199 0.8410 1.0562 3.4700e-
003

0.2061 8.0800e-
003

0.2142 0.0555 7.6900e-
003

0.0632 355.8202 355.8202 0.0191 356.2977

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 9 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



3.3 Well Construction - 2017

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2 5

PM2 5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Fugitive Dust 0.7528 0.0000 0.7528 0.4138 0.0000 0.4138 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 1.6942 17 5183 9.9947 0.0224 0.9140 0.9140 0.8654 0.8654 2,240.773
5

2,240.773
5

0.5571 2,254.701
6

Total 1.6942 17.5183 9.9947 0.0224 0.7528 0.9140 1.6668 0.4138 0.8654 1.2792 2,240.773
5

2,240.773
5

0.5571 2,254.701
6

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2 5

PM2 5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 0.0605 0.0443 0.5699 1 2600e-
003

0.1118 9.2000e-
004

0.1127 0.0296 8.5000e-
004

0.0305 125.4351 125.4351 4.7300e-
003

125.5533

Total 0.0605 0.0443 0.5699 1.2600e-
003

0.1118 9.2000e-
004

0.1127 0.0296 8.5000e-
004

0.0305 125.4351 125.4351 4.7300e-
003

125.5533

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 10 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



3.3 Well Construction - 2017

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2 5

PM2 5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Fugitive Dust 0.7528 0.0000 0.7528 0.4138 0.0000 0.4138 0.0000 0.0000

Off-Road 1.6942 17 5183 9.9947 0.0224 0.9140 0.9140 0.8654 0.8654 0.0000 2,240.773
5

2,240.773
5

0.5571 2,254.701
6

Total 1.6942 17.5183 9.9947 0.0224 0.7528 0.9140 1.6668 0.4138 0.8654 1.2792 0.0000 2,240.773
5

2,240.773
5

0.5571 2,254.701
6

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2 5

PM2 5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 0.0605 0.0443 0.5699 1 2600e-
003

0.1118 9.2000e-
004

0.1127 0.0296 8.5000e-
004

0.0305 125.4351 125.4351 4.7300e-
003

125.5533

Total 0.0605 0.0443 0.5699 1.2600e-
003

0.1118 9.2000e-
004

0.1127 0.0296 8.5000e-
004

0.0305 125.4351 125.4351 4.7300e-
003

125.5533

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 11 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



3.4 Pipeline Construction - 2017

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2 5

PM2 5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Off-Road 1.4135 12.6960 9.1172 0.0130 0.8962 0.8962 0.8371 0.8371 1,298.969
0

1,298.969
0

0.3298 1,307.213
6

Total 1.4135 12.6960 9.1172 0.0130 0.8962 0.8962 0.8371 0.8371 1,298.969
0

1,298.969
0

0.3298 1,307.213
6

Unmitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2 5

PM2 5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 0.1090 0.0798 1.0259 2 2700e-
003

0.2012 1.6600e-
003

0.2029 0.0534 1.5300e-
003

0.0549 225.7832 225.7832 8.5100e-
003

225.9959

Total 0.1090 0.0798 1.0259 2.2700e-
003

0.2012 1.6600e-
003

0.2029 0.0534 1.5300e-
003

0.0549 225.7832 225.7832 8.5100e-
003

225.9959

Unmitigated Construction Off-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 12 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile

3.4 Pipeline Construction - 2017

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2 5

PM2 5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Off-Road 1.4135 12.6960 9.1172 0.0130 0.8962 0.8962 0.8371 0.8371 0.0000 1,298.969
0

1,298.969
0

0.3298 1,307.213
6

Total 1.4135 12.6960 9.1172 0.0130 0.8962 0.8962 0.8371 0.8371 0.0000 1,298.969
0

1,298.969
0

0.3298 1,307.213
6

Mitigated Construction On-Site

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2 5

PM2 5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Vendor 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Worker 0.1090 0.0798 1.0259 2 2700e-
003

0.2012 1.6600e-
003

0.2029 0.0534 1.5300e-
003

0.0549 225.7832 225.7832 8.5100e-
003

225.9959

Total 0.1090 0.0798 1.0259 2.2700e-
003

0.2012 1.6600e-
003

0.2029 0.0534 1.5300e-
003

0.0549 225.7832 225.7832 8.5100e-
003

225.9959

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 13 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2 5

PM2 5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Mitigated 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Unmitigated 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

4.2 Trip Summary Information

4.3 Trip Type Information

Average Daily Trip Rate Unmitigated Mitigated

Land Use Weekday Saturday Sunday Annual VMT Annual VMT

User Defined Industrial 0.00 0.00 0.00

User Defined Industrial 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total 0.00 0.00 0.00

Miles Trip % Trip Purpose %

Land Use H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW H-W or C-W H-S or C-C H-O or C-NW Primary Diverted Pass-by

User Defined Industrial 16.60 8.40 6.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0 0

User Defined Industrial 16.60 8.40 6.90 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0 0

4.4 Fleet Mix

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 14 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



5.0 Energy Detail

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2 5

PM2 5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

NaturalGas 
Mitigated

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

NaturalGas 
Unmitigated

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

Land Use LDA LDT1 LDT2 MDV LHD1 LHD2 MHD HHD OBUS UBUS MCY SBUS MH

User Defined Industrial 0.546418 0.044132 0.199182 0.124467 0.017484 0.005870 0.020172 0.031831 0.001999 0.002027 0.004724 0.000704 0.000991

User Defined Industrial 0.546418 0.044132 0.199182 0.124467 0.017484 0.005870 0.020172 0.031831 0.001999 0.002027 0.004724 0.000704 0.000991

Historical Energy Use: N

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 15 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



6.1 Mitigation Measures Area

6.0 Area Detail

5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr lb/day lb/day

User Defined 
Industrial

0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Unmitigated

NaturalGa
s Use

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Land Use kBTU/yr lb/day lb/day

User Defined 
Industrial

0 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Total 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Mitigated

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 16 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

Category lb/day lb/day

Mitigated 0.7909 0 0000 2.1000e-
004

0 0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 4.4000e-
004

4.4000e-
004

0.0000 4.7000e-
004

Unmitigated 0.7909 0 0000 2.1000e-
004

0 0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 4.4000e-
004

4.4000e-
004

0.0000 4.7000e-
004

6.2 Area by SubCategory

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory lb/day lb/day

Architectural 
Coating

0.0899 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Consumer 
Products

0.7009 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Landscaping 2.0000e-
005

0 0000 2.1000e-
004

0 0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 4.4000e-
004

4.4000e-
004

0.0000 4.7000e-
004

Total 0.7909 0.0000 2.1000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 4.4000e-
004

4.4000e-
004

0.0000 4.7000e-
004

Unmitigated

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 17 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



8.1 Mitigation Measures Waste

7.1 Mitigation Measures Water

7.0 Water Detail

8.0 Waste Detail

6.2 Area by SubCategory

ROG NOx CO SO2 Fugitive 
PM10

Exhaust 
PM10

PM10 
Total

Fugitive 
PM2.5

Exhaust 
PM2.5

PM2.5 
Total

Bio- CO2 NBio- CO2 Total CO2 CH4 N2O CO2e

SubCategory lb/day lb/day

Architectural 
Coating

0.0899 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Consumer 
Products

0.7009 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Landscaping 2.0000e-
005

0 0000 2.1000e-
004

0 0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 4.4000e-
004

4.4000e-
004

0.0000 4.7000e-
004

Total 0.7909 0.0000 2.1000e-
004

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 4.4000e-
004

4.4000e-
004

0.0000 4.7000e-
004

Mitigated

9.0 Operational Offroad

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Days/Year Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type

10.0 Stationary Equipment

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 18 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



11.0 Vegetation

Equipment Type Number Hours/Day Hours/Year Horse Power Load Factor Fuel Type

Boilers

Equipment Type Number Heat Input/Day Heat Input/Year Boiler Rating Fuel Type

User Defined Equipment

Equipment Type Number

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.1 Date: 7/11/2017 5:35 PMPage 19 of 19

Well 4 - South Coast AQMD Air District, Summer

Item 7



  SIX BASINS WATERMASTER BOARD MEMO 

Wildermuth Environmental, 2017.  “Evaluation of the Potential for Substantial Injury associated with 
the Proposed Grand Avenue Well.”   Memorandum to Six Basins Watermaster Board, dated July 
26, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 7



Page 1 of 7 

 

To:     Six Basins Watermaster Board 

From:    Wildermuth Environmental, Watermaster Staff 

Date:    July 26, 2017 

Subject:  Evaluation of the Potential for Substantial Injury associated with the Proposed 
Grand Avenue Well 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact   Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only   Cost Estimate:   $ 

Background and Previously Related Actions by the Board 

Pursuant to Section III.B.4.b of the Six Basins Judgment, any Party that intends to acquire, construct or 
operate  a  new  well  in  the  Four  Basins  must  provide  a  30‐day  advance  written  notice  to  the 
Watermaster. And, pursuant to Section III.B.4.a, groundwater production from a new location shall 
not cause Substantial Injury to another Party. 

The Watermaster Board has drafted a proposed update to its Operating Plan describing a procedure 
to  analyze  certain  “Actions”  for  the  potential  to  cause  Substantial  Injury.  The  objective  of  the 
procedure is to establish a standard process to decide whether an Action should be evaluated for the 
potential to cause Substantial Injury, and if so, to conduct the evaluation. The proposed procedure is 
attached to this memo.1 

Substantial Injury is defined in the draft Operating Plan update as: 

…injury to a Party, the basin, or the environment that is attributable to the implementation of 
an Action, including, but not limited to, rising groundwater, liquefaction, interference with the 
ability to pump OSY, increases in pump lift, degradation of water quality, or land subsidence.  

On May 24, 2016, Three Valleys Municipal Water District (TVMWD) notified Watermaster staff of its 
intent  to  drill,  construct,  develop,  and  operate  a  new  well:  TVMWD‐3.  The Watermaster  Board 
approved a Task Order for Watermaster Staff to perform an evaluation of the potential for Substantial 
Injury (Substantial Injury analysis) on TVMWD‐3 as a “test case” for the proposed process to inform 
the Watermaster of the potential for Substantial Injury. The objectives of this “test case” were to: (i) 
demonstrate the proposed process for evaluating projects and (ii) describe the potential impacts from 
the operation of TVMWD‐3 and potential mitigation measures, if deemed appropriate. The analysis 

                                            
1 All memos developed in support of the update to the Operating Plan and the test case are available on Watermaster’s 
website at: http://www.6bwm.com/info.php?pnum=6 under the header “Proposed Operating Plan Updates to Support 
Strategic Plan Implementation” 

 
Memorandum 

Item 7



Page 2 of 7 

 

could  then  be  used  by  the  individual  Parties  to  determine  if  the  project  impacts  are  potentially 
“Substantial” or not and to recommend mitigation measures, if necessary.  

The “test case” was a successful demonstration of the proposed process for evaluating projects for 
the potential to cause Substantial  Injury. The evaluation described the potential  impacts from the 
operation of TVMWD‐3, as well as measures that can be implemented to mitigate those impacts. The 
main conclusions and recommendations of this “test” evaluation were documented in the August 24, 
2016 memo Analysis for Substantial Injury for the Proposed TVMWD‐3 Well2, and included: 

 The new groundwater production planned by TVMWD from TVMWD‐3, which is about 600 
acre‐feet per year (afy), will cause lower groundwater levels in the Six Basins, particularly in 
the Upper Claremont Heights Basin (UCHB) in the areas around TVMWD‐3. 

 The new groundwater production at TVMWD‐3 will not cause groundwater levels to decline 
below a sustainability metric at any Party’s well. That said, lower groundwater levels at wells, 
particularly north of the Indian Hill Fault, can lead to decreased well capacities, particularly 
during dry periods when groundwater levels are low. 

 Satisfying a Replacement Water obligation through wet‐water recharge for overproduction 
that  occurs  north  of  the  Indian  Hill  Fault  is  an  effective  strategy  to  mitigate  for  lower 
groundwater levels, particularly if the recharge occurs near the areas of the new production. 

 During wet periods, the new production at TVMWD‐3 can help to mitigate instances of high 
groundwater (i.e. rising groundwater and liquefaction potential). 

 The conclusions above apply not only to TVMWD‐3, but to any new wells that are installed 
north of the Indian Hill Fault for the purpose of producing groundwater in volumes higher than 
historical volumes. Hence,  future evaluations of Substantial  Injury  for proposed new wells 
located north of the Indian Hill Fault can leverage the information derived in this analysis and 
may  not  necessitate  the  use  of  the  groundwater  model  in  those  evaluations.  That  said, 
additional  new  wells  and  groundwater  production  will  have  a  cumulative  impact  on 
groundwater levels. 

New Well Notification: TVMWD Grand Avenue Well 

On June 5, 2017, TVMWD submitted a notification to Watermaster of  its  intent to drill, construct, 
develop and operate an additional new well  in  the UCHB:  the Grand Avenue Well. The proposed 
location  of  the Grand Avenue Well  is within  the  City  of  Claremont  on  a  property  located  at  the 
southern end of the cul‐de‐sac on North Grand Avenue south of Baseline Road. Figure 1 is a map that 
shows  the  proposed  location  of  the well  and  nearby  active  production wells.  The  nearest  active 
production wells  are  the Golden  State Water  Company’s  (GSWC) Mills  1, Mountain  View  1,  and 
Marlboro wells, all of which are located within 1,800 feet of the proposed Grand Avenue Well.  

 

                                            
2 Accessible at: http://www.6bwm.com/info.php?pnum=6 under header “Proposed Operating Plan Updates to Support 
Strategic Plan Implementation” 

Item 7



Page 3 of 7 

 

TVMWD currently plans the following for the construction and operation of the Grand Avenue Well: 

  Casing depth: 880 ft‐bgs 

  Casing diameter: 16 inches 

  Well‐screen depth interval: 300‐800 ft‐bgs 

  Pumping rate: 600‐800 gallons per minute 

  Estimated annual production: 775‐1,030 afy 

  Well utilization: 80‐85 percent of the time 

  Well use: Supplement imported water supplies from the Miramar Treatment Plant 

Water rights: TVMWD is an overproducer of its Operating Safe Yield (OSY) rights, so production 
from the Grand Avenue Well will incur a Replacement Water obligation. TVMWD’s preferred 
method for Replacement is to maximize transfers of unproduced OSY rights from other Parties 
and then utilize its Storage and Recovery account to make up the difference.  

On June 28, 2017, Watermaster Staff advised the Board that the operation of the Grand Avenue Well 
should  be  evaluated  for  the  potential  to  cause  Substantial  Injury  and  the  evaluation  could  be 
performed based on the results of the Analysis for Substantial Injury for the Proposed TVMWD‐3 Well. 
The Board directed Watermaster Staff to perform a Substantial Injury analysis on TVMWD’s Grand 
Avenue Well. This Substantial Injury analysis also considers the cumulative impacts of the TVMWD‐3 
and Grand Avenue wells. 

Methods to Evaluate the Potential for Substantial Injury 

The method to evaluate the impacts from operating the Grand Avenue Well is to utilize the results of 
the Substantial Injury analysis performed for TVMWD‐3. The method that was used to evaluate the 
impacts of TVMWD‐3 included: 

1. Development  of  a  “Baseline”  planning  alternative  that  does  not  include  the  operation  of 
TVMWD‐3. 

2. Development of two project alternatives that included the operation of TVMWD‐3 at a range 
of annual production rates of 450 afy in dry years and 685 afy in wet years, and replacement 
operations from most impactful to least impactful: 

a. TVMWD Preferred Alternative: TVMWD satisfies its Replacement Water obligation for 
production  from  TVMWD‐3  through  increased  transfers  (assumed  to  be  up  to  10 
percent of the OSY) and use of its Storage and Recovery account. 

b. Replacement  Alternative: TVMWD  satisfies  its  Replacement  Water  obligation  for 
production from TVMWD‐3 through wet‐water recharge at the San Antonio Spreading 
Grounds  (SASG).  The  wet‐water  recharge  is  equal  to  the  annual  production  of 
TVMWD‐3. 

Item 7



Page 4 of 7 

 

3. Use of the Six Basins groundwater‐flow model to simulate the hydrologic response of all three 
planning alternatives over a long‐term (54‐year) hydrologic period3, and compare and contrast 
the model‐simulation results. The impacts evaluated included: changes in groundwater levels; 
production sustainability at wells; the threat of high groundwater; and the water budget of 
the Six Basins. 

This evaluation of  the operation of  the proposed Grand Avenue Well  is a qualitative analysis  that 
references  the model  results  from  the  analysis  of  TVMWD‐3  and  discusses  potential  changes  in 
groundwater  levels  and water  budget;  production  sustainability  at wells;  and  the  threat  of  rising 
groundwater. 

Evaluation of the Potential for Substantial Injury 

Table 1a summarizes the average and total planning period production, transfers, storage extractions 
and  wet‐water  recharge  associated with  the  operation  of  the  Grand  Avenue Well  for  the  three 
planning  alternatives  assuming  no  production  from  TVMWD‐3.  Table  1b  summarizes  the  same 
information for the three alternatives assuming production from both the TVMWD‐3 and the Grand 
Avenue wells. Over the 54‐year planning period, the proposed operation of the Grand Avenue Well 
will result in a total increase in production of about 52,000 af, or about 970 afy. If operated together 
with the TVMWD‐3 well, the total increase in production over the Baseline is about 87,400 af, or about 
1,600 afy. 

TVMWD Preferred Alternative  

Over  the  54‐year  planning  period,  the  proposed  operation  of  the Grand Avenue Well  under  the 
TVMWD Preferred Alternative, as compared to the Baseline, will result in the following: 

 A total increase in transfers from other Parties to TVMWD of about 34,600 af, or about 640 
afy.  If operated  together with  the TVMWD‐3 Well,  the  total  increase  in  transfers  is about 
34,800 af, or about 650 afy.  

 A total increase in extractions from the TVMWD storage account of about 17,440 af, or about 
320 afy. If operated together with the TVMWD‐3 Well, the total increase in extractions from 
the TVMWD storage account is about 46,920 af, or about 870 afy.  

 No increase in wet‐water recharge for Replacement Water obligations due to the proposed 
operation of the Grand Avenue Well. If operated together with the TVMWD‐3 Well, the total 
increase in wet‐water recharge for Replacement Water obligations is about 4,000 af, or about 
70 afy. 

 A total increase in wet‐water recharge to build the TVMWD storage account of about 18,540 
af, or about 340 afy. If operated together with the TVMWD‐3 Well, the total increase in wet‐
water recharge to build TVMWD storage account is about 48,800 af, or about 900 afy. 

                                            
3 The planning period, defined as July 20133 to June 2066, includes a variable hydrology based on the historical record of 
precipitation for the period of 1960 to 2013 and current land use. 

Item 7



Page 5 of 7 

 

Figure 2 shows the difference in groundwater levels between the TVMWD Preferred Alternative and 
the Baseline Alternative at the end of the driest period within the 54‐year model simulation from the 
Analysis for Substantial Injury for the Proposed TVMWD‐3 Well.  In this alternative, groundwater levels 
are projected  to be  lower across  the Six Basins,  compared  to  the Baseline, because groundwater 
production is about 600 afy higher on average, and artificial recharge of imported water is only about 
70 afy higher. Groundwater levels are projected to decline by as much as 20 feet around TVMWD‐3, 
where the new production occurs. The groundwater‐level declines do not cause water levels to drop 
below  the  sustainability  thresholds of  any Party’s wells  in  the Six Basins. During wet periods,  the 
projected  lower  groundwater  levels  are  beneficial  because  they  reduce  the  amount  of  time  that 
groundwater levels are within 40 feet of the ground surface, which is the threshold for liquefaction 
potential. Regarding the water budget, the projected lower groundwater levels will reduce subsurface 
outflow to the Two Basins and to the Chino Basin. This results  in an increase to the overall developed 
yield of the Four Basins by about three percent relative to the Baseline, and decreases the developed 
yield of the Two Basins by about two percent. 

The Grand Avenue Well is proposed to produce between 775 and 1,030 afy, which more than the 450 
to 685 afy planned and evaluated for TVMWD‐3. Therefore, under the TVMWD preferred operation 
of the Grand Avenue Well, there is likely to be similar or greater magnitudes of groundwater‐level 
declines surrounding the Grand Avenue Well and reduction of outflow to the Chino Basin and Two 
Basins as was predicted for the TVMWD‐3 well. If both wells are in operation at the same time, there 
will be cumulative effects of changes to groundwater levels and subsurface outflow that are greater 
than the effects of the wells individually. For example, Figure 2 shows that the groundwater levels at 
the Grand Avenue Well site are predicted to be about eight feet lower compared to the Baseline due 
to the operation of the TVMWD‐3 well. If about 20 feet of groundwater‐level decline is predicted to 
occur at the Grand Avenue Well site as a result of operating the Grand Avenue Well, groundwater 
levels at the Grand Avenue Well site could be about 28 feet lower compared to the Baseline. The 
potential impacts of the lower groundwater levels at other wells, particularly for those wells located 
within  the  UCHB  in  areas  between  the  TVMWD‐3  and  Grand  Avenue  wells,  include:  (1)  lower 
production capacities, (2) greater pumping lifts, and (3) increased cost due to the greater pumping 
lifts.  The wells  that are  likely  to experience  the greatest cumulative effects under  this alternative 
include: 

 Indian Hills 3 (GSWC) 

 Indian Hills 4 (GSWC) 

 Marlboro (GSWC) 

 Mountain View 1 (GSWC) 

 Mills 1 (GSWC) 

 Tunnel Well 1 (City of Pomona) 

 Tunnel Well 2 (City of Pomona) 

 Tunnel Well 3 (City of Pomona) 

 Tunnel Well 4 (City of Pomona) 

Figures B‐3 to B‐5 and B‐6 to B‐11 are time‐history charts of projected groundwater elevations from 
the Analysis  for  Substantial  Injury  for  the  Proposed  TVMWD‐3 Well.  These  charts  show  that  the 
groundwater elevations at these wells under the TVMWD Preferred Alternative are up to about 13 to 
16 feet lower compared to the Baseline. Therefore, the cumulative groundwater‐level declines from 
production at both the TVMWD‐3 and Grand Avenue wells are expected to be greater than 13 to 16 

Item 7



Page 6 of 7 

 

feet at these wells. These charts show that it is unlikely that the production of the proposed Grand 
Avenue Well, combined with the production at the proposed TVMWD‐3 Well, will cause water levels 
to decline below the sustainability thresholds of any Party’s wells in the Six Basins. For example, Figure 
B‐5 shows the projected lowest groundwater level at Mills‐1 is about 15 feet above its sustainability 
threshold; if the groundwater‐level decline at Mills‐1 were to double due to the production at the 
Grand Avenue Well, the lowest water level at Mills‐1 would be about nine feet above its sustainability 
threshold. 

Replacement Alternative  

Over  the  54‐year  planning  period,  the  proposed  operation  of  the Grand Avenue Well  under  the 
Replacement Alternative, as compared to the Baseline, will result in the following: 

 No  increase  in  transfers  from other  Parties  to  the  TVMWD  to  offset  Replacement Water 
obligations.  

 No increase in extractions from the TVMWD storage account to offset Replacement Water 
obligations.  

 A total increase in wet‐water recharge for Replacement Water obligations of about 52,020 af, 
or about 960 afy. If operated together with the TVMWD‐3 Well, the total increase in wet‐water 
recharge for Replacement Water obligations compared to the Baseline is about 85,750 af, or 
about 1,590 afy.  

 No increase in wet‐water recharge to build the TVMWD storage account. 

Figure 3 shows the difference in groundwater levels between the Replacement Alternative and the 
Baseline Alternative at the end of the driest period within the 54‐year model simulation from the 
Analysis for Substantial Injury for the Proposed TVMWD‐3 Well. In this alternative, groundwater levels 
are projected to be up to seven feet  lower around TVMWD‐3 (where the new production occurs) 
compared to the Baseline. Groundwater levels are projected to be up to six feet higher compared to 
the Baseline in the southern portion of the SASG where the Replacement Water was assumed to be 
recharged.  Regarding  the  water  budget,  the  replacement  will  in  part  mitigate  the  reduction  in 
subsurface outflow to the Two Basins, but will result in an increase in subsurface outflow to the Chino 
Basin.  

Under the operating scheme of the Replacement Alternative, the cumulative effects on groundwater 
levels associated with pumping both TVMWD‐3 and Grand Avenue wells will be mitigated by  the 
greater volumes of recharge at the SASG that will be required to satisfy the TVMWD Replacement 
Water obligations. The declines in groundwater levels west of the Grand Avenue Well will be greater 
than  the  declines  predicted  in  the  Replacement  Alternative  for  TVMWD‐3,  and  the  increases  in 
groundwater levels in the vicinity of the southern SASG (where the recharge is assumed to occur) and 
outflow to Chino Basin are expected to be greater than predicted in the Replacement Alternative for 
TVMWD‐3.  

 

Item 7



Page 7 of 7 

 

Conclusions and Recommendations  

The main conclusions and recommendations of this evaluation of the potential for Substantial Injury 
associated with the Grand Avenue Well are similar to those stated in Analysis for Substantial Injury for 
the Proposed TVMWD‐3 Well:  

 Groundwater levels will be lower across the Six Basins, particularly if both the TVMWD‐3 and 
the  Grand  Avenue  wells  are  operated  at  the  same  time  and  TVMWD  chooses  to  utilize 
transfers and extractions from its Storage and Recovery account as the methods to satisfy its 
associated Replacement Water obligations. The declines in groundwater levels are predicted 
to be greatest during dry periods within the UCHB in areas nearby and in‐between the two 
new wells.  

 If both the TVMWD‐3 and Grand Avenue wells are operated at the same time, the predicted 
declines in groundwater levels are unlikely to cause water levels to decline below sustainability 
thresholds at other Party’s wells, but  can  lead  to decreased well  capacities and  increased 
pumping lifts, particularly during dry periods when groundwater levels are low. 

 The predicted lower groundwater levels will have the beneficial effects of mitigating instances 
of high groundwater during wet periods (i.e. mitigation for rising groundwater and liquefaction 
potential). 

 Satisfying Replacement Water obligations  through wet‐water  recharge  for overproduction 
that  occurs  north  of  the  Indian  Hill  Fault  is  an  effective  strategy  to  mitigate  for  lower 
groundwater levels during dry periods, particularly if the recharge occurs near the areas of the 
new  production.  During  wet  periods,  wet‐water  recharge  to  satisfy  Replacement  Water 
obligations  could  increase  the  potential  for  high  groundwater  conditions  and  increase 
subsurface outflow to the Chino Basin. Thus, an operational strategy that combines aspects of 
the  TVMWD  Preferred  Alternative  during  periods  wet  periods  and  the  Replacement 
Alternative during dry periods could minimize the potential for Substantial Injury associated 
with the operation of the Grand Avenue and/or TVMWD‐3 wells.  

Enclosed 

Tables 1a, 1b, 2a and 2b 

Figures 1‐3 

Figures B‐3 to B‐5 and B‐6 to B‐11 (excerpts from Appendix B of the memo Analysis for Substantial 
Injury for the Proposed TVMWD‐3 Well, dated August 24, 2016) 

Proposed Update to the Operating Plan: Evaluation for the Potential for Substantial Injury – Draft 4 

Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Water Budget

Term
Basin/Sub‐Basin

Increase

(Decrease)

Compared to the 

Baseline 

Percent Increase

(Decrease)

Compared to the 

Baseline

Six Basins 0 0%

Four Basins 0 0%

UCH/Cyn Basins 0 0%

Pomona Basin 0 ‐

Two Basins 0 0%

Six Basins 74 77%

Four Basins 74 77%

UCH Basin 74 77%

Pomona Basin 0 ‐

Two Basins 0 ‐

Six Basins 624 4%

Four Basins 624 4%

UCH/LCH/Cyn Basins 624 8%

Pomona Basin 0 0%

Two Basins 0 0%

from the Six Basins (138) ‐1%

from the Pomona Basin (93) ‐1%

from the UCH Basin (45) ‐2%

Subsurface Outflow to

the Two Basins
from the LCH/Cyn Basin (226) ‐10%

from the CH Basins (243) ‐3%

from the Two Basins (17) ‐1%

Rising Groundwater Outflow Six Basins (228) ‐27%

Six Basins 366 2%

Four Basins 412 3%

UCH/LCH/Cyn Basins 514 8%

Pomona Basin (102) ‐1%

Two Basins (46) ‐2%

Six Basins (9,975) ‐52%

Four Basins (7,470) ‐13%

UCH/LCH/Cyn Basins (1,969) ‐4%

Pomona Basin (5,501) ‐68%

Two Basins (2,506) ‐7%

Notes:

UCH ‐ Upper Claremont Heights

LCH ‐ Lower Claremont Heights

CH ‐ Upper and Lower Claremont Heigths

Cyn ‐ Canyon

Table 2 from the memo Analysis for Substantial Injury for the Proposed TVMWD‐3 Well , dated August 24, 2016.

Cumulative Change in Storage

by the 

End of the Planning Period

Table 2a

Difference in Water Budget Summary
TVMWD Preferred minus Baseline

Average

Annual

Recharge 

(afy)

Storm‐Water Infiltration

at Spreading Grounds

Artificial Recharge

of Imported Water

Average

Annual

Discharge 

(afy)

Groundwater Production

Subsurface Outflow

to Chino Basin

Subsurface Outflow to

the Pomona Basin

Developed Yield

Tables 2‐4_WB_TVMWD‐3_summarytables‐Table_Base‐TVMWD

7/20/2017

Item 7



Water Budget

Term
Basin/Sub‐Basin

Increase

(Decrease)

Compared to the 

Baseline

Percent Increase

(Decrease)

Compared to the 

Baseline

Six Basins 0 0%

Four Basins 0 0%

UCH/Cyn Basins 0 0%

Pomona Basin 0 ‐

Two Basins 0 0%

Six Basins 624 648%

Four Basins 624 648%

UCH Basin 624 648%

Pomona Basin 0 ‐

Two Basins 0 ‐

Six Basins 624 4%

Four Basins 624 4%

UCH/LCH/Cyn Basins 624 8%

Pomona Basin 0 0%

Two Basins 0 0%

from the Six Basins 64 1%

from the Pomona Basin 27 0%

from the UCH Basin 37 1%

Subsurface Outflow to

the Two Basins
from the LCH/Cyn Basin (85) ‐4%

from the CH Basins 30 0%

from the Two Basins (12) ‐1%

Rising Groundwater Outflow Six Basins 48 6%

Six Basins (112) ‐1%

Four Basins (89) ‐1%

UCH/LCH/Cyn Basins 18 0%

Pomona Basin (107) ‐1%

Two Basins (23) ‐1%

Six Basins (6,039) ‐31%

Four Basins (4,813) ‐8%

UCH/LCH/Cyn Basins 956 2%

Pomona Basin (5,769) ‐71%

Two Basins (1,225) ‐3%

Notes:

UCH ‐ Upper Claremont Heights

LCH ‐ Lower Claremont Heights

CH ‐ Upper and Lower Claremont Heigths

Cyn ‐ Canyon

Table 3 from the memo Analysis for Substantial Injury for the Proposed TVMWD‐3 Well , dated August 24, 2016.

Cumulative Change in Storage

by the 

End of the Planning Period

Table 2b

Difference in Water Budget Summary
Replacement minus Baseline

Average

Annual

Recharge 

(afy)

Storm‐Water Infiltration

at Spreading Grounds

Artificial Recharge

of Imported Water

Average

Annual

Discharge 

(afy)

Groundwater Production

Subsurface Outflow

to Chino Basin

Subsurface Outflow to

the Pomona Basin

Developed Yield

Tables 2‐4_WB_TVMWD‐3_summarytables‐Table_Base‐Replce

7/20/2017

Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Item 7



Proposed Update to the Operating Plan 

Evaluation for the Potential for Substantial Injury – Draft 4 

The following  is recommended  language (Draft 4, redlined changes from Draft 3) for an update to the 
Operating Plan regarding the Evaluation for the Potential for Substantial Injury in the Six Basins:   

Evaluation for the Potential for Substantial Injury 

Definitions:  

Action means  
 installing a new production facility,  
 re‐location of a production facility,  
 constructing and operating a new recharge project,  
 a new or revised storage and recovery agreement,  
 transfers of production rights,  
 a Special Project, as defined in Section VI.B.11 of the Judgment, or  
 a combination of the any of the above,  

Application means a written notice of a proposed Action or written  request  for Watermaster 
approval of a proposed Action submitted by any Party. Applicant means a Party that submits an 
Application, as defined in the prior section, to Watermaster. 

Substantial Injury means injury to a Party, the basin, or the environment that is attributable to 
the implementation of an Action, including, but not limited to, rising groundwater, liquefaction, 
interference with the ability to pump OSY, increases in pump lift, degradation of water quality, or 
land subsidence. Actions are evaluated on a case‐by‐case basis to determine whether they have 
the potential to cause Substantial Injury. 

Process to Evaluate for the Potential for Substantial Injury:  

1. Applicant submits an Application to Watermaster staff that describes the proposed Action. 

2. Within 30 days of receipt of the Application, Watermaster staff reviews the Application, 
and prepares a memorandum for Watermaster review that contains recommendations as 
to: 

a. The need to evaluate the potential for the Action to cause Substantial Injury (or not). 

b. The proposed method(s) to perform the evaluation. 

c. A cost estimate and schedule to perform the evaluation. 

3. The  Watermaster,  at  its  discretion,  takes  action  on  the  recommendations  in  the 
memorandum at a Board meeting. 

4. If directed by the Watermaster, the Substantial Injury evaluation is performed pursuant to 
the  schedule  set by Watermaster  in  (3).    The Applicant may be  asked  to  confer  and 

Item 7



cooperate with the Watermaster, its staff, or consultants to carry out the Substantial Injury 
evaluation. 

5. Watermaster staff prepares a memorandum that describes the results of the Substantial 
Injury  evaluation,  including  any  recommendations  for  monitoring,  mitigation,  and 
reporting. 

6. The Watermaster takes action on the Substantial Injury evaluation at a Board meeting in 
one of the following ways: 

a. For  Actions  requiring Watermaster  approval, Watermaster may  (i)  approve  the 
Application and prescribe any terms and conditions,  (ii) order  further Substantial 
Injury evaluation, or (iii) deny the Application. 

b. For Actions requiring only notification to Watermaster, Watermaster may (i) adopt 
the findings of the Substantial Injury evaluation, (ii) order further Substantial Injury 
evaluation, or (iii) reject the findings of the Substantial Injury evaluation. 

7. For Actions requiring Watermaster approval, upon approval by Watermaster the Applicant 
shall have the right to proceed with the Action in accordance with the terms and conditions 
of said approval. 

 

Item 7



 HYDROLOGY ANALYSIS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 7



Grand Avenue Well 

Site Drainage Narrative 

1. Existing Condition  

Under existing conditions, the well site surface drains to the adjacent Grand Avenue. Grand Avenue 
drains from north to south to a low point at the cul-de-sac adjacent to the sound wall for the SR 210 
freeway. At this low point, there is a 7-foot catch basin in an 8-inch curb face, without local depression. 
The outlet pipe appears to be approximately an 18-inch square box culvert that passes under the sound 
wall to a Caltrans concrete rectangular channel (approximately 40-inches deep by 7-feet 4-inches wide) 
in the freeway right-of-way. The existing tributary drainage area to this low point is estimated to be 
approximately 0.8 acres as shown in the figure below. 

 

A portion of the church property to the north drains to the southwest corner of the church parking lot. 
This drainage then flows in a shallow rectangular channel under the block screen wall onto the well site. 
This drain flows into an inlet on the well site, then in an underground conduit that extends through the 
SR 210 sound wall and empties into the same Caltrans concrete rectangular channel in the freeway 

Item 7



right-of-way mentioned above. The tributary area of the church property at the point where it crosses 
into the well site is estimated to be approximately 2.4 acres as shown in the figure below. 

 

2. Proposed Condition 

The proposed site plan includes drilling a new water well and providing for a structure to house the well 
equipment. The existing drain from the church property conflicts with the proposed location of the well 
and enclosure as it passes directly through the middle of the parcel.  

The proposed change is to divert the church parking lot drainage to flow directly to Grand Avenue. This 
would include extending the existing curb and gutter approximately 24 feet west from the church 
parking area to the back of the existing sidewalk, and a parkway culvert under the sidewalk. This would 
increase the total tributary drainage area to the low point catch basin to approximately 3.2 acres. 

For this size drainage area, LA County allows use of the rational method equation – Q=CiA, where Q is 
the predicted flow in cfs, C is a runoff coefficient, i is the rainfall intensity at the time of concentration in 
inches per hour, and A is the tributary drainage area in acres. For this site, the land use is predominately 
impervious surfaces, so a C value of 0.9 is appropriate. Assuming a 10-minute time of concentration, 

Item 7



NOAA Atlas 14 reports a 10-year return frequency rainfall of 0.389 inches, or 2.334 inches per hour and 
a 25-year return frequency rainfall of 0.483 inches, or 2.898 inches per hour. Based on these values, the 
expected 10-year flow at the catch basin would be 6.72 cfs and the expected 25-year flow would be 8.34 
cfs. 

 

As mentioned in the Existing Condition section, it appears that the outlet to the catch basin is an 18-inch 
square RCB. Modeling the outlet using HY-8 indicates that the 25-year flow depth at 8.34 cfs would be 
1.68 feet deep in the catch basin. This indicates that the catch basin outlet has sufficient capacity to 
carry the flow without increasing flooding in the street.  

The other component of potential flooding concern would be the capacity of the catch basin inlet. For a 
7-foot long catch basin in a sump with an 8-inch high curb face and a 6-inch high opening, the water 
depth to accept the 10-year flow of 6.72 cfs would be approximately 5.46 inches, or 2.54 inches below 
the top of curb. For the 25-year flow of 8.34 cfs, the water depth would be approximately 6.60 inches, or 
1.40 inches below the top of curb. This depth of water would be contained within the street section. 
Topo shots indicate that the top of curb at the catch basin is at elevation 1483.83, so the ponding level 
for a 10-year flow would be to elevation 1483.62, and the ponding level for the 25-year flow would be to 
elevation 1483.71. This depth of water would be contained within the street section. 

Item 7



 RESPONSE TO COMMENTS 

 

Item 7



Appendix D 
Response to Comments 

 
Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Three Valleys Municipal Water District 
New Groundwater Production Well No. 4 (TVMWD Grand Avenue Well) & Pipeline 

 
Note: This Appendix D is being added to the Draft IS/MND to ensure a complete record. 
The addition of this appendix will appear in the Final IS/MND that is adopted by the 
TVMWD.  
 
In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the CEQA 
Guidelines, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District (TVMWD) has hereby prepared a 
Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) for public review and 
comment. The Draft IS/MND has identified and evaluated the potential environmental 
impacts of the proposed new groundwater production well and associated conveyance 
pipeline.  
 
The Draft IS/MND was distributed for public review on October 23, 2017 initiating a 30-day 
public review period that ended on November 22, 2017. The document was made 
available online at www.ThreeValleys.com, at the County of Los Angeles Public Library - 
Claremont, and at TVMWD’s office.    
 
A total of five letters were received before the close of the comment period.  Pursuant 
to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines §15073, “The lead agency 
shall notify in writing any public agency which comments on a proposed negative 
declaration or mitigated negative declaration of any public hearing to be held for the 
project for which the document was prepared.” 
 
This document adds Appendix D to the Draft IS/MND to memorialize the written 
comments and responses to the environmental issues raised in these letters. The written 
responses describe the disposition of significant environmental issues raised, as required 
by CEQA Guidelines §15073.  
 

Table 1 
Comment Letters on Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

 
Letter Number Public Agency, Organization, Individual Date of Letter 

1 Colbert Environmental Group November 20, 2017 
2 City of Claremont November 20, 2017 
3 Department of Transportation – District 7 November 14, 2017 
4 Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians  November 7, 2017 
5 Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians October 25, 2017 

Item 7



 

Letter 1 – Letter from Colbert Environmental Group 

1-1  

Comment noted. TVMWD will design and construct the proposed 
well and pipeline according to best engineering practices. 
Approximately 9,100 sq. ft. of trenching activities is estimated for the 
new pipeline and 24 linear feet (48 sq. ft.) of new curb and gutter 
extensions will be installed. In addition, approximately 3,400 sq. ft. 
area will be disturbed on-site during construction of the well and 
enclosure. Construction equipment staging areas will occur within 
the church parking lot and over existing asphalt. The total area of 
land disturbing activities is approximately 12,600 sq. ft.  

1-2  

Comment noted. TVMWD will notify the City of Claremont prior to 
the planned or unplanned discharge of groundwater in excess of 
10,000 gallons and will comply with the City’s monitoring 
procedures as outlined in the attached letter from the City of 
Claremont.  

1-3 

TVMWD’s engineering consultant has prepared a Hydrology Study 
(Appendix C) for the Proposed Project, which documents the 
current and proposed stormwater runoff conditions, capacity of 
catch basin and MS4 system, and proposed revisions. The 
Hydrology Study indicates that the existing catch basin is adequate 
to accommodate the anticipated stormwater runoff due to the 
proposed revisions (i.e. re-routing of runoff). The proposed project 
does not increase the net total stormwater runoff. 

1-4 

TVMWD will provide the supporting documents and apply to the 
City of Claremont for a Storm Sewer Connection Permit.  

1-1 

1-2 

1-3 

1-4 

Item 7



  

Letter 1 – Letter from Colbert Environmental Group 

1-5 

The Los Angeles Municipal Storm Water Permit Conditional 
Exemption has been noted. TVMWD will implement 
appropriate Best Management Practices (BMPs) (per the 
American Water Works Guidelines) and will notify the City at 
least 72 hours prior to a planned discharge greater than 
10,000 gallons and as soon as possible after an unplanned 
discharge greater than 10,000 gallons.  

During well development and testing, it is anticipated that 
discharges to the storm drain will exceed 10,000 gallons.  The 
drilling contractor will be required to monitor and test for all 
pollutants of concern in the discharge water including 
debris, organic matter, total suspended solids (TSS), residual 
chlorine, pH, and any pollutants for which there is a water 
quality-based effluent limitation as specified in Part VI.E of 
the City’s MS-4 permit. TVMWD, through their drilling 
contractor and hydrogeologist, will keep and maintain 
records of the planned discharges, as required by the City. 

  

1-5 

Item 7



  

Letter 1 – Letter from Colbert Environmental Group 

1-5 (continued)  

The Los Angeles Municipal Storm Water Permit Conditional 
Exemption has been noted. TVMWD will implement 
appropriate Best Management Practices (BMPs) (per the 
American Water Works Guidelines) and will notify the City at 
least 72 hours prior to a planned discharge greater than 
10,000 gallons and as soon as possible after an unplanned 
discharge greater than 10,000 gallons.  

During well development and testing, it is anticipated that 
discharges to the storm drain will exceed 10,000 gallons.  The 
drilling contractor will be required to monitor and test for all 
pollutants of concern in the discharge water including 
debris, organic matter, total suspended solids (TSS), residual 
chlorine, pH, and any pollutants for which there is a water 
quality-based effluent limitation as specified in Part VI.E of 
the City’s MS-4 permit. TVMWD, through their drilling 
contractor and hydrogeologist, will keep and maintain 
records of the planned discharges, as required by the City. 

 

1-5 

Item 7



  

Letter 2 – Letter from City of Claremont 

2-1 

Comment noted. An email approval from the Los Angeles 
County Fire Department was provided on July 27, 2017.  

2-2 

Comment noted. TVMWD has confirmed that there is 
external illumination near the project site (Exhibits 1-3, 5-7). 
One street light is located approximately 60 ft. north of the 
proposed well site and illuminates a portion of the cul-de-
sac. In addition, two light poles exist in the church parking lot 
and are south facing towards the project site (Exhibits 1-3, 5-
7). All temporary lighting sources will be directed towards the 
project site and shielded by a 24-ft. tall sound barrier during 
nighttime construction activities.  

2-3 

Comment noted. Page 3.7 Table 2 of the Draft IS/MND 
addresses air quality impacts during construction of the 
pipeline. Table 2 illustrates that the total estimated 
construction of well and pipeline air quality impacts are 
below the SCQAMD Regional and Localized Thresholds and 
are therefore less than significant.  

2-4 

Comment noted. Erosion control will comply with the City’s 
MS4 Ordinance. TVMWD will implement BMPs for pipeline 
and well installation and will be consistent with Regional 
Water Board requirements.  

2-1 

2-2 

2-3 

2-4 

Item 7



  

Letter 2 – Letter from City of Claremont 

2-4 (continued) Comment noted. TVMWD will comply with the City’s 
Sanitary Sewer Maintenance Plan in the event there is a potential 
hazardous material spill. In addition, the proposed layout was 
approved by the Fire Department on July 27, 2017 and the approval 
was forwarded to the City of Claremont. 

2-5 

Comment noted. The Draft IS/MND includes a Hydrology Report 
(Appendix C) prepared by a licensed Stantec Civil Engineer, which 
indicates that the existing catch basin has adequate capacity and 
its low point will not flow into the nearby Stone Creek development. 
The high point of the existing emergency fire access concrete 
driveway is 1.5 ft. above the existing catch basin (Exhibit 4). In 
addition, Land Use and Planning is addressed on Page 3.27 of the 
Draft IS/MND. 

2-6 

Comment noted. During all 24/7 phases of well drilling and 
construction, the drilling contractor will be required to keep in place 
24-ft. high noise attenuation panels between the well site and 
nearby residences.  Noise levels between the construction site and 
nearby residences will be monitored on a regular basis to verify 
compliance with noise limits specified in the City’s General Plan. 

2-7 

The Fire Department has reviewed and approved the proposed site 
layout. In addition, the Proposed Project does not involve re-design 
of the cul-de-sac. The Fire Department has not commented or 
expressed any concerns regarding the size of the cul-de-sac.  

2-8 

Page 3.42 addresses appropriate potential traffic control measures. 

  

2-4 

2-5 

2-6 

2-7 

2-8 

2-5 

Item 7



  

Letter 2 – Letter from City of Claremont 

2-8 (continued) Roads may be temporary limited to one lane during 
construction, but appropriate traffic control measures and devices will be 
used that comply with the Work Area Traffic Control Handbook (WATCH). 
These potential impacts are temporary and will be mitigated by appropriate 
traffic control measures such as construction of the water pipeline during 
the summer to minimize potential impacts to the nearby Western Christian 
School. In addition, construction hours may be limited to avoid morning and 
evening rush hour traffic.  

2-9 Comment noted. As a public agency, the District is statutorily exempt 
from such regulation by the City.  Specifically, Government Code Section 
53091(d) expressly states that “ordinances of a county or city shall not apply 
to the location or construction of facilities for the production, generation, 
storage, treatment, or transmission of water … by a local agency.” 
Additionally, Government Code Section 53091(e) further illustrates that 
“ordinances of a county or city shall not apply to the location or construction 
of facilities for the production, generation, storage, treatment, or 
transmission of water.”  

2-10 TVMWD has addressed noise mitigation measures on Page 3.33 of the 
Draft IS/MND to reduce construction and operation related noise.  Also see 
response to comment 2-6. 

2-11 The District plans to construct a 6-foot tall wall along the perimeter of 
the parcel with a sliding access gate facing Grand Avenue. TVMWD has 
addressed the visual appearance of the well enclosure on Page 3.1 of the 
Draft IS/MND and included reference to Figure 4 for a conceptual rendering 
of the proposed well enclosure/building. A 24-ft. high sound barrier will be 
temporary installed during well drilling and construction to reduce potential 
noise impacts.  The sound wall will be dismantled and removed upon 
completion of well construction.  

2-12 

As described on Page 3.1, motion detector lights and cameras will be 
installed for security measures along with a security gate. 

2-13 

As described on Page 3.20, no chemicals will be stored on site.  

2-9 

2-10 

2-11 

2-12 

2-13 

Item 7



  

Letter 3 – Letter from Department of Transportation District 7 

3-1 

Comment noted. TVMWD will coordinate the proposed runoff re-
routing revisions (i.e. per Stantec Hydrology Report) with the City of 
Claremont and will share it with Caltrans before commencing to 
construct the Proposed Project.  

  

3-1 

Item 7



  

Letter 4 – Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians 

4-1 

On October 24, 2017, TVMWD notified California Native American 
Tribes who had formally requested notification on CEQA projects 
under Assembly Bill 52. TVMWD received comments from the 
Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians Kizh Nation and scheduled an 
in-person meeting to review the Proposed Project. The District‘s 
environmental consultant preformed a cultural records search and 
determined that no sensitive cultural resources were discovered 
within the proposed project area. In addition, the City of Claremont 
General Plan does not identify any specific archaeological features 
or resources within the City. Furthermore, no Native American 
cultural resources were discovered or encountered during 
construction of the 210 Foothill Freeway extension in early 2000’s, 
which runs east and west immediately south of the proposed well 
site. The freeway extension involved excavating a swath of land 
approximately 200 feet wide by over 10 miles long. Therefore, the 
possibility that Native American cultural resources may be 
encountered during construction (ground disturbing) activities of 
the proposed project is very low. Nevertheless, the District will 
implement mitigation measures CUL-1 and CUL-2 in the Final IS/MND 
to potentially reduce or avoid impacts to tribal cultural resources.  

  

4-1 

Item 7



  

Letter 4 – Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians 

4-2 

The following mitigation measures have been included in the Final IS/MND 
and shall be implemented to reduce or avoid impacts to tribal cultural 
resources.  

CUL-1: The Proposed Project Applicant shall be required to obtain the 
services of a licensed archeologist monitor during construction-related 
ground disturbance activities. Ground disturbance is defined as activities 
that include, but are not limited to, pavement removal, pot-holing or 
auguring, grubbing, boring, grading, excavation, drilling, and trenching, 
within the Proposed Project area. The monitor would be present on-site 
during the construction phases that involve any ground disturbing activities. 
The monitor would complete monitoring logs daily. The logs would provide 
descriptions of the daily activities, including construction activities, locations, 
soil, and any cultural materials identified. In addition, the monitor would be 
required to provide insurance certificates, including liability insurance, for 
any archaeological resource(s) encountered during grading and 
excavation activities pertinent to the provisions outlined in the California 
Environmental Quality Act, California Public Resources Code Division 13, 
Section 21083.2 (a) through (k). The on-site monitoring shall end when the 
Proposed Project site grading and excavation activities are completed.   

CUL-2: If human remains are encountered during ground disturbing 
activities, the applicant shall arrange a designated site location within the 
footprint of the Proposed Project area for the respectful reburial of the 
human remains and/or ceremonial objects. Any discoveries of human 
skeletal material shall be immediately reported to the County Coroner. The 
monitor shall immediately divert work at an adequate distance away, but 
within the street right-of-way and place an exclusion zone around the burial. 
The monitor shall then notify the applicant’s qualified archaeologist and the 
construction manager who shall call the coroner. Work shall continue to be 
diverted while the coroner determines whether the remains are Native 
American. The discovery is to be kept confidential and secure to prevent 
any further disturbance. 

4-2 

Item 7



                       

Letter 4 – Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians 

4-2 (continued)  

If Native American, the coroner shall notify the NAHC as mandated by state 
law. In the case where discovered human remains cannot be fully 
documented and recovered on the same day, the remains shall be 
covered with muslin cloth and a steel plate that can be moved by heavy 
equipment placed over the excavation opening to protect the remains. If 
this type of steel plate is not available, a 24-hour guard should be posted 
outside of working hours. The Tribe shall make every effort to recommend 
diverting the project and keeping the remains in situ and protected. If the 
project cannot be diverted, it shall be determined that burials will be 
removed. The Tribe shall work closely with the applicant’s qualified 
archaeologist to ensure that the excavation is treated carefully, ethically, 
and respectfully. If data recovery is approved by the Tribe, documentation 
shall be taken which includes at a minimum detailed descriptive notes and 
sketches. Cremations shall be removed in bulk to ensure complete recovery 
of all material. If the discovery of human remains includes 4 or more burials, 
the location is considered a cemetery and a separate treatment plan shall 
be created. The project applicant shall consult with the Tribe regarding 
avoidance of all cemetery sites. Once complete, a final report of all 
activities shall be submitted to the NAHC. The Tribe shall not authorize any 
scientific study or the utilization of any invasive diagnostics on human 
remains. If the coroner determines the remains represent a historic non-
Native American burial, the burial shall be treated in the same manner of 
respect with agreement of the coroner. If the coroner determines the 
remains to be modern, the coroner shall take custody of the remains.   

Each occurrence of human remains and associated funerary objects shall 
be stored using opaque cloth bags. All human remains, funerary objects, 
sacred objects, and objects of cultural patrimony shall be removed to a 
secure container on site if possible. These items shall be retained and 
reburied within six months of recovery. There shall be no publicity regarding 
any cultural materials recovered.  

4-2 

Item 7



                       

Letter 5 – Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians 

5-1 

On November 2, 2017, the District, and the Gabrieleno Band 
of Mission Indians – Kizh Nation held an in-person meeting to 
discuss the proposed project and it’s potential to encounter 
sensitive cultural resources during construction (ground 
disturbing) activities. The District was provided standard 
mitigation measures from the Kizh Nation in a letter received 
on November 7, 2017. The District revised these mitigation 
measures and have included them as mitigation measures 
CUL-1 and CUL-2 in the Final IS/MND to potentially reduce or 
avoid impacts to tribal cultural resources.  5-1 

Item 7



 
                      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Letter 5 – Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians  

5-1 (continued)  

On November 2, 2017, the District scheduled an in-person 
meeting with the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians and 
was provided a 1937 LA County Kirkman-Harriman Pictorial 
and Historical Map by Andrew Salas, Chairman of the 
Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians – Kizh Nation. This map 
illustrates potential trade routes and village sites in Southern 
California.   

  

Item 7



 
                      

Letter 5 – Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians  

5-1 (continued)  

The District appreciates the comments received by the 
Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians and meeting Mr. Andrew 
Salas, Chairman of the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians – Kizh 
Nation. The following is the District’s email correspondence with 
the Kizh Nation. 

  

Item 7



 
 

Letter 5 – Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians  

5-1 (continued)  

The District appreciates the comments received by the 
Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians and meeting Mr. Andrew 
Salas, Chairman of the Gabrieleno Band of Mission Indians – Kizh 
Nation. The following is the District’s email correspondence with 
the Kizh Nation. 

  

  

Item 7



 
 
 

     Exhibit 1                  Exhibit 2 
 

   
 
 
 
 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 7



 
Exhibit 3                  Exhibit 4 

 

   
  
 
  
 
 

Item 7



Exhibit 5                  Exhibit 6 
 

   
 
 

Exhibit 7 
 

  

Item 7



 
 
 
 
 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors 

From: Richard W. Hansen, General Manager  

Date: December 6, 2017 

Subject: Adopt Resolution No. 17-12-813 to Approve Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and CEQA for TVMWD 
Grand Avenue Groundwater Well, Project No. 58446 

 

 

 For Action  Fiscal Impact  Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only  Cost Estimate $  

 

Requested Action: 

Adopt Resolution No. 17-12-813 to approve the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative 
Declaration (IS/MND) and CEQA documentation for the TVMWD Grand Avenue Well 
pending outcome of the Public Hearing. 
 
Discussion:  

During the regular Board meeting of November 1, 2017, Staff provided an update on the 
status of TVMWD’s planning, design, and environmental review of the proposed 
groundwater well on TVMWD property located at the southeast end of the cul-de-sac on 
Grand Avenue (south of Baseline Road) in the city of Claremont.   

In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act and the Guidelines 
promulgated thereunder, TVMWD has prepared and circulated a draft Initial 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS-MND) for the proposed project. 

TVMWD prepared and published public notification(s) for this project pursuant to 
Government Code Section 6061 in newspapers of general circulation:  Inland Valley 
Daily Bulletin and San Gabriel Valley Tribune.  The Notice of Availability and Notice of 
Intent to Adopt an Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration was published on 
October 23, 2017, and included information regarding the public comment period that 
ended on November 22, 2017, and the proposed Public Hearing scheduled during 
today’s Board meeting.  A separate Public Hearing notice was also published on 
December 1, 2017. 

Staff Report/Memorandum 
 

Item 8



To date, TVMWD has received written comments on the draft IS/MND that staff believes 
have been adequately addressed in writing (see attached documents). Staff 
recommends Board approval to adopt the Draft IS/MND and related CEQA 
documentation pending the outcome of the public hearing. 

 

 

Strategic Plan Objective: 

1.3 – Maintain diverse sources of water supplies and storage, and increase water 
storage supplies to 10,000 AF 

2.2 – Utilize 20,000 AF of Miramar treatment plant production to meet annual 
demands 

2.3 – Manage water infrastructure and staff operations to minimize costs 

 

Item 8



To date, TVMWD has received several written comments on the draft IS/MND that staff 
believes have been adequately addressed in writing (see attached documents) and do 
not require additional time to consider.  Staff recommends Board approval to adopt the 
Draft IS/MND and related CEQA documentation pending the outcome of the public 
hearing. 

 

 

Strategic Plan Objective: 

1.3 – Maintain diverse sources of water supplies and storage, and increase water 
storage supplies to 10,000 AF 

2.2 – Utilize 20,000 AF of Miramar treatment plant production to meet annual 
demands 

2.3 – Manage water infrastructure and staff operations to minimize costs 

 

Item 8



RESOLUTION NO. 17-12-813 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

ADOPTING A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
FOR THE GRAND AVENUE GROUNDWATER PRODUCTION WELL  

PROJECT NO. 58446 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Three Valleys Municipal Water District (“District”) is a Municipal 
Water District located in the County of Los Angeles and organized and operating 
pursuant to California Water Code Section 71000 et seq.; 

 
WHEREAS, in implementing the statutory functions of a Municipal Water District, 

the District seeks to improve its service obligations, including the management and 
storage of local groundwater in the Claremont and Pomona areas of the District;  
 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of said goals, the District has considered the 
construction and operation of a groundwater production well located south of Baseline 
Road at the southeast end of the cul-de-sac on Grand Avenue, in the city of Claremont, 
as described in the Initial Study attached hereto and incorporated herein (“the Project”); 

 
WHEREAS, the District is subject to the requirements of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), Public Resources Code (“PRC”) Section 21000 et 
seq., and the state Guidelines promulgated thereunder, California Code of Regulations 
(“CCR”) Section 15000 et seq., which Guidelines have been incorporated into the 
District’s Local CEQA Guidelines by operation of Resolution No. 07-06-554, since the 
District qualifies as a “local agency” within the meaning of PRC Section 21062 and CCR 
Section 15368; 

 
WHEREAS, the Project is a “project” within the purview of CEQA and its 

Guidelines pursuant to PRC Section 21065 and CCR Section 15378; 
 
WHEREAS, the District is the appropriate “lead agency” under PRC Section 

21067 and CCR Section 15367 for making determinations under CEQA and the 
Guidelines with respect to the potential impact, if any, of the Project on the environment; 
 

WHEREAS, the District caused the preparation of the attached Initial Study for 
the Project pursuant to CCR Section 15063 which determined that a Mitigated Negative 
Declaration within the meaning of PRC Sections 21064.5 and 21080(c)(2) and CCR 
Sections 15369.5 and 15070(b) would adequately address any potential effects of the 
Project on the environment; 

 
WHEREAS, the District provided public notice and a public review period of not 

less than thirty (30) days for the Initial Study and the proposed Mitigated Negative 
Declaration in accordance with CCR Sections 15072 and 15073, and held a public 
hearing on the proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration on December 6, 2017; and 
 

Item 8



WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Directors has considered the Initial Study, the 
proposed Mitigated Negative Declaration, all written comments thereto received during 
the public review process, all written and oral comments thereto received during the 
public hearing process, and all written and oral responses to said comments. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Three 
Valleys Municipal Water District of Los Angeles County that, pursuant to PRC Section 
21080(c) and CCR Section 15074(b), on the basis of the whole of the record before the 
District’s Board of Directors (including the Initial Study and any comments received), 
there is no substantial evidence that the Project will have a significant effect on the 
environment if the mitigation measures contained in the Mitigated Negative Declaration 
attached hereto and incorporated herein are incorporated into the Project, and said 
Mitigated Negative Declaration reflects the District’s independent judgment and 
analysis. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District’s Board of Directors hereby adopts 
the attached Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Project, and adopts the program for 
reporting on or monitoring the Project’s mitigation measures contained therein as 
required by CCR Section 15074(d), and hereby approves the Project. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District’s General Manager is hereby 
authorized and directed to file with the County Clerk of Los Angeles County a Notice of 
Determination pursuant to PRC Section 21152(a) and CCR Section 15075 consistent 
with this Resolution within five working days after the adoption of this Resolution. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the custodian of the documents or other 

materials which constitute the record of proceedings upon which the District’s decision 
is based shall be the District’s General Manager, and the location of said records shall 
be the District’s headquarters located at 1021 East Miramar Avenue, Claremont, 
California. 

 
 ADOPTED, this 6th day of December 2017. 
 
  AYES:   
  NOES:  

 ABSTAIN:   
  ABSENT:  

   
 _______________________________   
 Bob G. Kuhn, President 
 Board of Directors  

 
ATTEST: 
 

 
_______________________ 
Brian Bowcock, Secretary 
Board of Directors        SEAL 

Item 8



Authority cited: Sections 21083, Public Resources Code. 
Reference Section 21000-21174, Public Resources Code. Revised 2011 

Notice of Determination Appendix D 

 

To: 
 Office of Planning and Research 

 U.S. Mail: Street Address: 

 P.O. Box 3044 1400 Tenth St., Rm 113 

 Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 Sacramento, CA 95814 
 

 County Clerk 
 County of: _________________________________  
 Address: __________________________________  
  _________________________________________  
 

From: 
Public Agency: ___________________________  
Address: ________________________________  
 _______________________________________  

Contact: _________________________________  

Phone: __________________________________  

Lead Agency (if different from above):  
 _______________________________________  
Address: ________________________________  
 _______________________________________  
Contact: _________________________________  
Phone: __________________________________  

SUBJECT: Filing of Notice of Determination in compliance with Section 21108 or 21152 of the Public 
Resources Code. 

State Clearinghouse Number (if submitted to State Clearinghouse): ______________________________  

Project Title: _________________________________________________________________________  

Project Applicant: _____________________________________________________________________  

Project Location (include county): _________________________________________________________  

Project Description:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
This is to advise that the  ____________________________________________  has approved the above 
 (  Lead Agency or  Responsible Agency) 

described project on  _______________ and has made the following determinations regarding the above  
 (date) 
described project. 
 
1. The project [  will   will not] have a significant effect on the environment. 

2.  An Environmental Impact Report was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA. 

2.  A Negative Declaration was prepared for this project pursuant to the provisions of CEQA. 

3. Mitigation measures [  were   were not] made a condition of the approval of the project. 

4. A mitigation reporting or monitoring plan [  was   was not] adopted for this project. 

5. A statement of Overriding Considerations [  was   was not] adopted for this project. 

6. Findings [  were   were not] made pursuant to the provisions of CEQA. 

This is to certify that the final EIR with comments and responses and record of project approval, or the 
negative Declaration, is available to the General Public at: 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Signature (Public Agency): _____________________________ Title: ____________________________  
 
Date: _______________________________  Date Received for filing at OPR: ____________________  

Three Valleys Municipal Water Distri

1021 E. Miramar Avenue

Claremont, CA 91711

Ben Peralta

909-621-5568

Los Angeles

12400 Imperial Highway

Norwalk, CA 90650

Proposed Groundwater Production Well No. 4 & Pipeline

Three Valleys Municipal Water District

Grand Avenue and Padua Avenue, Claremont, California

December 6, 2017

Three Valleys Municipal Water District, 1021 E. Miramar Avenue, Claremont, CA 91711

Print Form

Three Valleys Municipal Water District

The Project is located on property owned by TVMWD, and involves constructing a new production well and

associated pipeline within the City of Claremont in order to increase TVMWD’s capability to extract groundwater. The

Project would pump groundwater from the Upper Claremont Heights Basin and would discharge it into an 8-inch

diameter untreated water main that would be routed along Grand Avenue and Baseline Road to its intersection with

Padua Avenue. A 12-inch diameter pipe would be proposed from this intersection to the Miramar Treatment Plant, for

a total of 6,100 linear feet of ductile iron pipe.

Item 8



MINUTES 
REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

Wednesday, November 1, 2017 
8:00 a.m. 

 

1. Call to Order 

The Board of Directors meeting of Three Valleys Municipal Water District (TVMWD) was 
called to order at 8:00 a.m. at the TVMWD office located at 1021 East Miramar Avenue, 
Claremont, California. The presiding officer was President Bob Kuhn. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

The flag salute was led by President Bob Kuhn. 

3. Roll Call 

Roll call was taken with a quorum of the board present. Director Mendoza had an excused 
absence. Director Goytia was absent from the roll call. 
 

Guests and others present: Kathy Cole, MWD; Paul DiMaggio, Suburban Water Systems; 
Mike Holmes, Walnut Valley Water District; Maria Elena Kennedy, Kennedy 
Communications; Ben Lewis, Golden State Water Company; Director Tony Lima, Rowland 
Water District; Darron Poulsen, City of Pomona; Dave Warren, Rowland Water District  

4. Additions to Agenda 

President Kuhn inquired if there was a need to add items to the agenda. Staff did not have 
a need to add items to the agenda. 

5. Reorder Agenda 

President Kuhn inquired if there was a need to reorder the agenda. Staff did not have a 
need to reorder the agenda. 

Director Goytia joined meeting at 8:03 a.m. 

6. Public Comment 

President Kuhn called for any public comment. There were no requests for public 
comment. 
  

Directors Present 
Bob Kuhn, President 
David De Jesus, Vice President 
Brian Bowcock, Secretary 
Joseph Ruzicka, Treasurer 
Dan Horan, Director 

Carlos Goytia, Director 

 
Directors Absent 
John Mendoza, Director (excused) 

 

Staff Present 
Rick Hansen, General Manager 
Steve Kennedy, Legal Counsel 
Liz Cohn, Senior Financial Analyst 
Vicki Hahn, District Clerk/Executive Assistant 
Mario Garcia, Manager of Engineering & Planning 
Kirk Howie, Assistant GM-Administration 
Steve Lang, Water Operations Manager 
James Linthicum, Chief Finance Officer 
Ben Peralta, Project Engineer 
 

Item 9.1Item 9.1



7. Presentation – Kathy Cole, Legislative Advocate – Metropolitan Water 
District 

Ms. Cole presented the Board a recap the recently concluded year one of the 2017-2018 
legislative session, and forecasts for year two of the session that will begin on January 3, 
2018. Several bills that passed or failed this last legislative session that will, or may have 
had an impact on the industry were highlighted. A full copy of the presentation is available 
upon request. 

8.  General Manager’s Report 

8.A – Administration 

8.A.1 Resolution No. 17-11-DRAFT Surplus Property 

The Board was provided a review of the procedure TVMWD utilizes to surplus District 
property in accordance with Resolution No. 04-11-488, that was adopted by the Board 
in November 2004. Staff reviewed Exhibit A, that included several items of limited value, 
along with two higher valued electric carts TVMWD will surplus.  Staff was directed to 
return this item to the next meeting for action. 

8.A.2 LAFCO Nomination of Alternate Member – Special Districts 

The Board was provided a copy of the materials to place a candidate in nomination to 
serve as the Alternate Member – Special Districts, for the Los Angeles Area Formation 
Commission of Los Angeles (LAFCO). TVMWD Director, Joe Ruzicka has served in this 
capacity since 2014 when he filled the seat to complete the unexpired term of 
Commissioner Lillian Kawasaki. The current term will expire in May 2018. Director 
Ruzicka has expressed interest in continuing to serve as the Alternate Member – 
Special Districts and is seeking the TVMWD Board support to do so. Staff was directed 
to return this item to the next meeting for action. 

8.A.3 Mileage Reporting Standardization 

The Board was provided with a draft template of designated mileage, to be used to 
report eligible mileage reimbursement in accordance with IRS mileage standards to 
various venues they travel to for District business. President Kuhn acknowledged 
Executive Assistant, Vicki Hahn for a thorough job in preparing this tool. He further 
commented that this is just one more way that TVMWD is ahead of the curve in 
illustrating its efforts toward transparency. Mr. Hansen informed that staff went back 
several years to determine the venues to include on the template, and that we recognize 
that the template will not be all inclusive. 

Staff utilized www.googlemaps.com to come up with the mileage; utilizing the shortest 
distance from the Director’s home to the venue, with numbers rounded to the nearest 
whole number for round trip travel. Directors were encouraged to use the template, and 
that if there are variables, that they be noted on the expense report. It was suggested 
that any significant variances be reported to staff, so they can be corrected on the 
template. 

  

Item 9.1Item 9.1

http://www.googlemaps.com/


8.B – Engineering and Operations 

8.B.1 Project Summary Update 

The Board was provided with an update of ongoing projects at the District including a 
photographic presentation of progress. The full report was included as part of the 
agenda packet and is available upon request. 

9. Closed Session 

The Board convened to closed session at 9:18 a.m. to review one item as follows: 

9.A Public Employee Performance Evaluation (pursuant to Government 

Code Section 59457) – Title: General Manager 

10. Report Out of Closed Session 

The Board reconvened to regular session at 10:00 a.m. The Board was briefed on the 
referenced matter in closed session; there was no reportable action pursuant to the Brown 
Act. 

11. Future Agenda Items 

There were no requests for future agenda items. Items requested for action during today’s 
meeting will be returned on the next agenda. 

12. Adjournment 

The Board adjourned at 10:01 a.m. to its next regular meeting scheduled for Wednesday, 
November 15, 2017 at 8:00 a.m. 

 

/s/ Bob Kuhn 
President, Board of Directors 
Three Valleys Municipal Water District 

 

 

Recorded by: Victoria A. Hahn, 
District Clerk/Executive Assistant  

 

Item 9.1Item 9.1



MINUTES 
REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

Wednesday, November 15, 2017 
8:00 a.m. 

 

1. Call to Order 

The Board of Directors meeting of Three Valleys Municipal Water District (TVMWD) 
was called to order at 8:00 a.m. at the TVMWD office located at 1021 East Miramar 
Avenue, Claremont, California. The presiding officer was President Bob Kuhn. 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

The flag salute was led by President Bob Kuhn. 

3. Roll Call 

Roll call was taken with a quorum of board present.  

Directors Present 
Bob Kuhn, President 
David De Jesus, Vice President 
Brian Bowcock, Secretary 
Dan Horan, Director 

Carlos Goytia, Director 

John Mendoza, Director 

 
Directors Absent 
Joseph Ruzicka, Treasurer (excused) 

 

Staff Present 
Rick Hansen, General Manager 
Steve Kennedy, Legal Counsel 
Dominique Aguiar, Water Operations Supervisor 
Liz Cohn, Senior Financial Analyst 
Vicki Hahn, District Clerk/Executive Assistant 
Steve Lang, Water Operations Manager 
James Linthicum, Chief Finance Officer 
Ben Peralta, Project Engineer 
 

Guests and others present: Tom Coleman, Rowland Water District; Paul DiMaggio, 
Suburban Water Systems; Director Ted Ebenkamp, Walnut Valley Water District; 
Maria Elena Kennedy, Kennedy Communications; Erik Hitchman, Walnut Valley 
Water District; Ben Lewis, Golden State Water Company; Director Tony Lima, 
Rowland Water District; Director Szu Pei Lu-Yang, Rowland Water District; Dean 
McHenry, League of Women Voters; Darron Poulsen, City of Pomona; Brian Teuber, 
Walnut Valley Water District; Dave Warren, Rowland Water District;  

4. Additions to Agenda 

President Kuhn inquired if there was a need to add items to the agenda. Staff did 
not have a need to add items to the agenda. 

5. Reorder Agenda 

President Kuhn inquired if there was a need to reorder the agenda. Staff did not 
have a need to reorder the agenda. 

6. Public Comment 

President Kuhn called for any public comment. There were no requests for public 
comment. 

Item 9.1Item 9.1



7. Consent Calendar  

The Board was asked to consider the Consent Calendar Items (7.1-7.6) for the 
November 15, 2017 Board meeting that included: (7.1) Receive, approve and file, 
October 2017 Minutes for October 4, 2017 and October 18, 2017 Regular Board 
Meetings; (7.2) Approve October 2017 Financial Reports; (7.3) Approve Resolution 
No. 17-11-812 Surplus Property; (7.4) Approve Nomination of LAFCO Alternate 
Member for Special Districts, Joe Ruzicka; (7.5) Approve Mileage Reporting 
Standardization Guidelines; (7.6) Receive and file FY 17-18 First Quarter Reserve 
Update. 

Upon motion and second the floor was opened for discussion. There being no 
discussion, President Kuhn called for the vote. 

Moved: Goytia; Second: Horan 
Motion No. 17-11-5155 – Approving Consent Calendar Items 7.1 
– 7.6 for November 15, 2017. The motion passed with a 6-0 
majority vote; Director Ruzicka had an excused absence. 

8. General Manager’s Report 

8.A – Administration 

8.A.1  Approve Director Expense Reports, October 2017 

The Board was asked to approve the October 2017 expense reports. Upon motion 
and second the floor was opened for discussion. There being no discussion 
President Kuhn called for the vote. 

Moved: Goytia; Second: Horan 
Motion No. 17-11-5156 – Approving payment of October 2017 
Director Expense Reports. The motion passed with a 6-0 
majority vote; Director Ruzicka had an excused absence. 

8.B – Engineering and Operations 

8.B.1 Calendar Year Imported Water Purchases through October 2017 

General Manager Rick Hansen provided the Board with an update of imported 
water deliveries through October 2017.  

A total of 48,408/AF of Tier 1 water has been delivered to date. It is anticipated 
that at the end of CY-2017 a total of 15,000-20,000/AF of TVMWD’s Tier 1 
allocation will remain. Staff is continuing to work with MWD and the member 
agencies to evaluate maximum storage opportunities while maintaining a prudent 
fiscal position. TVMWD typically will not store greater than an approximation of a 
five-year demand.  

Staff is evaluating opportunities with the Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster for 
their replenishment water requirements and ability to store water.  

8.B.2 Miramar Operations Report October 2017 

Water quality continues to meet all state requirements with no violations during the 
month. Water Operations Manager Steve Lang informed staff is continuing to 
monitor reports on the quagga muscles. It will not impact water delivered from the 

Item 9.1



Miramar Treatment Plant.  Total Trihalomethanes (TTHM) continue to trend at a 
historic low; staff continues to monitor. 

Total plant production for the month was 1,214.9/AF, approximately 66% of 
capacity. For the third consecutive month groundwater wells 1 and 2 delivered 
greater than the prior year for a total of 111.9/AF compared to 86.3/AF in the prior 
year. The wells are continuing to benefit from prior year precipitation and spreading 
of approximately 1,000/AF. Year-to-date sales were a combined total of 
6,975.7/AF, approximately 87% of budget. Miramar Hydros 2 and 3 are producing 
energy with year-to-date results of approximately 50% and 88% of budget 
respectively. 

Mr. Lang reviewed special activities/outages and outreach which included: 

• Safety review with inspector from Joint Powers Insurance Authority (JPIA). 

• Participation in the Great California Shake Out earthquake drill. 

• Mechanical repairs to Fulton Hydro.  

• Southern California Edison issued a permission to operate notice for the 
Fulton/Williams Hydros. 

• A new actuator was installed at Covina Irrigating Company connection. 

• A new shift operator, Wade Burroughs, started earlier last month. He came 
to TVMWD from the City of La Verne. 

• Quarterly inspection of hoist and cranes was completed. 

• One planned outage at the Emerald connection and Live Oak Spreading 
Grounds occurred to permit SCE to make improvements to their system. 

• Staff completed training on basic electrical troubleshooting, microbiologic 
training and human resources. 

The complete report is available upon request. 

Discussion ensued regarding the regional coordination of emergency operations. 
Staff provided a summary of TVMWD protocols in the event of an emergency. Mr. 
Tom Coleman, Rowland Water District provided an update on efforts being 
coordinated through the Public Water Agencies Group (PWAG) to hire an 
Emergency Operations Coordinator. By request, Mr. Lang provided an update on 
TVMWD’s participation on emergency operations at a regional level. 

9. Directors’ /General Manager Oral Reports 

9.A Local Agency Formation Commission – Director Ruzicka is at the LAFCO 
meeting today. 

9.B PWR-Joint Water Line Commission – Director Horan reported the meeting 
was held on October 19, 2017.The meeting included regular proforma business, 
along with the approval for FY 16-17 audit and CY 18 meeting schedule. 

9.C Six Basins Watermaster – Director Mendoza reported on the October 25, 2017 
meeting. Actions at this meeting included: final review of the draft strategic plan, 
selection of TVMWD as the lead CEQA agency to prepare and certify the 

Item 9.1



environmental impact report for the strategic plan, and the establishing a MOU 
between 6BWM and TVMWD to maintain the monitoring well. At Director Mendoza’s 
request, Mr. Darron Poulsen provided information about 6BWM’s request to Three 
Valleys MWD to contract with a grant consultant to seek out available grant monies 
available for projects within the 6BWM Spadra Basin. Director Bowcock extended 
thanks to Director Mendoza for covering the 6BWM Board Meeting. 

9.D Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster – Director Bowcock reported that as of 
October 22, 2017 the Key Well was at 183.3’. 

9.E Chino Basin Watermaster – President Kuhn reported that movement has 
been achieved in the appeals matter related to the operating safe yield, and that 
things are progressing positively and advancing toward a consensus. 

9.F San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority – President Kuhn reported 
Executive Director Ken Manning is presently in China with a delegation discussing 
groundwater cleanup issues.  

9.G Metropolitan Water District – Director De Jesus reported on the November 
14, 2017 Board Meeting. During his board report, MWD Chairman Randy Record 
informed the Board that a joint SDCWA/MWD leadership meeting has taken place 
to improve relationships and progressing forward in an amenable manner. Director 
De Jesus provided an update on the quagga muscles that were identified at USG3. 
It was noted that due to the water chemistry, and lack of calcium levels in the State 
Water Project, the quagga muscles have not been able to reach maturity. 

9.G Additional Board Member or Staff Reports  

Director Mendoza informed that a webinar is scheduled for November 21, 2017 
regarding the Waters of the United States. Information is available on the EPA 
website. 

President Kuhn requested on a future agenda that staff provide an overview to 
improve understanding of the Chandler Investment monthly reports. 

Director Goytia informed that he was invited to participate at a Water Replenishment 
District workshop on safe drinking water and nitrate/VOC cleanup. Ms. Maria Elena 
Kennedy provided on update on these efforts and progress specific to assistance to 
disadvantaged communities. 

Director Bowcock requested that Mr. Howie provide an update on Los Angeles 
Community Choice Energy (LACCE), a regional Community Choice Aggregation 
program for energy in Los Angeles County at a future meeting, and any potential 
impacts to TVMWD. He commented that he learned about this during a recent city 
council meeting in the City of Claremont where they were completing their second 
ordinance reading to participate. 

Director Bowcock informed that he participated in a Veteran’s Day celebration 
program at Citrus College. Approximately 400 people participated including 

Item 9.1



Assembly Member Blanca Rubio and Senator Anthony Portantino and several 
students and performing arts bands from the local elementary and high schools. 

10. Future Agenda Items 

• Workshop to review Chandler Investment reports. 

• Update on Los Angeles Community Choice Aggregation Program 

11. Adjournment 

The Board adjourned at 9:00 a.m. to its next regular meeting scheduled for 
Wednesday, December 6, 2017 at 8:00 a.m. 

Today’s meeting was adjourned in memory of former MWD Director Frank Forbes. 

 

 

/s/ Bob Kuhn 
President, Board of Directors 
Three Valleys Municipal Water District 

 

Recorded by: Victoria A. Hahn, 
District Clerk/Executive Assistant  

 

Item 9.1



 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact   Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only  Cost Estimate: $       

Discussion: 

The Board will be provided a report outlining the various tours conducted at the Miramar 

Treatment Plant during CY 2017. 

Strategic Plan Objective(s): 

 3.3 – Be accountable and transparent with major decisions 

 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Richard W. Hansen, General Manager 

Date: December 6, 2017 

Subject: Miramar Site Tours 

 

Staff Report/Memorandum 
 

Item 9.2



DATE AGENCY  /  SCHOOL # OF PARTICIPANTS
1 01/13/17 La Fetra Elementary 70

2 01/25/17 Holy Mary School Tour 47

3 01/27/17 La Fetra Elementary 69

4 03/10/17 Vista Del Valle Elementary 45

5 03/16/17 Webb School 13

6 03/17/17 Webb School 10

7 03/21/17 University of La Verne (Slackey) 2 groups 45

8 04/08/17 Young Legislature's Group (C. Holden) 12

9 04/18/17 Killian Elementary School 40

10 04/25/17 Vejar Elementary School 40

11 05/02/17 Walnut Elementary School 36

12 05/02/17 Citrus Collge 50

13 05/22/17 Sutherland Elementary School 50

14 06/01/17 Phillippe Schneider 3

15 06/07/17 Reach DVL Tour (Coach King) 20

16 07/13/17 Leroy Haynes Tour 15

17 07/14/17 Suzanne Middleshcool 25

18 07/19/17 CalPoly Tour (Engineering Water Class) 40

19 09/25/17 Harvey Mudd College 6

20 10/06/17 Ganesha HS/CTECH (Coach King) 15

21 10/26/17 Hilda Solis Representatives 3

22 11/13/17 Cal Poly Pomona (Palomo) 60

23 11/17/17 Sellers Elementary 53

24 11/20/17 Chinese Ministry 7

25 12/01/17 Selllers Elementary 41

26 12/07/17 Western Christian (Dom) 40

27

28

29

30

31

32 Total Participants 855

33

34 Pending Tours

35

36

37

38

39

40

2017

Item 9.2



 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact   Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only  Cost Estimate: $       

Requested Action: 

The Board will consider approval of Resolution No. 17-12-814 

Discussion: 

Attached for the Board’s review and approval is a resolution honoring Western Municipal 

Water District’s General Manager, John Rossi upon his retirement. 

Mr. Rossi has worked in the water industry for many years, and served on many public 

boards for more than 30 years.  He is retiring from his position of General Manager in 

December 2017, after 13 years.  Staff would like to recognize his contributions by 

presenting him with a resolution at his retirement event on December 15, 2017. 

Strategic Plan Objective(s): 

3.3 – Be accountable and transparent with major decisions 

 

 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Richard W. Hansen, General Manager 

Date: December 6, 2017 

Subject: 
Resolution No. 17-12-814 Recognizing General Manager of Western 
Municipal Water District, John Rossi on His Retirement 

 

Staff Report/Memorandum 
 

Item 9.3



RESOLUTION NO. 17-12-814 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF  
THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

HONORING JOHN V. ROSSI  
FOR HIS MANY YEARS OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICE TO THE WATER INDUSTRY 
 

WHEREAS, JOHN ROSSI has served as the General Manager of Western 
Municipal Water District for 13 years, and 

 
WHEREAS, he served as the court-appointed Watermaster for the Santa Ana River 

Watershed and Western judgments, and 
 
WHEREAS, he has served on numerous boards, including; California Municipal 

Utilities Association Board of Governors, the Urban Water Institute, the University of 
California Riverside’s Water Science & Policy Center’s Advisory Board, and the 
California Baptist University Board of Visitors, and 

 
WHEREAS, Mr. Rossi is a member of the Association of California Water Agencies 

Water Management Committee, and  
 
WHEREAS, served as an elected member of the Board of Directors for the Rancho 

California Water District in Temecula, as well as the board for the Association of 
California Water Agencies, the Chino Basin Watermaster Board and the WateReuse 
Association Board, and  

 
WHEREAS, he was a founding member and President of the California Utility 

Executives Management Association, and; 
 
WHEREAS, during his tenure Mr. Rossi was recognized by the Association of 

California Water Agencies with the Excellence in Water Leadership Award for his long 
history of leadership in the water industry; problem-solving and contributions to California 
water policy. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Three 

Valleys Municipal Water District as follows: 
  

1. Full measure of appreciation is hereby expressed and 
acknowledged for the services rendered to the water industry, 
both locally and nationally by JOHN ROSSI during his long 
and effective career, and;  

 
2. Public attention is hereby called and directed to the 

exemplary professional services rendered by Mr. Rossi, and; 
 

Item 9.3



3. This Resolution shall be maintained in the permanent 
records of the Three Valleys Municipal Water District in 
recognition of Mr. Rossi’s professional and outstanding 
performance of duty to the water industry. 

 
 

  ADOPTED, this 6th day of December 2017. 
 

  AYES:    
  NOES:   
  ABSTAIN:   
  ABSENT:  

 
 
 
 
 
       Bob G. Kuhn, President 
       Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
 
Brian Bowcock, Secretary 
 
 
SEAL 

 
   

Item 9.3



 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact   Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only  Cost Estimate: $       

Requested Action:    

That the Board will approve, 

1. Three Valleys Municipal Water Resolution Number 17-12-815 for County 
Sanitation District Tax Sharing Resolution Annexation No.  21-757; and 

2. Direct staff to return the documents back to the County Sanitation District of Los 
Angeles County with proper documentation. 

Alternative Action: 

The Three Valleys Board may deny the request, upon which the Sanitation District will 
make this request to the County Board of Supervisors for a final determination. 

Discussion: 

The applicants for projects have requested annexation of their respective properties to 
the County Sanitation District to receive off-site sewage disposal.  The annexation 
process requires that a resolution for property tax revenue exchange be adopted by all 
of the affected agencies prior to approval. 

Three Valleys will not lose any existing ad valorem tax revenue it currently receives 
from the affected territories; Three Valleys would give up a portion of the revenue 
received from future “increased assessed valuation only.”  

 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Richard W. Hansen, General Manager 

Date: December 6, 2017 

Subject: 
Approval of Resolution No. 17-12-815 for County Sanitation District Tax 
Sharing Resolution: Annexation No. 21-757 

 

Staff Report/Memorandum 
 

Item 9.4



Listed below is a matrix and description for the pending tax sharing resolutions that 
require Board approval:  

 

 
Project No. 

TVMWD 
Current Tax 

Share 

 
Percent 

 
Adjustments 

 
TVMWD 

Net Share 

The property consists of:  One existing single-family home 

21-757 0.004216396 0.4216% -0.000031375 0.004185021 

 

Upon execution and receipt of the documents, fully conformed copies will be provided 
back to Three Valleys Municipal Water District.   

 

 

Item 9.4



Item 9.4



Item 9.4



Item 9.4



Item 9.4

vhahn
Typewritten Text
Bob Kuhn, President

vhahn
Typewritten Text
December 6, 2017

vhahn
Typewritten Text
, Brian Bowcock



Item 9.4



Item 9.4



Item 9.4



 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact   Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only  Cost Estimate: $       

Requested Action:    

That the Board will approve, 

1. Three Valleys Municipal Water Resolution Number 17-12-816 for County 
Sanitation District Tax Sharing Resolution Annexation No.  22-428; and 

2. Direct staff to return the documents back to the County Sanitation District of Los 
Angeles County with proper documentation. 

Alternative Action: 

The Three Valleys Board may deny the request, upon which the Sanitation District will 
make this request to the County Board of Supervisors for a final determination. 

Discussion: 

The applicants for projects have requested annexation of their respective properties to 
the County Sanitation District to receive off-site sewage disposal.  The annexation 
process requires that a resolution for property tax revenue exchange be adopted by all 
of the affected agencies prior to approval. 

Three Valleys will not lose any existing ad valorem tax revenue it currently receives 
from the affected territories; Three Valleys would give up a portion of the revenue 
received from future “increased assessed valuation only.”  

 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Richard W. Hansen, General Manager 

Date: December 6, 2017 

Subject: 
Approval of Resolution No. 17-12-816 for County Sanitation District Tax 
Sharing Resolution: Annexation No. 22-428 

 

Staff Report/Memorandum 
 

Item 9.5



Listed below is a matrix and description for the pending tax sharing resolutions that 
require Board approval:  

 

 
Project No. 

TVMWD 
Current Tax 

Share 

 
Percent 

 
Adjustments 

 
TVMWD 

Net Share 

The property consists of:  One existing single-family home 

22-428 0.005282271 0.5282% -0.000047095 0.005235176 

 

Upon execution and receipt of the documents, fully conformed copies will be provided 
back to Three Valleys Municipal Water District.   

 

 

Item 9.5



Item 9.5



Item 9.5



Item 9.5



Item 9.5

vhahn
Typewritten Text
Bob Kuhn, President

vhahn
Typewritten Text
December 6, 2017

vhahn
Typewritten Text
, Brian Bowcock



Item 9.5



Item 9.5



Item 9.5



 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact   Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only  Cost Estimate: $       

Requested Action:    

That the Board will approve, 

1. Three Valleys Municipal Water Resolution Number 17-12-817 for County 
Sanitation District Tax Sharing Resolution Annexation No.  22-429; and 

2. Direct staff to return the documents back to the County Sanitation District of Los 
Angeles County with proper documentation. 

Alternative Action: 

The Three Valleys Board may deny the request, upon which the Sanitation District will 
make this request to the County Board of Supervisors for a final determination. 

Discussion: 

The applicants for projects have requested annexation of their respective properties to 
the County Sanitation District to receive off-site sewage disposal.  The annexation 
process requires that a resolution for property tax revenue exchange be adopted by all 
of the affected agencies prior to approval. 

Three Valleys will not lose any existing ad valorem tax revenue it currently receives 
from the affected territories; Three Valleys would give up a portion of the revenue 
received from future “increased assessed valuation only.”  

 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Richard W. Hansen, General Manager 

Date: December 6, 2017 

Subject: 
Approval of Resolution No. 17-12-817 for County Sanitation District Tax 
Sharing Resolution: Annexation No. 22-429 

 

Staff Report/Memorandum 
 

Item 9.6



Listed below is a matrix and description for the pending tax sharing resolutions that 
require Board approval:  

 

 
Project No. 

TVMWD 
Current Tax 

Share 

 
Percent 

 
Adjustments 

 
TVMWD 

Net Share 

The property consists of:  Two existing single-family homes 

22-429 0.004524219 0.4524% -0.000040337 0.004483882 

 

Upon execution and receipt of the documents, fully conformed copies will be provided 
back to Three Valleys Municipal Water District.   

 

 

Item 9.6



Item 9.6



Item 9.6



Item 9.6



Item 9.6

vhahn
Typewritten Text
Bob Kuhn, President

vhahn
Typewritten Text
December 6, 2017

vhahn
Typewritten Text
, Brian Bowcock



Item 9.6



Item 9.6



Item 9.6



 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact   Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only  Cost Estimate: $ 

Requested Action: 

The Board of Directors will select members to serve as Officers during CY 2018: 

1) Nominate and select a Board President; and 
2) Nominate and select a Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer 

 
Discussion:  

District policy, Section 2.3, Board of Directors – Organization cites, that the organizational 

activities for selecting its officers occur during the first meeting in December to coincide 

with the installation of new officers.  

The Board will select four of its seven directors to serve during Calendar Year 2018 as 

follows: President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. Accordingly, the General 

Manager will assist in conducting the selection of a Board President, and then the Board 

President will oversee the process for selecting the remaining Officers. 

If there are no changes proposed, it is expected that the slate will be approved by a single 

motion. 

Attached is the list of incumbent officers from CY 2017. 

Strategic Goal Objectives 

3.3 – Be accountable and transparent with major decisions 

 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Richard W. Hansen, General Manager 

Date: December 6, 2017 

Subject: CY 2018 Board Reorganization 

 

Staff Report/Memorandum 
 

Item 10.1



 

 

 
CY 2018 BOARD REORGANIZATION 

THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 

CY 2018 PROPOSED BOARD OFFICERS1 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
2017 INCUMBENT BOARD OFFICERS 

 
 

 

 

 

1 The Board will consider election of four officers, President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. All remaining 

elected officials on the Board will be Directors. 

Name Representing Position 

Carlos Goytia Division 1  

David De Jesus Division 2  

Brian Bowcock Division 3  

Bob Kuhn Division 4  

Joseph Ruzicka Division 5  

John Mendoza Division 6  

Dan Horan Division 7  

Name Representing Position 

Carlos Goytia Division 1 Director 

David De Jesus Division 2 Vice President 

Brian Bowcock Division 3 Secretary 

Bob Kuhn Division 4 President 

Joseph Ruzicka Division 5 Treasurer 

John Mendoza Division 6 Director 

Dan Horan Division 7 Director 

 

Item 10.1



 

 

 For Action   Fiscal Impact   Funds Budgeted 

 Information Only  Cost Estimate: $ 

Requested action: 

That the Board will, 

1) Select or confirm a District representative to serve on the Metropolitan Water 
District of Southern California (MWD) Board of Directors for CY 2018. 

2) Select or confirm a District representative and alternate to serve on the San Gabriel 
Basin Water Quality Authority Board of Directors for CY 2018. 

3) Board President will appoint Directors to serve as representatives / alternates to 
attend and monitor activities and report to the Board regarding activities of other 
member agency and/or other agency board meetings for CY 2018. 

 
Discussion: 

Pursuant to district policy Section 2.3 – Board of Directors Organization: 

The Board of Directors will select or confirm a District representative to the Metropolitan 
Water District of Southern California (MWD) Board of Directors and a representative and 
alternate to the San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority (WQA)1; 

The Board President appoints Directors to serve as representatives / alternates to attend 
and monitor activities for the following member agency / other agency board meetings: 

• ACWA Region 8 Delegate 

• ACWA / JPIA 

• Chino Basin Watermaster 

• Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) 

• Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster 

• PWR Joint Water Line Commission 

1 Current appointment to San Gabriel Basin WQA was done by Resolution No. 14-12-746 on December 
17, 2014 for a four-year term. 

To: TVMWD Board of Directors  

From: Richard W. Hansen, General Manager 

Date: December 6, 2017 

Subject: CY 2018 Board Appointments 

 

Staff Report/Memorandum 
 

Item 10.2



• Rowland Water District 

• San Gabriel Valley Council of Governments – Note for CY 2018 TVMWD will be 
the alternate 

• Six Basins Watermaster 

• Walnut Valley Water District 

A list of the CY 2017 incumbents for each of these agencies is attached. 

Strategic Goal Objectives 

3.3 – Be accountable and transparent with major decisions 

 

Item 10.2



 

 

CY 2018 BOARD APPOINTMENTS 

THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

 

PROPOSED CY 2018 TVMWD REPRESENTATIVE APPOINTMENTS 

Committee / Board Representative Alternate 

ACWA Region 8 Delegate   

ACWA / JPIA Representative   

Chino Basin Watermaster1   

Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO)   

Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster   

MWD Board Representative  Alternate Not Applicable 

PWR Joint Water Line Commission   

Rowland Water District   

San Gabriel Basin WQA1   

San Gabriel Valley Council of Governments 
(SGV-COG)2 

  

Six Basins Watermaster1   

Walnut Valley Water District   

 

ADOPTED CY 2017 TVMWD REPRESENTATIVE/ALTERNATE APPOINTMENTS  

Committee / Board Representative Alternate 

ACWA Region 8 Delegate Dan Horan Brian Bowcock 

ACWA / JPIA Representative Brian Bowcock Bob Kuhn 

Chino Basin Watermaster Bob Kuhn David De Jesus 

Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) Joe Ruzicka Bob Kuhn 

Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster Brian Bowcock Dan Horan 

MWD Board Representative David De Jesus N/A 

PWR Joint Water Line Commission Dan Horan Carlos Goytia 

Rowland Water District Dan Horan Joe Ruzicka 

San Gabriel Basin WQA Bob Kuhn Dan Horan 

San Gabriel Valley Council of Governments Carlos Goytia Joe Ruzicka 

Six Basins Watermaster Brian Bowcock John Mendoza 

Walnut Valley Water District David De Jesus Joe Ruzicka 

 

1 Both the representative and alternate will attend these meetings due to voting requirements. 
2 For CY 2018 TVMWD will be the alternate 

 

Item 10.2


	Agenda Regular Board Meeting December 6, 2017 (pgs. 1-4) 
	Item 7 Public Hearing - Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration for Grand Avenue Well, Project No. 58446 (pgs. 5-146) 
	Legal publication notices 
	Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration w/comments & responses

	Item 8 Adopt Resolution No. 17-12-813 to Approve Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and CEQA for TVMWD Grand Avenue Groundwater Well, Project No. 58446 (pgs. 147-152)
	Resolution No. 17-12-813
	Notice of Determination

	Item 9 Consent Calendar Items 9.1-9. 6 (pgs. 153-193) 
	Item 9.1 Regular Board Meeting Minutes, November 1, 2017
	Regular Board Meeting Minutes, November 15, 2017
	Item 9.2 Miramar Site Tours
	Item 9.3 Resolution No. 17-12-814 Recognizing General Manager of Western Municipal Water District, John Rossi on His Retirement
	Resolution No. 17-12-814


	Item 9.4 Approval of Resolution No. 17-12-815 for County Sanitation District Tax Sharing Resolution: Anexation No. 21-757 
	Backup for Resolution No. 17-12-815

	Item 9.5 Approval of Resolution No. 17-12-816 for County Sanitation District Tax Sharing Resolution: Anexation No. 22-428 
	Backup for Resolution No. 17-12-816  

	Item 9.6 Approval of Resolution No. 17-12-817 for County Sanitation District Tax Sharing Resolution: Anexation No. 22-429
	Backup for Resolution No. 17-12-817 

	Item 10.1 CY 2018 Board Reorganization (pgs. 193-194)
	2017 Incumbent Board Officers / Proposed CY 2018 Board Officers 

	Item 10.2 CY 2018 Board Appointments (pgs. 195-197)  
	Adopted CY 2017 Representatives/Alternates / Proposed CY 2018 TVMWD Representative Appointments




